DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
(CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469)
Regd. Off: Ideal Plaza, 11/1, Sarat Bose Road, South Block, Kolkata- 700 020.
Tel: 033 2283 7495/96, email: deeplokfinancial@email.com,
Website: www.deeplokfinancialservices.com

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 45" Annual General Meeting of Deeplok Financial Services
Limited will be held on Monday, the 22™ day of September, 2025 at 11.30 a.m. IST through Video
Conferencing (“VC”)/Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM?”) to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business :

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements (Standalone and Consolidated)
of the Company together with the Reports of the Directors’ and Auditors’ thereon for the financial
year ended 31 March, 2025.

2. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat (DIN: 00129820) who retires
by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution, relating
to the re-appointment of the Statutory Auditors of the Company:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 139(2) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013, and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modifications or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and pursuant to the
recommendation made by the Audit Committee and Board of Directors, M/s. J. B. S. &
Company, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No.- 323734E), be and are hereby re-
appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a further period of five years to hold office
from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting to be held in the year 2030 on such remuneration as may be determined by the Board of
Directors of the Company in consultation with the said Auditor.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Director of the Company, be and is hereby
severally authorized to do and perform all necessary acts, deeds and things including incidental
matters in connection with the above including execution, signing and filing of any forms,
returns and documents with the concerned authorities.”

Special Business :

4. To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution, relating
to the appointment of the Secretarial Auditor of the Company:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, (“Act”) read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or
reenactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), Regulation 24A and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and



Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and other applicable
laws (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in
force) and upon recommendation of Audit Committee and Board of Directors, Mr. Asit Kumar
Labh, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No.: 32891, CP No.: 14664) be and is hereby
appointed as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company to hold office for a term of 5 (Five)
consecutive years, i.e. from financial year 2025-26 to financial year 2029-30 at a remuneration to
be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company in consultation with the Secretarial Auditor of
the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to decide and/or alter the terms and conditions of the appointment including
remuneration for subsequent financial years as it may deem fit.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors or any committee thereof constituted to
exercise its powers (including the powers conferred by this resolution) and the Company
Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, matters,
deeds and things and give such directions as may be deemed necessary or expedient for the
purpose of giving effect to this resolution.”

Regd. Office: By order of the Board

Regd. Off: Ideal Plaza, 11/1, Sarat Bose Road, For Deeplok Financial Services Limited
020.

Tel: 033 2283 7495/96,

Website: www.deeplokfinancialservices.com urendra Kumar Bachhawat)
Date: 12.08.2025 Managing Director

South Block, S207 & 209, 2nd Floor, Kolkata- 700
/
Ho c/\}\@w:ﬁ
email: deeplokfinancial@gmail.com,
NIN: 00129471




NOTES:

1. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India (“MCA”™) has, vide its circular No.
9/2024 dated September 19, 2024, read with circulars dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, May
5, 2020, January 13, 2021, December 8, 2021, December 28, 2022 and September 25, 2023
(collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars™), inter-alia allowed conducting of AGM through
Video Conferencing/ Other Audio-Visual Means (“VC/OAVM”) facilities to be held on or
before September 30, 2025, which does not require physical presence of the Members,
Directors, Auditors and other persons at common venue. The Securities and Exchange Board of
India (“SEBI”) has also, vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/ CFD/CFDPoD- 2/P/CIR/2024/133
dated October 3, 2024 (“SEBI Circular”), provided certain relaxations from compliance with
certain provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations. In compliance with the provisions of the
Act, SEBI Listing Regulations, MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular and all other relevant
circulars issued from time to time, the 45th AGM of the Company is being conducted through
VC / OAVM facility. Hence, Members can attend and participate in the AGM through VC/
OAVM only. The deemed venue for the 45th AGM shall be the Regd. Office of the Company
i.e., “Ideal Plaza”, South Block, 2nd Floor, S-207 & 209, 11/1, Sarat Bose Road, Kolkata-
700020.

2. Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is
entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a
Member of the Company. Since this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through
VC / OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the
facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and
hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

3. Additional information, pursuant to Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards on General Meetings issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of the Directors seeking appointment / re-
appointment at this AGM, forms part of the Notice.

4, The Notice of the 45" AGM and instruction for e-voting, is being sent by electronic mode to all
the members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s)
for communication purpose and a letter providing the web-link, including the exact path, where
complete details of the Annual Report of the Company is available is being sent to all those
shareholder(s) who have not so registered;

Sk The attendance through VC/OAVM is restricted and hence will be made available to only 1000
Members on first come first served basis. However, attendance of Members holding 2% or
more of the shares of the Company, Institutional Investors as on closure of the business hours
on 15" day of September, 2025, Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the
Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors, Scrutinizer, etc. are allowed to attend the
AGM without restriction of first come first served basis. The Members can join the AGM in the
VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the commencement of the
Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice.

Members desirous of obtaining any information concerning the accounts and operations of the
Company are requested to address their questions in writing to the Secretary of the Company
by Saturday, 20" September, 2025.
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Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may register
themselves as a speaker by sending their request from their registered email address mentioning
their name, DP ID and Client ID/folio number, PAN, mobile number at
deeplokfinancial@gmail.com, on or before 20" September, 2025( 5:00p.m. IST). Those
Members who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their
views /ask questions during the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of
speakers depending on the availability of time for the AGM. In the interest of time, each
speaker is requested to express his / her views in 2 — 3 minutes.

However, shareholders may post their comments/queries (not more than 150 characters) in the
chat box available on the Video Conferencing interface. Message posted by the shareholders
will be dealt with accordingly.

Corporate Members are required to send to the company a duly certified copy of the Board
Resolution, pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, authorizing their
representative to attend and vote at the AGM.

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the Member whose name appears as the first
holder in the order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to
vote.

The Company’s shares are available in demat mode. The shares of the company can be
dematerialized under ISIN: INE875C01013. In terms of SEBI Circular, physical shares cannot
be transferred on or after 01.04.2019. Members are requested to dematerialize the shares for
operational convenience.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-
PoD/P/CIR/2025/97 dated July 2, 2025 ("Circular") has facilitated mechanism for a "Special
Window for Re-lodgement of Transfer Requests of Physical Shares" and accordingly all
physical share transfer deeds lodged for transfer with the Company or its Registrar and Transfer
Agent (RTA) prior to discontinuation of physical mode of transfer, i.e., April 01, 2019 and
rejected/returned by the Company/RTA due to deficiency in the documents and was required to
be re-lodged with requisite documents on or before the cut-off date fixed for re-lodgement of
such transfer deeds, i.e., March 31, 2021; have been provided with an opportunity to re-lodge
the same with the Company/RTA during a special window period of six months from July 07,
2025 till January 06, 2026. During this period, the securities that are re-lodged for transfer
(including those requests that are pending with the listed company / RTA, as on date) shall be
issued only in demat mode. However, due process shall be followed for such transfer-cum-
demat requests. For further details you may contact the Company Secretary of the Company or
the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company. A copy of the Circular is also available on
the website of the Company at www deeplokfinancialservices.com

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained
under Section 170 of the Act, the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors
are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act, and the relevant documents referred to
in the Notice will be available electronically for inspection by the members during the AGM.
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Shareholders are informed that in terms of the provisions of the Listing Regulations, the
Company is required to intimate the Stock Exchanges the details of the agreements entered into
by the shareholders, promoters, promoter group entities, related parties, directors, key
managerial personnel and employees of the Company or of its holding, subsidiary or associate
company, among themselves or with the Company or with a third party, solely or jointly,
which, either directly or indirectly or potentially or whose purpose and effect is to, impact the
management or control of the Company or impose any restriction or create any liability upon
the Company, including disclosure of any rescission, amendment or alteration of such
agreements thereto, whether or not the Company is a party to such agreements. Accordingly, it
is hereby advised to the shareholders to inform the Company about any such agreement to
which the Company is not a party, within two working days of entering into such agreements or
signing an agreement to enter into such agreements. The Company will inform the details of
such agreements to the Stock Exchanges on it becoming aware of it within the prescribed
timelines.

[Explanation: For the purpose of this clause, the term ‘directly or indirectly’ includes
agreements creating an obligation on the parties to such agreements to ensure that the listed
entity shall or shall not act in a particular manner.]

The e-Voting procedure to be followed by the shareholders to cast their votes:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is offering e-
voting facility to its Members in respect of the businesses to be transacted at the 45th Annual
General Meeting scheduled to be held on Monday, the 22nd day of September, 2025 at 11.30
a.m. The Company has engaged the services of Central Depository Services (India) Limited
(“CDSL”) to provide e-voting facilities. The e-voting particulars are set out below:

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICULARS

EVSN USER ID PERMANENTACCOUNT
(E-voting Sequence Number) NUMBER (PAN)

(1)The remote e-voting period begins on 18th September, 2025 from 09:00 a.m. (IST) and ends
on 21st September, 2025 upto 5:00 p.m. (IST). During this period members of the Company,
holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date i.e.,
15" September, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. The remote e-voting module shall be
disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(i) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote
at the meeting venue.

(iii)In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9,
2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile
number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.



Pursuant to abovesaid SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual
meetings for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is

given below:

Shareholders
holding
securities in
Demat mode
with CDSL
Depository

Type of Login Method
shareholders
Individual D Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login

through their existing user id and password. Option will be made available
to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The users to
login to Easi / Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website
www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System
Myeasi.

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-
Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per
the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user
will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting &
voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access
the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-
Voting service providers’ website directly.

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/ Easiest, option to register is
available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on log in and
New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

4) Altemnatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing
Demat Account Number and PAN from a e-Voting link available on
www.cdslindla.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat
Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting
option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the
system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
with NSDL
Depository

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the
e- Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a
mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting
services.

2) Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will
be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service
provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.




3) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS
“Portal or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/Secure Web/ldeasDirectReg. jsp

4) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing
the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number held with
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After
successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through
Shareholders | your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting
(holding facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once

securitiesin | you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL
demat mode) | Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting
login through | feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you

their will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote
Depository | during the remote e- Voting period.
Participants

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical
issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evotingf@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free
£PSL no. 1800 22 55 33 OR 022-23058738 and 22-
23058542-43.

securities in Demat mode with

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at
securities in Demat mode with evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020
P 990 and 1800 22 44 30




() Login method for e-Voting for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than
individual holding in Demat form.

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

2) Click on “Shareholders™ module.

3) Now enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with

the Company.

OR

Alternatively, if you are registered for CDSL's EASI/EASIEST e-services, you can log-in at
https://www.cdslindia.com from Login - Myeasi using your login credentials. Once you
successfully log-in to CDSL's EASVEASIEST e-services, click on e-Voting option and
proceed directly to cast your vote electronically.

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted
on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders

holding shares in Demat.

PAN

Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

e Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the
Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence
number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.

Dividend Bank
Details or Date of
Birth (DoB)

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format)
as recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to
login.

e Ifboth the details are not recorded with the depository or company,
please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank
details field.

(i1) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

(iii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company
selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach
‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login




(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)
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(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by
the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are
eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is st
rongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost
care to keep your password confidential.

For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-
voting on the resolution contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the relevant DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED on
which you choose to vote.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the
same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The
option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you
dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution
details.

After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”,
else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify
your vote.

You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on
the Voting page.

If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and
the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as
prompted by the system.

There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be
made available to Scrutinizer for verification.

Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's mobile app "m-Voting". The m-
Voting app can be downloaded from respective Store. Please follow the instructions as
prompted by the mobile app while Remote Voting on your mobile.

Additional Facility for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians —For
Remote Voting only.
e Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and

Custodians are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves
in the “Corporates” module.



* A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity
should be emailed to helpdesk.evotingi@edslindia.com.

e After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the
admin login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the
account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

e The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically and can be
delink in case of any wrong mapping.

¢ It is mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney
(POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded
in PDF format in the system for the Scrutinizer to verify the same.

e Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required mandatorily to send the
relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen
signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the
Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address Vviz
deeplokfinancial@gmail.com if they have voted from individual tab & not
uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.
Please note that in case of Institutional Shareholders (i.e., other than individuals,
HUF, NRI, etc.), furnishing of the Board Resolution/Authority Letter or Power
of Attorney, in any mode as mentioned hereinabove is mandatory and in lack of
it, the vote would be considered invalid by the Scrutinizer

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT
REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES.

) For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by
email to Company/RTA email id.

2) For Demat shareholders -Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective
Depository Participant (DP)

3) For Individual Demat shareholders — Please update your email id & mobile no. with your
respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining
virtual meetings through Depository.

If you have any queries or issues regarding e-Voting from the CDSL e Voting System, you can

write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33.

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr.
Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL,) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th
Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East),
Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evotin
g@cdslindia.com or call at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33.

Mr. A. K. Labh, Practicing Company Secretary (FCS - 4848 / CP-3238) (Address: A. K. Labh &
Co, 40, Weston Street, 3rd Floor, Kolkata - 700013) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer for
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conducting the remote e-voting and e-voting process at the AGM in a fair and transparent
manner.

Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to immediately notify change in their
bank details, e-mail address, address/name, to Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agents-
M/s Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited, 23, R.N. Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor, Kolkata-700
001. Tel No.-(033) 2243 5809 / 5029; 2248 2248; Fax No.- (033) 2248 4787. E-mail-
mdplde@yahoo.com , quoting their Folio Number(s).

Members holding shares in dematerialised mode are requested to intimate all changes pertaining
to their bank details, ECS mandates, e-mail addresses, nominations, power of attorney, change of
address/ name, etc. to their DPs only and not to the Company or Maheshwari Datamatics Private
Limited Any such changes effected by the DPs will automatically reflect in the Company’s
subsequent records.

SEBI has mandated the submission of PAN by every participant in the securities market.
Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to submit their PAN to their DPs with
whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form shall
submit their PAN details to Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited.

Members holding shares in physical mode are advised to make nomination in respect of their
shareholding in the Company, in the nomination form (SH-13) and those Members holding
shares in electronic mode may contact their respective DPs for availing the nomination facility as
provided under Section 72 of the Act.

Non-Resident Indian Members are requested to inform their respective DPs, immediately of :

¢ Change in their residential status on return to India for permanent settlement.

e Particulars of their bank account maintained in India with complete name, branch, account
type, account number and address of the bank with pin code number, if not furnished earlier.

Members who have not registered/updated their e-mail address with Maheshwari Datamatics
Private Limited /Company may write to deeplokfinancial@gmail.com OR
mdpldc@yahoo.com, if shares are held in physical mode or with their DPs, if shares are held in

electronic mode, for receiving all future communications from the Company including Annual
Reports, Notices, Circulars, etc. electronically.

Process for obtaining User ID and Password/Postal Ballot Notice for those Members whose e-
mail ids are not registered:

In case shares are held in physical mode, please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder,
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), self-attested scanned copy of PAN card
and self-attested scanned copy of Aadhaar Card by e-mail to deeplokfinancial@gmail.com
OR mdpldec@yahoo.com

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16-digit DPID + CLID or 16
digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, self-




attested scanned copy of PAN card and self-attested scanned copy of Aadhaar Card to
deeplokfinancial@gmail.com OR mdpldc@yvahoo.com

11, Notification of SEBI relating to transfer of equity shares held in physical form:

SEBI vide notification dated June 8, 2018 amended Regulation 40 of Listing Regulations,
which came into force with effect from April 1, 2019. Accordingly, effective April 1, 2019
except in cases of transmission or transposition, transfer of securities of Company cannot be
processed unless the securities are held in dematerialized form with a depository. SEBI vide its
circular dated 25th January 2022 has advised that listed companies shall henceforth issue the
securities in dematerialized form only (vide Gazette Notification no. SEBI/LAD-
NRO/GN/2022/66 dated January 24, 2022) while processing the following service request:

i. Issue of duplicate securities certificate;
ii. Claim from Unclaimed Suspense Account;
iii. Renewal / Exchange of securities certificate;
iv. Endorsement;
v. Sub-division / Splitting of securities certificate;
vi. Consolidation of securities certificates/folios;
vii. Transmission;
viii. Transposition;

The Members are requested to take note of the same and may consider dematerialization of
physical shares held by them to avoid inconvenience in future.

12. Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.
Instructions for Members attending the Annual General Meeting (AGM) through VC/QOAVM and
e-voting during the Annual General Meeting (AGM) are as under:

1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the
instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting.

2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be
displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting.

3. Only those members, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not
casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from
doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM.

4. Ifany Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the
same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes
cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting
is available only to the shareholders attending the meeting.

5. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM.
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. If a member casts vote(s) by both modes,
then voting done through remote e-voting shall prevail and vote(s) cast at the Meeting shall be
treated as "INVALID".



Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / iPad for better experience.

Further members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid
any disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

General Information

1.

The Scrutinizer shall, inmediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, count the votes cast
at the Meeting, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-Voting in the presence of at
least two witnesses who are not in the employment of the Company and make, not later than 48
hours of conclusion of the Meeting, a consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes cast in
favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or to a person authorized by the Chairman in writing
who shall countersign the same.

The Chairman or the person authorized by him in writing shall forthwith on receipt of the
consolidated Scrutinizer's Report, declare the Results of the voting. The Results declared, along
with the Scrutinizer's Report, shall be placed on the Company's website and on the website of
CDSL immediately after the results is declared and communicated to the Stock Exchanges where
the equity shares of the Company are listed.

Subject to (he receipt of requisite number of votes, the Resolutions forming part of the Notice of
Annual General Meeting shall be deemed to be passed on the date of the AGM i.e., Monday, the
22" day of September, 2025.



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE ORDINAY BUSINESS PURSUANT
TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 3

The Company proposes to re-appointment of M/s. J. B. S. & Company, Chartered Accountants {(ICAI
Firm Registration No. 323734E) as statutory auditors of the Company for the approval of the
shareholders. Information required pursuant to the provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 is
mentioned hereunder:

Terms of appointment: M/s. J. B. S. & Company, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration
No. 323734E) are being proposed to be re-appointed as statutory auditors of the Company in terms of
Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, as amended, for a further period of consecutive 5 (five) years from the conclusion of this
AGM till the conclusion of 50™ AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2030.

Basis of recommendation for appointment: Before recommending the re-appointment of M/s. J. B.
S. & Company, Chartered Accountants, the Audit Committee considered various parameters like audit
experience in the Company’s operating segments, market standing of the firm, clientele served, etc.,
and found Ms. J. B. S. & Company, Chartered Accountants to be best suited to handle the scale,
diversity and complexity associated with the audit of the financial statements of the Company.

Details and credentials of new auditors: M/s. J. B. S. & Company, Chartered Accountants (ICAI
Firm Registration No. 323734E) was established in 01.08.1998. The Firm has qualified and
experienced professionals who are expert in handling audits of various scale, diversifications and
complexities. The Firm has reputed clientele base across the country.

Proposed Fee: As mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and the auditors,
M/s J. B. S. & Company, Chartered Accountants subject to revisions in between as decided in due
course.

Last fee to the auditor: The Company had paid a professional fee of Rs. 50,000/- to the Statutory
Auditors with respect to statutory audit for the financial year 2024-2025.

Any material changes and rationale for such change: The proposed fees payable to M/s. J. B. S. &
Company, Chartered Accountants, is based on the fee proposal received at the time of selection of the
Statutory Auditors by the Audit Committee in line with the Company’s scale of operations and at par
with the industrial norms.

M/s. J. B. S. & Company, Chartered Accountants have given their consent to act as the Auditors of
the Company and have confirmed that the said appointment, if made, will be in accordance with the
conditions prescribed under Sections 139 and 141 of the Act.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives is, in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution. This statement may also be

regarded as an appropriate disclosure under the Listing Regulations.

The Board of Directors recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item no. 3 for your approval.



Item No. 4

Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) vide SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2024 dated December 12, 2024, has amended
Regulation 24A of SEBI Listing Regulations. As per the said amendment to Regulation 24A of the
SEBI Listing Regulations, the appointment of Secretarial Auditor shall be approved by the Members
at the AGM of the Company and the tenure of the Secretarial Auditor in case of an individual
Company Secretary in Practice, should be for a maximum of one (1) term of five (5) consecutive
years or in case of a Firm of Company Secretaries in Practice, for a maximum of two (2) terms of five
(5) consecutive years. However, any association of the individual or the firm as the Secretarial
Auditor of the listed entity before 31st March, 2025 shall not be considered for the purpose of
calculating the tenure under Regulation 24A of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Pursuant to the above requirement, the Board at its meeting held on 12™ August, 2025, considering the
experience and expertise and based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has proposed to
the Members of the Company the appointment of Mr. Asit Kumar Labh, Practicing Company
Secretary (Membership No.: A32891, CP No.: 14664) a peer reviewed firm, as the Secretarial Auditor
of the Company for a period of five consecutive financial years, i.e. from financial year 2025-26 to
financial year 2029-30 in terms of Regulation 24A of the SEBI Listing Regulations and SEBI Circular
No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/CIR/P/ 2024/185 dated December 31, 2024 (“SEBI Circular”) read
with provisions of Section 204 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. The appointment is subject to shareholders’
approval at the AGM

The Company has received written consent from Mr. Asit Kumar Labh and a certificate that he satisfy
the qualification criteria provided under SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-
2/CIR/P/2024/185 dated December 31, 2024 (“SEBI Circular”) and that the appointment, if made,
shall be in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act, Rules framed thereunder, SEBI
Listing Regulations, SEBI Circular and other applicable circulars, if any, in this regard. He has agreed
to the said appointment, and confirmed that his appointment, if made, would be within the limits
specified under the Act. He has further confirmed that he is eligible for the proposed appointment as
Secretarial Auditor of the Company and have not incurred any of the disqualifications as specified
vide the said SEBI Circular.

While recommending Mr. Asit Kumar Labh for appointment, the Board and the Audit Committee
evaluated various factors, including his capability to handle a diverse and complex business
environment, its existing experience in the Company’s business segments, its industry standing, the
clientele it serves, and its technical expertise. Mr. Asit Kumar Labh was found to be well-equipped to
manage the scale, diversity, and complexity associated with the Secretarial Audit of the Company.

Brief Profile & Credentials:

Mr. Asit Kumar Labh is a Practicing Company Secretary and is having more than 10 years of
extensive experience in company law, SEBI matters, capital markets, corporate restructuring, business
planning and other gamut of corporate affairs.



Terms of Appointment:

Appointment is proposed for a period of 5 (five) consecutive financial years, i.e. from financial year
2025-26 to financial year 2029-30, subject to approval of the Members of the Company in the
forthcoming 45th AGM of the Company, as Secretarial Auditor of the Company at a remuneration of
Rs.65,000/- for first three financial years and thereafter Rs. 70,000/~ for next two financial years,
excluding GST plus out of pocket expenses at actuals. The proposed fees are determined based on
knowledge, expertise, industry experience, time and efforts required to be put in by them, which is in
line with the industry benchmarks. Considering the expertise and profile of the firm, the resolution for
appointment  of the fitn is  proposed for approval of the  members
of the Company.

Additional fees for statutory certifications and other professional services will be determined
separately by the management, in consultation with the Secretarial Auditor and will be subject to
approval by the Board of Directors and/or the Audit Committee.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel and/ or their relatives in any way, financially or
otherwise, is interested or deemed to be interested in the proposed resolution.

The Board recommends passing of the Resolution as set out under Item No. 4 of the Notice for
approval by the Members of the Company as an Ordinary Resolution.

Regd. Office: By order of the Board
Regd. Off: Ideal Plaza, 11/1, Sarat Bose Road, For Deeplok Financial Services Limited
South Block, S207 & 209, 2nd Floor, /]

Kolkata- 700 020.

Tel: 033 2283 7495/96, Tj
Or (/\/\ouvd

email: deeplokfinancial@egmail.com,
Website: www.deeplokfinancialservices.com (S dra Kumar Bachhawat)

Date:12.08.2025 Managing Director
DIN: 00129471




Details of Directors seeking appointment/reappointment at the Annual General Meeting pursuant
to Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 and Clause 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standard on General Meeting (SS-2) as amended.

Name of the Director

Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat

role and the manner in which the
proposed persons meet such
requirement

Category Director

DIN 00129820

Date of Birth / Age 15.03.1961 / 66 yrs

Nationality Indian

Date of Appointment 09.07.1989

Qualifications B.Com.

Experience and Expertise / skill More than 40 years of experience in Business and Finance
and capability required for the Management

Terms & condition of
Appointment /re-appointment

In terms of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat, who
retires by rotation, is proposed to be re-appointed as a Director
of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.

Details of remuneration sought to
be paid and remuneration last
drawn

Mr. Mahendru Kumaur Bachhawal was paid NIL remuncration
for the FY 2024-25.

Mr. Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat would not be availing any
remuneration for the FY 2025-26

Number of Meetings of the Board
attended during the year

8

Dircctorships held in other Indian | 1. DAULAT FINANCIAL SCRVICES VT LTD
unlisted Companies 2. BHABATARINI GRIHA NIRMAN PRIVATE LIMITED
3. VINAYAK DEALER PVT LTD
4. DEEPLOK SECURITIES LIMITED
5.J B LEASING PRIVATE LIMITED
6. PROPKAR ENCLAVE PRIVATE LIMITED
7. WOODSIDE FASHIONS LIMITED
8. DEEPLOK BUILDERS PVT LTD
9. RSM BUILDERS & SECURITIES PRIVATE LIMITED
List of Directorships in other NIL
Listed Companies
Chairmanship/ membership in 1. Woodside Fashions Limited — Corporate Social
Committees of Board of Directors | Responsibility Committee — Member
of other Indian Public Companies
2. Deeplok Securities Limited — Corporate Social

Responsibility Committee — Member

Chairmanship/ membership of
Committees of the Company

1. Audit Committee — Member

2. Nomination & Remuneration Committee — Member

3. Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee — Member

4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee — Member




Number of shares held by him in 72,284
the Company (Self)

NIL
As Beneficial Owner

Relationship with any Director(s) | Mr. Surendra Kumar Bachhawat and Mr. Mahendra Kumar
and KMPs of the Company Bachhawat are brothers. Ms. Sarla Baid is the sister of Mr,
Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat. Mr. Prakash Bachhawat is the
nephew of Mr. Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat.

Resignation from the

Directorship of the listed Nil
companies in the past three years
In case of independent directors, Not Applicable

the skills and capabilities required
for the role and the manner in
which the proposed person meets
such requirements

Regd. Office: By order of the Board
Regd. Off: Ideal Plaza, 11/1, Sarat Bose Road, For Deeplok Financial Services Limited
South Block, S207 & 209, 2nd Floor, i j
Kolkata- 700 020.

Tel: 033 2283 7495/96,
email: deeplokfinancial@gmail.com, (Surendra Kumar Bachhawat)
Website: www.deeplokfinancialservices.com Managing Director
Date:12.08.2025 DIN: 00129471




DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469

DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Your Directors hereby present the 45™ Annual Report and Audited Financial Statement for the year
ended 31 March 2025.

Financial summary or highlights/Performance of the Company

Rs. In lakhs
Financial Result Year Ended Year Ended
31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Revenue from operations 910.96 710.67
Other Income 71.03 171.78
Total Revenue 981.99 882.46
Total Expense 501.94 78.73
Exceptional Items 400.57 0.00
Profit /(Loss) Before Tax 880.62 803.72
Tax Expenses 178.09 161.95
Profit /(Loss) After Tax 702.53 641.78
Other Comprehensive Income (147.99) 264.11
Tatal Comprehensive Income 554.53 905.89
EPS (Rs.) Basic 73.75 67.37

Diluted 73.75 67.37
Faquity Capital a5.26 95.26
General Reserve 358.96 288.71
Retained Farnings 7491.33 6999.56

Brief description of the Company’s working during the vear/State of Company’s affair
The Company is mainly engaged in investment in shares and securities and is registered with Reserve

of India as non-banking financial Company (NBFC) under the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Your
Company reported a profit of Rs. 702.53 lakhs vis-a-vis profit of Rs. 641.78 lakhs in the previous year.
Total revenue increased from Rs. 882.46 lakhs in previous year to Rs. 981.99 lakhs in the current year.

Dividend
In order to conserve the resources, the directors’ do not propose to declare any dividend for the year
under report. The Company has accumulated reserves of Rs. 10527.56 lakhs as on date.

Transfer to Reserves
The Company has transferred Rs. 140.51 Lakhs to Special Reserve and Rs. 70.25 Lakhs to General
Reserve out of the total profits earned during the year.

Change in the nature of business. if any
There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company.

Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future

There are no such pending matters.

Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the company
which have occurred between the end of the financial vear of the companv to which the
financial statements relate and the date of the report




There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
occurring between March 31, 2025 and the date of this Report of the Directors.

Subsidiary / Joint Ventures / Associates
The details of the Subsidiary/ Joint Venture/ Associate companies are annexed as Annexure — I of the

report.

Internal Financial Control

The Company has in place an established internal control system designed to ensure proper recording
of financial and operational information and compliance of various internal controls and other
regulatory and statutory compliances.

Share Capital
The paid-up Equity Share Capital as on March 31, 2025 was Rs. 95,25,950/-. During the year under

review, your Company has not issued any shares or any convertible instruments.

Risk Management

The Board members were informed about risk assessment and minimization procedures after which
the Board formally adopted steps for framing, implementing and monitoring the risk management
plan for the company.

Board of Directors
The Board of Directors of your Company comprised of the following Directors as on date:

1. Mr. Surendra Kumar Bachhawat - Managing Director

2. Mr. Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat - Director

3. Mr. Prakash Bachhawat — Director

4. Mr. Hemraj Kathotia — Independent Director (Retired w.e.f. 30.03.2025)
5. Mr. Kamal Singh Jain — Chairman and Independent Director

6. Mrs. Sarla Baid — Director

7. Mr. Anil Kochar - Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f. 30.03.2025)

Mr. Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat (DIN — 00129820) is liable to retire by rotation and, being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Mr. Anil Kochar has been appointed as an independent director w.e.f. 30.03.2025 for five year and his
appointment has already been confirmed by the members of the Company vide Postal Ballot on
24.06.2025.

Mr. Hemraj Kathotia retired from the Independent Directorship of the Company post completion of
his tenure of 10 years on 30.03.2025. The Board took on record its deep sense of appreciation for the
services rendered by him during the tenure of his directorship.

Keyv Managerial Personnel
The following persons are the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company in compliance with
the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013:

a) Mr. Surendra Kumar Bachhawat - Managing Director
b) Mr. Pradip Kumar Bera - Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
¢) Ms. Rajni Mishra-Company Secretary & Compliance Officer.

There is no change in any key managerial personnel of the Company during the financial year.

Audit Committee
The composition of the Audit Committee is as follows:

1. Mr. Kamal Singh Jain -Independent Director (Chairman)




2. Mr. Hemraj Kathotia, Independent Director (Chairman)-Retired w.e.f. 30.03.2025
2. Mr. Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat — Director
3. Mr. Anil Kochar -Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f.30.03.2025)

Nomination & Remuneration Committee
The composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee is as follows:

Mr. Anil Kochar -Independent Director (Chairman), Appointed w.e.f. 30.03.2025
Mr. Kamal Singh Jain -Independent Director
Mr. Hemraj Kathotia, Independent Director (Chairman)-Retired w.e.f. 30.03.2025
Mr. Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat — Director

B =

The Company's Remuneration Policy is available on the Company's
www.deeplokfinancialservices.com.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee
The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee as follows:

1. Mr. Kamal Singh Jain -Independent Director (Chairman)

2. Mr. Hemraj Kathotia, Independent Director (Chairman)-Retired w.e.f. 30.03.2025
2. Mr. Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat — Director

3. Mr. Anil Kochar -Independent Director (Appointed w.e.f.30.03.2025)

Meetings of Board and Committees:

Board Meetings

website

During the financial year 2024-2025, the Board met 8 times on 29.05.2024, 15.06.2024, 13.08.2024,

12.11.2024, 04.12.2024, 03.01.2025, 07.02.2025 and 28.03.2025.

The attendance of Directors in the aforesaid meetings are as follows: -

Name of 29.05.2024 | 15.06.2024 | 13.08.2024] 12.11.2024 | 04.12.2024 | 03.01.2025 | 07.02.2025
the Director

28.03.2025

Surendra Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Kumar
Bachhawat

Yes

Mahendra Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Kumar
Bachhawat

Yes

Hemraj Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Kathotia

Yes

Prakash Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Bachhawat

Yes

Kamal Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Singh Jain

Yes

Sarla Baid Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Yes

Anil % = - - - - -
Kochar*

* Inducted on 30.03.2025.

Audit Committee Meetings

During the financial year 2024-2025, the Committee met 4 times on 29.05.2024, 13.08.2024,

12.11.2024 and 07.02.2025.

The attendance of Members in the aforesaid meetings are as follows: -




Name of the Committee 29.05.2024 13.08.2024 12.11.2024 07.02.2025
Members

Hemraj Kathotia (Retire w.e.f Yes Yes Yes Yes
30.03.2025)

Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat Yes Yes Yes Yes
Kamal Singh Jain Yes Yes Yes Yes
Anil Kochar* - - - -

* Inducted on 30.03.2025.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

During the financial year 2024-2025, the Committee met 3 times on 29.05.2024, 13.08.2024 and

28.03.2025

The attendance of Members in the aforesaid meetings are as follows: -

Name of the Committee Members 29.05.2024 13.08.2024 28.03.2025
Hemraj Kathotia Yes Yes Yes
(Retired w.e.£30.03.2025)

Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat Yes Yes Yes
Kamal Singh Jain Yes Yes Yes

Anil Kochar*

* Inducted on 30.03.2025.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

During the financial year 2024-2025, the Committee met once in the year on 07.02.2025.

The attendance of Members in the aforesaid meetings are as follows: -

Name of the Committee Members 07.02.2025
Hemraj Kathotia (Retire w.e.f 30.03.2025) Yes
Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat Yes
Karmal Singh Jain Yes
Anil Kochar* =
* Inducted on 30.03.2025.,

CSR Committee Meetings

During the financial year 2024-2025, the Committee met 2 times on 04.12.2024 and 07.02.2025

The attendance of Members in the aforesaid meetings are as follows: -

Name of the Committee Members

04.12.2024

07.02.2025

Hemraj Kathotia (Retire w.e.f 30.03.2025)

Yes

Yes




Surendra Kumar Bachhawat Yes Yes

Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat Yes Yes

Kamal Singh Jain* - -

* Inducted on 30.03.2025.

Declaration by Independent Directors

All Independent Directors of your Company have given declarations that they meet the criteria of
independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board also hereby
confirms that in its opinion, the Independent Directors of the Company fulfill the conditions / criteria
specified under the Act and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, as amended, and also are independent
of the management. The Independent Directors have also registered themselves in the databank with
the Institute of Corporate Affairs of India as per Rule 6(1) of the Companies (Appointment and
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014. The declaration was placed and noted by the Board in its
meeting held on 29.05.2024. The independent directors meeting in term of Schedule IV to the
Companies Act, 2013 was held on 31.12.2024.

In the opinion of the Board, all Independent Directors possess requisite qualifications, experience,
expertise and hold high standards of integrity required to discharge their duties with an objective
independent judgment and without any external influence.

Annual Evaluation of Boards Performance

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board
committees, and individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from all the directors
on the basis of criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of Board processes,
information and functioning, etc. Whereas, the performance of the committees was evaluated by the
Board after seeking inputs from the committee members on the basis of criteria such as the
composition of committees, effectiveness of committee meetings, etc.

In a separate meeting of independent directors, performance of non-independent directors, the Board
as a whole and Chairman of the Company was evaluated, taking into account the views of executive
directors and non-executive directors.

At the Board meeting that followed the meeting of the independent directors and meeting of
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the performance of the Board, its committees, and
individual directors was also discussed. Performance evaluation of independent directors was done by
the entire Board, excluding the independent directors being evaluated.

Remuneration Policy

Nomination and Remuneration Committee has formulated the Nomination, Remuneration and
Evaluation Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) and other employees in terms of
the provisions of Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. The said policy which has been
approved by the Board outlines the appointment criteria and qualifications, the term/ tenure of the
Directors on the Board of Company and the matters related to remuneration of the Directors. The
policy is available at Company’s website at www.deeplokfinancialservices.com




Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has in place a vigil mechanism/whistle blower Policy details of which are available on
the Company's website www.deeplokfinancialservices.com

Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties:

All transactions entered into with related parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 during
the financial year were in the ordinary course of Business and on arm’s length basis. Declaration
for Related Party Transactions in terms of Form AOC-2 is enclosed and marked as Annexure —

II.

Loans, guarantees and investments

The particulars of loans guarantees and investments made in securities under section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 has
been provided in the financial statements of the Company.

Disclosure under Section 197 (12) and Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2016

Information in accordance with the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2016
is given in Annexure - III forming part of the Directors’ Report.

Annual Return

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Proviso under Rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended, the Annual Return is available
on the Company's website at www.deeplokfinancialservices.com and may be accessed through the web-
link at https://deeplokfinancialservices.com/investor-relation-2

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
Your Company does not have any activity relating to Conservation of Energy and Technology

Absorption and also there has been no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo during the financial
year under review.

Directors' Responsibility Statement
Pursuant to Section 134(3) (c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Directors of

your Company confirm that: -

(1) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;
(i) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made

Jjudgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of
the Company for that period;

(iii)  The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

@iv) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

) The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

(vi) The Directors has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Deposits
The Company is a non-deposit taking Non-Banking Finance Company, registered with the Reserve

Bank of India (RBI). Accordingly, your Company has not accepted any deposits from the
public/members during the year or earlier years and as such there are no outstanding deposits within
the meaning of the provisions of the Non-Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of Public




Deposits (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and the provisions of Section 73 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules 2014.

Listing
The Equity Shares of the Company continues to be listed with Calcutta Stock Exchange and the
annual listing fees has been paid upto the Financial Year 2025-2026.

Corporate Governance

The provisions of Corporate Governance has become applicable to the Company during the year
under report. The Corporate Governance Report giving the details as required in terms of Regulation
34(3) read with clause C of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is given separately as Annexure — IV and forms part of this Report
of the Directors

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

The provisions of Sections 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to Corporate Social
Responsibility are applicable to the Company. The details of the CSR activities is enclosed and
marked as Annexure-V.

Audit and Auditors

M/s. J. B. S. & Company, Chartered Accountants (ICAI Firm Registration No. 323734E) have been
re-appointed as statutory auditors of the Company subject to approval of the shareholders of the
Company at the ensuing AGM in terms of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read
with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, for a further period of 5 (five)
years from the conclusion of the 45" AGM till the conclusion of 50" AGM of the Company to be
held in 2030.

The Auditor's Report on the financial statements for the financial year 2024-2025 does not contain
any modified opinion or adverse remarks.

Secretarial Audit & Observations:

Secretarial Audit was conducted during the year by Mr. Asit Kumar Labh, Practicing Company
Sooretury (ACS 32801, CP Mo. 11661) in acoordance with the provisions of Scction 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Secretarial Auditor’s Report is altached as Annexure — VI and forms part
of this Report of the Directors and does not contain any observation / adverse remark.

Complying with the provisions of SEBI rcgulations and the provisions of Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Asit Kumar Labh, Practicing Company Secretary (ACS-32891, CP No. —
14664) has been appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a consecutive period of 5(five)
financial years, i.e., 2025-2026 to 2029-2030 on the terms and conditions as enumerated vide the
resolution proposed for his appointment in the Notice of AGM.

Internal Audit & Controls

In terms of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, M/s. Shyamsukha Associates, Chartered Accountants was the Internal Auditor for the
Company during the financial year.

Internal Auditors’ findings are discussed and suitable corrective actions are taken as per the directions
of Audit Committee on an ongoing basis to improve efficiency in operations.

Cost Audit & Cost Records
The provisions for conducting cost audit and / or maintaining cost records as per the Act, does not
apply to your Company during the financial year under report.

Fraud
There were no case of any fraud reported during the financial year under report.




Disclosures under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has in place a policy for prevention of sexual harassment in accordance with the
requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints received
regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are
covered under this policy. No case has been reported under Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 during the financial year 2024-2025.

The following are the summary of the complaints received and disposed of during FY 2024-2025:

Complaints received Complaints disposed Complaints pending as on 31 March,
2025
0 0 0

Secretarial Standards
The Board of Directors hereby affirms that your Company has adhered to the Secretarial Standards as
prescribed by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India during the financial year under report.

Compliance with the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961
The Company is fully compliant with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 including the
applicable amendments.

Other disclosures:
(a) The Company has not entered into any one-time settlement proposal with any Bank or financial

institution during the year.

(b) As per available iufunmation, no application has been flled agalnst the Company under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 nor any proceedings thereunder is pending as on
31.03.2025

(¢c) Company has not received any loan from Directors during the financial year under report.

(d) There is no employee drawing remuneration more than Rs. 1.02 Crore per annum or Rs.8.50
Lakh per month or part of the month during the year under report.

(e) The Company has no outstanding towards any MSME entity as on 31.03.2025.

(f) Agreement that subsists under Clause 5A to para-A of Schedule III to the Listing Regulations:
None.

(g) Particulars of Senior Management including the changes therein since the close of the previous
financial year: None

(h) Details regarding the difference in valuation between a one-time settlement and valuation for
obtaining loans from banks or financial institutions — None

(i) The evaluation of the performance of the directors have been carried in terms of the provisions of
the Act.
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ANNEXURE -1

Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with

Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/ Associate

companies/ Joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

Nil

1. Name of Subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: None

2. Name of Subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: None

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Name of Associate

WOODSIDE FASHIONS LIMITED

Latest Audited Balance Sheet date

31%*March 2025

Shares of Associate held by the company on the
year-end No.

5,39,000

Amount of investment in Associate Company

Rs. 134.75 lacs

Extent of Holding %

23.96 %

Description of how there is significant influence

Due to Shareholding

Reason why the Associate is not consolidated

N.A.

Net worth attributable to shareholding as per recent
audited Balance sheet

Rs.4043.54 lacs

Profit/ Loss for the Year

Rs.1201.25 lacs

Considered in Consolidation

Rs. 287.82 lacs

Not considered in Consolidation

Rs. 913.43 lacs

1. Names of Associates or Joint Ventures which are yet to commence operations: None

2. Names of Associates or Joint Ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: None




Place: Kolkata
Date:27.05.2025
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Suréiiira Kumar Bachhawat
Managing Director
DIN: 00129471
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Company Secretary
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Director
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ANNEXURE — 11

Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain
arm’s length transactions under fourth proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis: NIL. The
Company is a Registered NBFC Company and all the transactions are in ordinarv course of
business at arm’s length

Place: Kolkata a On behalf of the Board of Directors
Date:12.08.2025
aidboss =
Surefidra Kumar Bachhawat Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat
Managing Director Director
DIN: 00129471 DIN: 00129820




DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469

ANNEXURE —II1

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO SECTION 197(12) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT
AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) AMENDMENT RULES, 2016

Name of the Director /| Designation (1) (i)

CEO / CFO / Company

Secretary / Manager Ratio of the remuneration of | Percentage increase in
each director to the median | Remuneration  during
remuneration of the employees | 2024-25
of the Company for the financial
year 2024-25

Mr. Surendra Kumar Managing 12.22:1 NIL

Bachhawat Director

Mr. Mahendra Kumar Director - -

Bachhawat

Mr. Prakash Bachhawat Director - -

Mr. Pradip Kumar Bera CFO 1.32:1 10.69%

Ms. Rajni Mishra CS 0.88:1 R.82%

SI. No. | Description Remarks

ii. the percentage increase in the median remuneration | 4.48%

of employees in the financial year;

iv. the number of permanent employees on the rolls of | 8
company;
v. average percentile increase already made in the | Average Salary increase of non-

salaries of employees other than the managerial | managerial employees — 11.32%
personnel in the last financial year and its
comparison with the percentile increase in the
managerial remuneration and justification thereof
and point out if there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the managerial

Average Salary increase of managerial
employees — 0.89%

remuneration;

vi. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration to managerial personnel referred to above is as per
remuneration policy of the Company.




PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013 READ WITH RULE 5(2) and 5(3) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) AMENDMENT RULES, 2016

It is hereby affirmed that:

(i) No employee was in receipt of remuneration for the year in aggregate of more than Rs. 1.02 Crores (if
employed throughout the financial year);

(i) No employee was in receipt of remuneration for any part of the year at a rate which in aggregate was more
than Rs. 8.5 lacs per month (if employed for a part of the financial year);

(iif) No employee was in receipt of remuneration in excess of that drawn by the Managing Director of Whole-
time Director or Manager nor holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children more than
two percent of the equity shares of the Company.

Top Ten Emplovees in terms of Remuneration drawn for F.Y. 2024-25:

SI. | Name Designation | Remuneration | Nature of Qualification Date of Age Last % of Whether
No. (Rs.) Employmen | and Commenc Emplo . .
t Experience ement of yment equity relative
Employm Held shares of any
b held Director
/
Manager

1 Surendra Managing 30,00,000/- Contractual B.com 22.02.2004 - 9.09 Yes
Kumar Director 66
Bachhawat

2 | Kajesh I axation Permanent M.Com 01.03.2018 - Nil No
Agarwal executive 8,26,325/- 34

3 Debraj Staff Permanent B. Com 18.05.2018 - Nil No
Patra 4,14,581/- 37

4 Pradip CFO Permanent B.Com. / 01.07.2005 - Nil No
Kumar 3,22,900/- 15yrs 62
Bera

5 | Ashok Accounts Permanent B.Com. / 01.04.2000 - Nil No
Gorai Assistant 3,15,000/- 20yrs 58

6 | Kalyan Office Permanent B.Com. 01.07.2012 - Nil No
Sardar Assistant 2,74,852/- 46

7 Rajni Company Permanent C.S. 15.03.2021 - Nil No
Mishra Secretary 2,16,000/- 37

8 | Ajoy Office Permanent H.S. 01.01.2014 - Nil No
Ghosh Assistant 1,98,564/- 60
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ANNEXURE-IV

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
1. Corporate Governance philosophy

At Deeplok Financial Services Limited, a listed Non-Banking Financial Company primarily
focused on corporate deposits and a diversified investment portfolio, our philosophy on corporate
governance is deeply rooted in a steadfast commitment to transparency, accountability, and ethical
conduct. We firmly believe that robust governance isn’t just about regulatory compliance; it’s the
fundamental cornerstone for achieving sustainable growth, earning stakeholder trust, and creating
long-term value. Our governance. framework is meticulously designed to uphold the highest
standards across all our operations and interactions.

We are dedicated to maintaining unwavering integrity and ethical behaviour in every decision,
especially given our crucial role as custodians of corporate deposits and managers of significant
investment capital. This commitment extends to ensuring clear lines of responsibility and
accountability throughout our entire organization, from the Board of Directors right down to every
employee. This structure ensures the prudent management of our deposit liabilities and provides
strategic oversight of our investment portfolio, allowing us to optimize returns while diligently
mitigating risks.

Furthermore, we are committed to providing timely, accurate, and comprehensive disclosure of all
material information to our stakeholders, including our corporate depositors, investors, regulators,
and the broader public. This dedication to transparency fosters an environment of trust and empowers
informed decision-making regarding our financial health and investment strategies. Our Board of
Directors plays a pivotal role, comprising a diverse mix of experienced professionals, including
independent directors, who bring invaluable objectivity and specialized expertise in financial
markets, corporate finance, and risk management. The Board provides independent oversight,
strategic guidance, and effective challenge to management, always safeguarding the interests of all
stakeholders. Ultimately, strict adherence to all applicable laws, regulations, and guidelines
governing NBFCs—particularly those related to deposit-taking activities and investment
management—is paramount, and we continuously monitor regulatory changes to ensure ongoing
compliance. By embedding these principles into the very fabric of our operations, your company
aims to not only meet but exceed the expectations of a well-governed financial institution, thereby
building enduring value for our corporate depositors, shareholders, and the broader market.

llTl\:l%E".k
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2. Board of Directors

a. Profile of Directors

CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469

Mr. Kamal Singh Jain - Chairman & Independent Director

A BCom graduate, he is responsible for overseeing the company's affairs,
accounts, administration and ensuring compliance with relevant regulations. He
is having more than 50 years experience in commercial world.

Mr. Surendra Kumar Bachhawat - Managing Director

An accomplished finance professional and Bachelor of Commerce graduate from
Calcutta University, he brings in-depth expertise across bonds, shares and
securities, and a wide spectrum of financial instruments. He is having more than
45 years of experience in the business world. He is a renowned industrialist with
a dynamic vision of the capital market industry.

Mr. Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat - Director

A Bachelor of Commerce graduate from Calcutta University, he is an expert in
Finance and Brokerage services, known for his strong network and trusted
relationships with leading corporate houses. He is having more than 40 years of
business experience.

Mr. Prakash Bachhawat — Director

He holds an MSc. in International Marketing from King's College, London, and
brings a strong focus on marketing strategy and leadership. A dynamic
communicator and goal-oriented leader, he excels in team management and
effective delegation. He is known for his exceptional interpersonal skills and
highly regarded by clients, vendors and team members alike.

Mrs. Sarla Baid - Director

A female director holding a degree in Business Administration; brings strong
administration expertise to the team. She is also a valued member of our Internal
Complaints Committee.

Mr. Anil Kochar - Independent Director

Postgraduate in Commerce and LLB, he is an eminent advisor on income tax
matters. He is a very renowned and well known persona in the taxation world.

2|Page
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b. Board Composition

Board Composition

W Non-Executive Independent
Directors (2)

Non-Executive Nan-Independent
Directors (3)

# Executive Directors (1)

¢. Board Composition (Gender wise)

Gender wise

MALE FEMALE

m Gender wise
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d. The composition and category of Directors, the number of Directorships and Committee
Chairmanships / Memberships held by them and Directorships held by them in other listed
entities as on March 31, 2025:

Name of Category | Directorshi | Number of Directorship in other listed |Attenda
Director of Director | ps” in other| Committee# Companies (category of nce at
Public Positions held in | directorships) as on March  previou
Companies | Other Public 31, 2025 s AGM
(excluding | Companies on
Deeplok | (excluding 25/09/2
Financial |Deeplok Financial 024
Services Services Limited)
Limited) | Member |Chairm| Name of Category of
an Listed Directorship
Entity
Mr. Kamal Chairman 1 - - - - Yes
Singh Jain &
DIN: Independe
00130693 nt Director
Mr. Surendra  [Promoter & 5 - - - - Yes
Kumar Managing
Bachhawat Director
DIN:
00129471
Mr. Mahendra [Promoter & 2 - - - - Yes
Kumar Non-
Bachhawat Executive
DIN: 00129820 [Prector
Mr. Prakash Promoter & 1 - - - - Yes
Bachhawat Non-
DIN: Executive
05156658 [Pirector
Ms. Sarla Baid |[Non- - - - - No
DIN: Executive
09466531 [Director
Mr. Anil Non- 1 - - - NA
Kochar* Executive
DIN: 00943161 [ndependent
Director

" Directorship of Public Limited Companies and deemed Public Companies only.
# Chairmanship/Membership of Audit Committee & Stakeholders Relationship Committee only
* Mr. Anil Kochar was inducted in the Board as an additional director in independent capacity
w.e.f 30.03.2025. The shareholders of the Company through Postal Ballot concluded on
24.06.2025 has regularized his appointment as the Independent Director of the Company w.e.f.
30.03.2025. Mr. Kochar was appointed in place of Mr. Hemraj Kathotia, who retired from the
office of Independent Director on30.03.2025 post completion of his tenure of 10(Ten) years.
None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committees and Chairman of more
than 5 Committees as specified in Regulation 26 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Independent Directors do not serve in more than 7 listed companies.

4 ™
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The details of Familiarization Programme imparted to Independent Directors can be viewed at
https://deeplokfinancialservices.com/download/policy/familiarization-programme-forindependent-

directors.pdf,

Promoter / Non-Promoter

Non-Promoter

Promoter

0 0.5 1 1.5 2 2.5 3 3.5 4 4.5

DISCLOSURES OF RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN DIRECTORS INTER-SE

Mr. Surendra Kumar Bachhawat and Mr. Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat are brothers. Ms. Sarla Baid
is the sister of Mr. Surendra Kumar Bachhawat and Mr. Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat. Mr. Prakash
Bachhawat is the nephew of Mr. Surendra Kumar Bachhawat and Mr. Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat.

Apart from the relations mentioned hereinabove, there is no inter-se relation among the Directors
of the Company.

SHARES / CONVERTIBLE INSTRUMENTS HELD BY THE NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The numbers of Equity Shares held by Non-Executive Directors as on 31st March, 2025 are as
follows:

Sr. | Name of Non-Executive Directors No. of Shares Held
No.

1. | Mr. Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat 72,284

2. | Mr. Prakash Bachhawat 74,750

3. | Mr. Kamal Singh Jain Nil

4. | Ms. Sarla Baid 8,000

5. | Mr. Anil Kochar 50

None of the Directors holds any convertible instruments of the Company.
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Meetings of the Board

During the year 2024-2025, the Board of Directors met 8(eight) times on the following dates:

29.05.2024,
28.03.2025.

15.06.2024,

13.08.2024,

Attendance and dates of Board Meetings held are as follows:

12.11.2024, 04.12.2024, 03.01.2025, 07.02.2025 and

Name of Attendance at the Meeting

Directors 29.05.24 |15.06.24 13.08.24 | 12.11.24 |04.12.24(03.01.25|07.02.25|28.03.25
Mr. Surendra Present |Present | Present | Present |Present | Present | Present | Present
Kumar Bachhawat
Mr. Mahendra Present | Present | Present | Present | Present | Present | Present | Present
Kumar Bachhawat
Mr. Prakash Present |Present | Present | Present |Present | Present | Present | Present
Bachhawat
Mr. Hemraj Present |Present | Present | Present |Present | Present | Present | Present
Kathotia*
Mr. Kamal Singh | Present |Present | Present | Present |Present | Present | Present | Present
Jain
Ms. Sarla Baid Present | Present | Present | Present |Present | Present | Present | Present
Mr. Anil Kochar** - - - - - - - -

*

tenure.

Mr. Hemraj Kathotia ceased to be the Director of the Company w.e.f. 30.03.2025 due to end of

** Mr. Anil Kochar was inducted in the Board as an additional director in an independent capacity
w.ef 30.03.2025. The shareholders of the Company through Postal Ballot concluded on
24.06.2025 has regularized his appointment as the Independent Director of the Company w.e.f.

30.03.2025.

Information about the Directors seeking re-appointment
Mr. Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat (DIN: 00129820) is retiring by rotation and being eligible offers
himself for reappointment. Details of the Directors to be appointed / reappointed have been provided
in the Notice of the 45" AGM of the Company.

Matrix highlighting core skills/expertise/competencies of the Board of Directors:
The Board of Directors have identified the following skills required for the Company and the
availability of such skills with the Board:

Skills and its | Surendra | Mahendra | Prakash Sarla | Kamal | Anil

description Kumar Kumar Bachhawat | Baid | Singh | Kochar
Bachhawat | Bachhawat Jain

Knowledge on  the v v v v v v

Company’s  business,

policies, strengths &

weaknesses, major

threats and

opportunities, and

knowledge of the
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Industry

Financial  Skills and v v v v v v
management of the
finance function of a
company

Technical / Professional v v v v v v
skills and specialized
knowledge in relation to
Company’s business

Experience in v v v v v v
developing and
implementing good

corporate governance
practices, maintaining
board and management

accountability, and
managing stakeholders’
interests

The Company has received declarations on the criteria of Independence as prescribed in Section
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Regulation 16(1)(b) from all the Independent Directors of
the Company as on 31st March, 2025. They have also registered themselves in the databank with
the Institute of Corporate Affairs of India as an Independent Director as per Rule 6(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014.

Based on the declarations received from the Independent Directors, the Board confirms that the
Independent Directors fulfil the conditions specified in Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013
and as mentioned under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and that they
are Independent of the Management.

The Independent Directors of the Company have held a separate meeting on 3 1st December, 2024,
without presence of Non-Independent Directors and the Management. The Meeting was attended
by all the Independent Directors of the Company.

During the Financial Year 2024-25, none of the Independent Directors have resigned before the
expiry of his/her tenure.

Audit Committee

Audit Committee of the Board of Directors consists of 3 (three) Directors namely, Mr. Kamal Singh
Jain, Chairman & Non-Executive Independent Director, Mr. Anil Kochar, Non-Executive
Independent Director and Mr. Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat, Non-Executive Director. All the
members of the Audit Committee possess financial/accounting expertise/exposure. The
composition, quorum, powers, role and scope are in accordance with Section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder and the provisions of Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
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The Audit Committee acts as a link between the Internal and Statutory Auditors and the Board of
Directors. Mr. Kamal Singh Jain, Chairman & Non-Executive Independent Director is the
Chairperson of the Audit Committee. The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary
of the Committee. The erstwhile Chairperson of the Committee, Mr. Hemraj Kathotia was not
present at the last AGM of the Company. Mr. Kamal Singh Jain, member of the Audit Committee
was duly authorized by him to address shareholders’ queries, if any, at the Annual General Meeting.

Terms of Reference-

oversight of the listed entity’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial

information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the
listed entity;

approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory

auditors;

reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon

before submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:

(a) matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be included in
the board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies
Act, 2013;

(b) changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

(c) major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management;

(d) significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;
(e) compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;
(f) disclosure of any related party transactions;
(g) modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;
reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the
board for approval;
reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised
through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of
funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus /
notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of
proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the board
to take up steps in this matter;

reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of

audit process;

approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the listed entity with related parties;

scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

valuation of undertakings or assets of the listed entity, wherever it is necessary;

evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of

the internal control systems;

reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal

audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting

structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;
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e reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where
there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material
nature and reporting the matter to the board;

e discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of
audit as well as post audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

e to look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

e to review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

e approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications,
experience and background, etc. of the candidate;

e Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit
committee.

e reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company
in the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary,
whichever is lower including existing loans / advances / investments existing as on the date of
coming into force of this provision.

e Consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger,
demerger, amalgamation etc., on the listed entity and its shareholders.

e Reviewing the following information:

(1) management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;
(2) statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee),
submitted by management;
(3) management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;
(4) internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and
(5) the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be
subject to review by the audit committee.
(6) statement of deviations:
(a) quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable,
submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1).
(b) annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer
document / prospectus / notice in terms of Regulation 32(7).

Attendance and dates of Audit Committee meetings held are as follows:

Name of Directors Attendance at the Meeting
29.05.2024 13.08.2024 12.11.2024 | 07.02.2025
Mr. Hemraj Kathotia** Present Present Present Present
Mr. Mahendra Kumar Present Present Present Present
Bachhawat
Mr. Kamal Singh Jain Present Present Present Present
Mr. Anil Kochar* - - - -

**Mr. Hemraj Kathotia ceased to be Director w.e.f. 30.03.2025 due to completion of his tenure.
*Mr. Anil Kochar was inducted in the committee w.e.f. 30.03.2025

. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors consists of 3 (three) Directors
namely, Mr. Kamal Singh Jain, Chairman & Non-Executive Independent Director, Mr. Anil Kochar,
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Non-Executive Independent Director and Mr. Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat, Non-Executive
Director. Mr. Anil Kochar, Non-Executive Independent Director is the Chairperson of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Committee’s constitution and terms of reference are
in compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder and
Regulation 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
The erstwhile Chairperson of the Committee, Mr. Hemraj Kathotia was not present at the last AGM
of the Company. Mr. Kamal Singh Jain, member of the Audit Committee was duly authorized by
him to address shareholders’ queries, if any, at the Annual General Meeting.

Terms of Reference-
o formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and

independence of a director and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to, the
remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

e formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent director and the board
of directors;

e devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;

» identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in
senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the board
of directors their appointment and removal.

e whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the
basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors.

e recommending to the Board, the remuneration of Managing and Whole-time Directors,
including their annual increment and commission after reviewing their performance;

e recommend to the Board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to Senior
Management;

¢ identify Independent Directors to be inducted into the Board from time to time and take steps
to refresh the composition of the Board from time to time;

e such other matters as may be specified by the Board from time to time;

Attendance and date of Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting held are as follows:

Name of Directors Attendance at the Meeting

29.05.2024 13.08.2024 28.03.2025
Mr. Hemraj Kathotia** Present Present Present
Mr. Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat Present Present Present
Mr. Kamal Singh Jain Present Present Present
Mr. Anil Kochar* - -

**Mr. Hemraj Kathotia ceased to be Director w.e.f. 30.03.2025 due to completion of his tenure.

*Mr. Anil Kochar was inducted in the committee w.e.f. 30.03.2025

Remuneration to Directors and Disclosures:

Remuneration of Directors for the financial year ended 31% March, 2025 and their shareholding in

the Company:
Name of Directors Sitting Salaries and Total Service No. of
Fees Perquisites Contract / Shares
(Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) Notice Period held
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Mr. Surendra Kumar - 30,00,000 | 30,00,000 | 30.09.2024 to 86,632
Bachhawat 29.09.2029

30 days
Mr. Mahendra Kumar - = = = 72,284
Bachhawat
Mr. Hemraj Kathotia - - = = -
Mr. Prakash Bachhawat - 3 = = 74,750
Mr. Kamal Singh Jain - - . < .
Ms. Sarla Baid - - = = -
Mr. Anil Kochar - . . - -

The sitting fee is voluntarily waived by all the directors of the Company during the financial year.
Currently, the Company does not have any stock option scheme.

Remuneration policy of the Company is based on the need to attract the best available talent and is
in line with the industry. No Sitting Fees is paid to the Non-Executive Directors for attending Board,
Committee Meetings and any other Meetings. The Company does not pay
remuneration/commission to any Non-Executive Directors, including Non-Executive Independent
Directors.

The total remuneration paid to the Executive Directors, who are promoters or members of the
promoter group, during the period is in accordance with the criteria as prescribed under Regulation
17 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, as amended.

No Non-Executive Director has been paid in excess of fifty percent of the total amount paid to all
the Non-Executive Directors of the Company.

The Policy on Nomination, Remuneration and Performance Evaluation of Directors as framed by
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company can be viewed at https://deeplokfinancialservices.com/download/policy/nomination-

remuneration-nolicv.pdf.

Performance Evaluation:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable provisions of the Listing
Regulations, the Annual Performance Evaluation was carried out for the Financial Year 2024-25
by the Board in respect of its own performance, the Directors individually as well as the evaluation
of the working of its Audit, Nomination and Remuneration, Stakeholders’ Relationship. A
structured questionnaire covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy of
the composition of the Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of
specific duties, obligations and governance was prepared. The Performance evaluation of the Non-
Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors. The Directors expressed their
satisfaction with the evaluation process.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board consists of 3 (three) Directors namely, Mr.
Kamal Singh Jain, Chairman & Non-Executive Independent Director, Mr. Anil Kochar, Non-
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Executive Independent Director and Mr. Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat, Non-Executive Director.
Mr. Kamal Singh Jain, Chairman & Non-Executive Independent Director is the Chairperson of the
Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The Committee’s constitution and terms of reference are in
compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder and
Regulation 20 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
The erstwhile Chairperson of the Committee, Mr. Hemraj Kathotia was not present at the last AGM
of the Company. Mr. Kamal Singh Jain, member of the Audit Committee was duly authorized by
him to address shareholders’ queries, if any, at the Annual General Meeting. Ms. Rajni Mishra,
Company Secretary functions as the Secretary to this Committee and as the Compliance Officer of
the Company.

Terms of Reference-

The terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee (SRC) covers the areas
mentioned in Section 178(5) of the Act and Regulation 20 read with Part D (B) of Schedule II to
the Listing Regulations. The terms of reference of the SRC, inter-alia are as follows:

¢ Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints related
to transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared
dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.
e Approve issue of duplicate share certificates either at meetings or through circular resolution.
e Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders.
e Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various
services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.
¢ Frame guidelines for waiver of documents/ requirements prescribed in cases of:
a) Transmission of shares
b) Issue of duplicate share certificates
¢) Recording of updation of signatures by shareholders
e Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum
of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/
statutory notices by the shareholders of the company.

Attendance and date of Stakeholders Relationship Committee meeting held is as follows:

Attendance at the Meeting
Name of Directors 07.02.2025
Mr. Hemraj Kathotia** Present
Mr. Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat Present
Mr. Kamal Singh Jain Present
Mr. Anil Kochar* -

**Mr. Hemraj Kathotia ceased to be Director w.e.f. 30.03.2025 post completion of his tenure.
*Mr. Anil Kochar was inducted in the committee w.e.f. 30.03.2025
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During the year 2024-2025, the Company has received NIL complaints from the Shareholders. The
status of Investor Complaints with the regulatory authorities is as follows:

Sr.  [[nvestor Complaints Number
No.

1. [Investor Complaints received during the year Nil

2. [nvestor Complaints resolved till 315 March 2025 Nil

3. [[nvestor Complaints not solved to the satisfaction of the members Nil

4. Complaints pending as at 31 March, 2025 Nil

6. Risk Management Committee

The provisions of constituting Risk Management Committee are not applicable to the Company.

7. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (“CSR Committee™) is constituted in compliance
with Section 135 of the Act. CSR Committee consists of 3 (three) Directors namely, Mr. Kamal
Singh Jain, Chairman & Non-Executive Independent Director, Mr. Surendra Kumar Bachhawat,
Managing Director and Mr. Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat, Non-Executive Director. Mr. Kamal
Singh Jain, Chairman & Non-Executive Independent Director is the Chairperson of the CSR
Committee. During the financial year ended 31st March, 2025, two CSR committee meeting was
held on 31st March, 2025. The CSR Committee recommends to the Board the CSR activities to be
undertaken during the year and the amounts to be spent on these activities and monitor its progress.
The Annual Report on CSR activities forms an integral part of this Annual Report.

Attendance and date of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee meeting held are as follows:

Name of Directors - Attendance at the Meeting
04.12.2024 07.02.2025
Mr. Hemraj Kathotia** Present Present
Mr. Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat Present Present
Mr. Surendra Kumar Bachhawat Present Present
Mr. Kamal Singh Jain* - -

** Mpr. Hemraj Kathotia ceased to be Director w.e.f. 30.03.2025 post completion of his tenure.
*  Mr. Kamal Singh Jain was inducted in the committee w.e.f. 30.03.2025

8. Particulars of Senior Management Personnel

Name of Senior Designation Changes during the financial year
Management Appointment Cessation
Personnel
Ms. Rajni Mishra Company Secretary -
Mr. Pradip Kumar Chief Financial Officer
Bera

9. General Body Meetings:

a) Location, Deemed Venue, Dates and time of last three Annual General Meetings (AGM) held:
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Year Kind of Venue Date Time No. of special
Meeting resolutions
passed
April 2023-  |44th Deeplok Financial Services 25" September,  [11:30 a.m. [**

March 2024  |Annual Limited, Ideal Plaza, 11/1, 2024
General Sarat Bose Road, South
Meeting Block, S 207 & 209,
Kolkata — 700020

April 2022-  ¥43rd Deeplok Financial Services 25" September,  [11:30 a.m. -
March 2023  |Annual Limited, Ideal Plaza, 11/1, 2023
General Sarat Bose Road, South
Meeting Block, S 207 & 209,
Kolkata — 700020

April 2021-  42nd Deeplok Financial Services 21 September,  [11:30 a.m. 1*
March 2022  |Annual Limited, Ideal Plaza, 11/1, 2022
General Sarat Bose Road, South

Meeting Block, S 207 & 209,
Kolkata — 700020

**Re-appointment of Mr. Surendra Kumar Bachhawat (DIN: 00129471) as Managing Director
of the Company for a period of 5 years with effect from 30.09.2024

*Appointment of Mr. Kamal Singh Jain (DIN: 00130693) as Non-Executive Independent Director
of the Company for a period of 5 years with effect from 20.06.2022.

#AIl the annual general meetings were held through VC/OAVM

b) No Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the shareholders was held during the year.

c) Whether any special resolution passed through postal ballot in the previous year: During
the Financial Year 2024-25, no special resolution was passed through Postal Ballot.

Whether any special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot: Yes.
The Board of Directors based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee at their meeting held on 9th May, 2025 recommended the following special
resolution to be passed through postal ballot:

e Appointment of Mr. Anil Kochar (DIN: 00943161) as an Independent Director

The e-voting period commenced on 26th May, 2025 and ended on 24th June, 2025 and the said
resolutions were passed by the shareholders through postal ballot by requisite majority on 24th
June, 2025.

Person who conducted the Postal Ballot Exercise

The Board of Directors of the Company had appointed Mr. Atul Kumar Labh, Practicing
Company Secretary (Membership No. 4848, CP No. 3238) of M/s. A. K. Labh & Co., Company
Secretaries as the Scrutinizer for conducting the Postal Ballot process through e-voting, fairly

and transparently.

The summary of the voting results is given below:
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Special Resolution passed through | Votes in favour of | Votes against | Result
postal ballot the resolution (% of | the resolution
total number of | (% of total
valid votes) number of valid
votes)
Appointment of Mr. Anil Kochar | 100 0 Passed with
(DIN: 00943161) as an Independent Requisite
Director Majority on
24th  June,
2025.

Procedure for postal ballot:

In compliance with the provisions of Sections 108 and 110 and other applicable provisions of
the Act, Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and the applicable MCA Circulars,
Members can vote only through the remote e-voting. Accordingly, the Company provided
remote e-voting facility to all its members to cast their votes electronically and engaged the
services of CDSL for facilitating the e-voting process.

In terms of the applicable MCA Circulars, the Company sent the Postal Ballot Notices in
electronic form only to its registered sharcholders whosc c-mail IDs werc registcred/available
with the Depository Participants (DPs)/Registrars and Share Transfer Agents (RTAs) as on the
cut-off date. Voting rights were reckoned on the paid-up value of the shares registered in the
names of the Members as on the cutoff date. Members desiring to exercise their votes by
electronic mode were requested to vote before close of business hours on the last date of e-
Voting. The scrutinizer, after the completion of scrutiny, submitted his report.

The consolidated results of the voting by postal ballot and e-Voting were then announced and
the results were also displayed at the Registered Office of the Company and on the Company’s
website besides being communicated to Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited and CDSL.

10. Means of Communication
Half-yearly report to shareholders, Quarterly Results, Newspaper in which published, Website
etc.
The Quarterly, Half-yearly and Annual Results are generally published by the Company in English
Newspaper in Business Standard and in Vernacular Newspaper in Arthik Lipi dailies. Official news
releases/ notices etc., the Quarterly and Annual Results are sent to the Calcutta Stock Exchange
Limited, where shares of the Company are listed, immediately on approval from the Board of
Directors and are also posted on the Company's website i.e. https://deeplokfinancialservices.com.
Annual Report containing Notice of the Annual General Meeting, Annual Audited Financial
Statement, Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report along with the Disclosure and reports required to
form part of the Annual Report is circulated to the Members and those entitled thereto. The Annual
Report is displayed on the Company’s website https://deeplokfinancialservices.com. During the year
under review, there were neither any such requirements to display any official news release nor
presentations are made to institutional investors or to the analysts.

11. General Shareholder Information

Annual General Meeting
Date and Time Monday, 22nd September, 2025 at 11:30 a.m.
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(Meeting will be held through VC/OAVM)

Deemed Venue Deeplok Financial Services Limited, Ideal Plaza, 11/1,
Sarat Bose Road, South Block, S 207 & 209, 2" floor.
Kolkata — 700020

Financial Year : 1% April, 2025 to 31 March, 2026

Adoption on or before
(Tentative)
Unaudited Results for 1% quarter ending 30" June, 2025 Held on 12th August, 2025
Unaudited Results for 2™ quarter ending 30" September,

Adoption of Quarterly / Annual Result

14th November, 2025

2025
dited Resul . i N
Unaudited Results for 3™ quarter ending 31 December, 14th February, 2026
2025
Audited Results for the Year ending 315 March, 2026 30th May, 2026
] : ! E
\Annual General Meeting for the year ending 3 1% March, August / September, 2026
2026
Dividend payvment date: No dividend is recommended for payment

Listing on Stock Exchange and Stock Code
Equity Shares of the Company are listed at The Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd

7, Lyons Range,
Kolkata — 700001
(Scrip Code 14063)

Listing Fees for the financial year 2025-2026 has been paid to the Calcutta Stock Exchange Ltd.

Registrar and Transfer Agent (‘RTA’):

Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd. is acting as the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the
Company. The address of the Registrar is given hereunder:

Maheshwari Datamatics Pvt. Ltd.

23, R.N. Mukherjee Road, 5th Floor,

Kolkata — 700 001

Ph: 033-2248 2248 / 033-2243 5029

Contact Person: Mr. Ravi Kumar Bahl, Email id: mdpldc@yahoo.com

Share Transfer System
Share transfers, dividend payments and all other investor related activities are attended to and
processed at the Office of the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.

Share Transfer Physical System: As per directives issued by SEBI, it is compulsory to trade in
the Company’s equity shares in dematerialized form. Effective April 1, 2019, transfer of shares in
physical form has ceased. Shareholders who had lodged their request for transfer prior to March 31,
2019 and, have received the same under objection can relodge the transfer request after rectification
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of the documents. Request for transmission of shares and dematerialization of shares will continue
to be accepted.

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity: The process of conversion of shares from physical
form to electronic form is known as dematerialization. For dematerializing the shares, the
Shareholder has to open a demat account with a Depository Participant (DP). The Shareholder is
required to fill in a Demat Request Form and submit the same along with the Share Certificate(s)
to the DP. The DP will allocate a demat request number and shall forward the request physically
and electronically, through NSDL/CDSL to the R&T Agent. On receipt of the demat request, both
physically and electronically and after verification, the Shares are dematerialized, and an electronic
credit of shares is given in the account of the Shareholder.

Further, with effect from 24th January, 2022, SEBI has made it mandatory for Listed Companies
to issue securities in demat mode only while processing any investor service requests viz. issue of
duplicate share certificates, exchange/sub-division/ splitting/consolidation of securities,
transmission/ transposition of securities vide its Circular no.
SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated 25th January, 2022, SEBI has clarified
that Company/ RTAs issues a Letter of Confirmation in lieu of the share certificate while processing
any of the aforesaid investor service request. Hence, all the shareholders are requested to convert
your physical shares into Dematerialized form immediately to avoid any further complications. The
Company is not required to open a “Suspense Escrow Demat Account” in accordance with the SEBI
Circular SEBI/HO/MIRSD/PoD-1/0W/P/2022/64923 dated 30" December, 2022.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-
PoD/P/CIR/2025/97 dated July 2, 2025 ("Circular") has facilitated mechanism for a "Special
Window for Re-lodgement of Transfer Requests of Physical Shares" and accordingly all physical
share transfer deeds lodged for transfer with the Company or its Registrar and Transfer Agent
(RTA) prior to discontinuation of physical mode of transfer, i.e., April 01, 2019 and
rejected/returned by the Company/RTA due to deficiency in the documents and was required to be
re-lodged with requisite documents on or before the cut-off date fixed for re-lodgement of such
transfer deeds, i.e., March 31, 2021; have been provided with an opportunity to re-lodge the same
with the Company/RTA during a special window period of six months from July 07, 2025 till
January 06. 2026. During this period, the securities that are re-lodged for transfer (including those
requests that are pending with the listed company / RTA, as on date) shall be issued only in demat
mode. However, due process shall be followed for such transfer-cum-demat requests. For further
details you may contact the Company Secretary of the Company or the Registrar and Transfer
Agent of the Company. A copy of the Circular is also available on the website of the Company at
www deeplokfinancialservices.com

Compliance Officer

Name: Ms. Rajni Mishra
Designation: Company Secretary and Compliance Officer

Telefax — (033) 2283 7495
E-mail: deeplokfinancial@gmail.com
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Categories of Shareholding as on 315 March, 2025

Category Number of Shares held |% of Total
Shares

Promoter & Promoter Group 7,01,299 73.62

Banks/Mutual Funds - -

Insurance Companies - -
Central / State Government - -
Bodies Corporate 50,300 5.28

[ndividuals 1,33,441 14.00
Trusts 67,555 7.10
Total 9,52,595 100.00

Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity:

Dematerialization

B Demat

E Physical

As on 31* March, 2025, 9,31,920 Equity Shares of the Company of Rs. 10/ each, representing
97.83% of the total paid up Equity Capital of the Company stands dematerialized.

The Company has entered into agreements with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL)
and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) whereby shareholders have an option to
dematerialize their shares with either of the Depositories.

Plant Locations: The Company is mainly engaged in investment in shares and securities, hence
the Company does not have any manufacturing plants.

ISIN for Dematerialization: INE875C01013

Outstanding ADRs/GDRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and
likely impact on equity: - Not Applicable.
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Distribution of Shareholding as on 31° March, 2025

Shareholders Shares
Category Numb 7o of Numb % to Sh
umber | o holders umber o to Shares
1-100 178 76.72 11175 1.17
101-500 30 12.93 7300 0.77
501-1000 1 0.43 650 0.07
1001-5000 1 0.43 2500 0.26
5001-10000 4 1.72 33825 3.55
10001-20000 - - - =
20001-30000 5 2.16 130121 13.66
30001-40000 1 0.43 35100 3.68
40001-50000 5 2.16 226075 23.73
50001-100000 7 3.02 505849 53.10
TOTAL 232 100.00 952595 100.00

Address for correspondence:
Deeplok Financial Services Limited
Ideal Plaza, 11/1, Sarat Bose Road,
South Block, S 207 & 209, 2™ Floor,
Kolkata — 700020
Telephone (033) 2283 7495
Email: deeplokfinancial@gmail.com

12. Disclosures
a. Compliances with Governance Framework
The Company is in compliance with all mandatory requirements under the Listing Regulations.

b. Related party transactions

There were no materially significant transactions with Related Parties during the financial year.
Related party transactions have been disclosed under significant accounting policies and notes
forming part of the Financial Statements in accordance with “IND AS”. As required under
Regulation 23(1) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 the Company has formulated a policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions. The
Policy is available on the website of the Company viz. https:/deeplokfinancialservices.com.
The policy can be viewed at https://deeplokfinancialservices.com/download/policy/policy-on-
materiality-of-related-party-transactions.pdf.

As per disclosures received from Senior Management Personnel, they have not entered into any
material, financial or commercial transactions, which may have a potential conflict with the
interest of the Company at large.

¢. Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, and strictures imposed on the
Company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related
to capital markets, during last three Financial Years.
The Company has complied with all requirements specified under the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as well as other regulations and
guidelines of SEBI. Consequently, there were no strictures or penalties imposed by either SEBI
or Stock Exchanges or any statutory authority for non-compliance of any matter related to the
capital markets during the last three financial years.
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d. Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy

Pursuant to Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Regulation 22 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has
formulated Whistle Blower Policy for vigil mechanism of Directors and employees to report to
the management about the unethical behavior, fraud or violation of Company’s code of conduct.
The mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and
Directors who use such mechanism and makes provision for direct access to the Chairman of
the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. None of the personnel of the Company have been
denied access to the Audit Committee. The Whistle Blower Policy is displayed on the
Company’s website viz. https://deeplokfinancialservices.com. The Vigil Mechanism/Whistle
Blower policy can be viewed at hitps://deeplokfinancialservices.com/download/policy/whistle-
blower-policy-may22.pdf.

e. Disclosure of Accounting Treatment
In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the Accounting
Standards referred to in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The significant accounting
policies which are consistently applied are set out in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

f. List of all credit Ratings- Not Applicable

g. Commodity price risk and Commodity hedging activities
The Company does not have material exposure of any commodity and accordingly, no hedging
activities for the same are carried out. Therefore, there is no disclosure to offer in terms of SEBI
circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2018/0000000141 dated November 15, 2018.

h. Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified
institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A): Not Applicable

A certificate from a Company Secretary in practice that none of the directors on the board
of the company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing
as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such
statutory authority.

The Certificate of Company Secretary in practice is annexed herewith as a part of the report.

Where the board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the board
which is mandatorily required, in the relevant financial year. Not Applicable

k. Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity to the statutory auditor and all entities
in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part.
Details relating to fees paid to the Statutory Auditors are given in Note 22A to the Financial
Statements.

l. Subsidiary
The Company does not have any material subsidiary during the year under review. Web link
where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed can be viewed at
https://deeplokfinancialservices.com/download/policv/policy-for-determining-material-

subsodiarv.pdf.
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m. Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
The details of number of complaints filed and disposed of during the year and pending as on
March 31, 2025 is given in the Directors’ report.

n. The Company has not given any loans/advances to firms/Companies in which Directors are
interested.

o. In compliance to Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the affirmation of compliance of Code of Conduct for the
year 2024-2025 has been received from all the Board Members and Senior Management
Personnel. A declaration to this effect signed by the Managing Director is annexed to this report.

p. There are no pecuniary relationships or transactions with Non-Executive Independent Directors,
other than those disclosed in this report.

q. Pursuant to Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Company undertook secretarial audit and
the secretarial audit reports given by the respective company secretaries in practice forms part
of the Annual Report of the Company.

r. Disclosure of certain types of agreements binding the Company, who are parties to the
agreements specified in clause 5A of para A of part A of schedule III of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015: Nil

s. Disclosure of Non-compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance Report of sub-
paras (2) to (10) of para C of Schedule V of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, with reasons
thereof shall be disclosed: The Company has complied with all the requirements of Corporate
Governance report as stated under sub-paras (2) to (10) of para C of Schedule —V of the SEBI
Listing Regulations.

t. The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements specified in Regulation 17 to
27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015 and examining the implementation of some of the non-mandatory requirements. The
status of the non-mandatory requirements is as follows:

u. Non-mandatory requirements

The Company has duly fulfilled the following discretionary requirements as prescribed in
Regulation 27(1) Part E of Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations as follows:

Non-Executive Chairman’s Office: The position of the Chairman and the Managing Director
are separate. Your Company maintains a separate office for its Chairman. All necessary
infrastructure and assistance are made available to enable him to discharge his responsibilities
effectively.
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Shareholders’ Rights: Since the quarterly and half-yearly financial performance along with
significant events are published in the newspapers and are also posted on your Company’s
website, the same are not being sent to the shareholders.

Modified Opinion in Auditor’s Report: Your Company’s financial statements for the FY
2024-25 does not contain any modified audit opinion. Your Company continues to adopt best
practices to ensure a regime of financial statements with unmodified audit qualifications.

Reporting of Internal Auditor: The Internal Auditors report to the Audit Committee.

Other Items: The rest of the Non-Mandatory Requirements will be implemented by the
Company as and when required and/ or deemed necessary by the Board.

CEO and CFO Certification

As per Part B of Schedule II of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Managing Director and the CFO
of the Company certifies to the Board regarding the review of the Financial Statement, Compliance
with the Accounting Standard, Maintenance of the Internal Control Systems for Financial Reporting
and Accounting Policies etc.

Corporate Governance Compliance Certificate

As required by Schedule V of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, a Compliance Certificate from CS Atul
Kumar Labh, Practicing Company Secretary (FCS-4848 / CP-3238), confirming compliance with the
conditions of Corporate Governance and the same is attached to this Report forming part of the Annual

Report.

Place: Kolkata For and on behalf of the Board
Date: 12.08.2025 Y

0 W‘J‘ . WYRCYARL

N
Su ra Kumar Bachhawat Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat
anaging Director Director
DIN: 00129471 DIN: 00129820
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DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469

Compliance with the Code of Conduct
As provided under Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, all Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance

with the Code of Conduct for the year ended 31 March, 2025.

Place : Kolkata For and on behalf of the Board

Date : 12.08.2025
W\CA.LCW;

Sur a Kumar Bachhawat
Managing Director
DIN: 00129471
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DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469

CEO/CFO Certification

We the undersigned in our respective capacities as Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of
Deeplok Financial Services Limited (“the Company™) to the best of our knowledge and belief certify
that:

1. We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 31
March, 2025 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief we state that:-

e these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material
fact nor contain statements that might be misleading;

e these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are
in compliance with the existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by
the Company during the year, are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company's code of
conduct.

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and we have evaluated the effectiveness of Company’s internal control systems
pertaining to financial reporting. We have not come across any reportable deficiencies in the
design or operation of such internal controls.

4., We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

L. significant changes in internal control over reporting period during the year;

II significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

II1. that there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware.

Place : Kolkata Surgirdra Kumar Bachhawat Pradip Kumar Bera
Date : 12.08.2025 Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 00129471
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FCS, ACMA (ICAlj, MBA, M.Com., ACSI {Lond) Company Secretaries

DIM, DHRD, PGHDSM, DIRPM
Practising Company Secretary 40, Weston Street, 3rd Fioor, Kolkata - 700 013
@) (033) 2221-9381, Fax : {033) 2221-9381

Mabile : 98300-55689
e-mail : aklabh@aklabh.com / aklabhcs@gmail.com
Website | www.aklabh.com

A. K. LABH @ A. K. LABH & Co.

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(pursuant 10 Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To

The Members of

Deeplok Financial Services Limited
Ideal Plaza, 11/1, Sarat Bose Road,
South Block, S 207 & 209,

Kolkata — 700020

- We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures
received from the Directors of Deeplok Financial Services Limited having CIN:
L17115WR1981PLC033469 and having registered office at Ideal Plaza, 11/1, Sarat
Bose Road, South Block, S 207 & 209, Kolkata — 700020, West Bengal (hereinafter
referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of
issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-
C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications
(including Directors Ldentification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in)
as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers,
we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated
below for the Financial Year ending on 31% March, 2025 have been debarred or

' disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of the Company by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other
Statutory Authority:

Sr. NuJNawe of Dircctor DIN Date of appointment
in the Company
1. Surendra Kumar Bachhawat 00129471 22.02.2004
2. Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat 00129820 09.07.1989

» I

ACCREDITED




A. K. LABH

FCS, ACMA (ICAl), MBA, M.Com., ACSI {Lond)
DIM, DHRD, PGHDSM, DIRPM
Practising Company Secretary

A. K. LABH & Co.

Company Secretaries

40, Weston Street, 3rd Flcor, Kolkata - 700 013

© (033) 2221-9381, Fax : (033) 2221-9381

Mobile : 98300-55689

e-mail : aklabh@akiabh.com / ektabhcs@gmail.com
Website : www.aklabh.com

| 3. |Prakash Bachhawat 05156638 ' 03.01.2012
| 4. [Kamal Singh Jain 00130693 20.06.2022
5. [Sarla Baid 09466531 20.06.2022
6. |Anil Kochar 00943161 30.03.2025

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board
is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these based on our verification. This Certificate has been issued relying
on the documents and information as mentioned herein above and as were made
_available to us or as came to our knowledge for verification without taking any
cognizance of any legal dispute(s) or sub-judice matters which may have effect
otherwise, if ordered so, by any concerned authority(ies). This certificate is also neither
an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Signature : /l( M/LM

Place : Kolkata
Date : 12.08.2025

Name : CS Atul Kumar Labh
Membership No. : FCS 4848

CP No. : 3238

PRCN : 1038/2020

UIN : S1999WB026800
UDIN : F004848G000971275

saz

ACCREDITED




A.K.LABH v A. K. LABH & Co.

ACMA (ICAl), MBA, M.Com., ACSI (Lond =
E?n?,' DSRD, (PGHgSM,Al')lRPM fhon) / Company Secretaries
Practising Company Secretary 40, Weston Street, 3rd Flioor, Kolkata - 700 013

@ (033) 2221-9381, Fax : (033) 2221-9381

Mobile : 98300-55689

e-mail ; aklabh@aklabh.com / aklabhcs@gmail.com
Website : www.aklabh.com

Cerlificate

To the Members of Deeplok Financial Services Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Deeplok
Financial Services Limited (“the Company”™) in terms of Regulation 15(2) of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
as amended, (“Listing Regulations™) for the year ended 31.03.2025.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management.
Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the
Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an
audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated in the above-mentioned Listing Regulations.

We further state such compliance is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company
nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

For A. K. LABH & Co.
Company Secretaries

(CS A.K.LABII) Place : Kolkata
Proprietor Dated : 12.08.2025
FCS :4848/CP No: 3238

UIN : S1999WB026800

PRCN : 1038/2020

UDIN : F004348G000971264

@

ACCREDITED




DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469

Annexure V

Annual Report on CSR Activities
for the Financial Year ended 31% March, 2025

Brief outline on CSR Policy of | In line with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Company has framed its CSR policy towards enhancing welfare
the Company measures of the society and the same has been approved by the
CSR Committee of the Board. The Company also gives
preference to the local area and areas around which it operates for
spending the amount earmarked for CSR activities. The Company
has proposed to undertake activities as mentioned under Schedule
VII of Companies Act, 2013, inter alia, activities relating to
promoting education, promoting health care including preventive
health care, gender equality, empowering women, setting up
homes and hostels for women and orphans, setting up old age
homes, day care centres and such other facilities for senior
citizens and measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially
and economically backward groups and training to promote rural
sports and nationally recognised sports. The Company has
adopted a CSR policy and is bound to adhere to the same.

Composition of CSR Committee:

SL

Nn.

Name of Director Designatio Number of Number of meetings of
w/Nature | meelings of CSR | CSR Commil(ee af{ended
of Committee held during the year
Directorshi | during the year

Mr. Hemraj Kathotia (Retired w.e.f. | Independent 2 2
30.03.2025) Director - -
Chairman

Mr. Surendra Kumar Bachhawat Managing 2 2

Director

Mr. Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat Director 2 2

Mr. Kamal Singh Jain (appointed as Chairman of the CSR Committee w.e.f. 30.03.2025)

Provide the web-link(s) where
Composition of CSR Comimittee,
CSR Policy and CSR Projects | https://deeplokfinancialservices.com/download/policy/csr-
approved by the board are policy-1.pdf

disclosed on the website of the
company

Provide the executive summary
along with web-link(s) of Impact Not applicable
Assessment of CSR Projects
carried out in pursuance of sub-
rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable.




(Rs. in Lakhs)

(a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135. 384.84

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of 7.70
section 135.

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the Nil
previous financial years.

(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any: 2023-24 0.17

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]. 7.53

(Rs, in Lakhs)

(a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than 8.00
Ongoing Project).

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads Nil

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable Nil

(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]. 8.00

| () CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Total Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Amount p
Spent for Total Amount transferred to| Amount transferred to any fund specified under
the Unspent CSR Account as per|Schedule VII as per second proviso to sub-section
Financial sub- 5)
Year. (Rs. In section (6) of section 135. of section 135.
Lakhs) Date of
Amount. Name of the Fund | Amount.| Date of transfer.
transfer.
8.00 Nil NA NA NA NA

(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any:

Sl. No. Particular Amount
(Rs. In
lakhs)

¢Y) 2) &)
6] Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of 7.53

section 135 after claiming set-off of previous financial years

(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 8.00
(iii) | Excess amount spent for the Financial Year [(ii)-(i)] 0.47
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the Nil

previous Financial Years, if any

) Amount available for set off in succeeding Financial Years [(iii)-(iv)] 0.47




7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three Financial Years: Not
Applicable

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
SI. | Preceding Amount Balance | Amount | Amount transferred to | Amount | Deficiency,
No. | Financial | transferred to | Amount | Spent in a remaining .

Year(s) | Unspent CSR in the {Fund as specified under| to be if
Account Unspent |Financial| Schedule VII as per spent in any
under sub- Year (in | second proviso to sub- |succeeding
section (6) of CSR Rs) section {5) of section | Financial
section 135 | Account 135, Years
under (in Rs)
sub-
section
(6) of Amount Date of
section (in Rs) Transfer
135
(in Rs.)
1 FY-1
FY-2

3 FY-3

8 Whether any capital assets have been created or Yes No

acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility

amount spent in the Financial Year:

If yes, enter the number of Capital assets created / acquired

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

SL Short Pin code of | Date of | Amount Details of entity/ Authority/
No. particulars of the creation | of CSR | beneficiary of the registered owner
the property or property amount
.asset(.s ) or asset(s) spent
[including
complete
address and
location of the
@ 2) 3) ) &) (6)
CSR Name | Registered
Registration address
Number, if
applicable




(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, Municipal
Office/Municipal Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the area of the immovable
property as well as boundaries)

9 Specify the reason(s), if the company has
failed to spend two per cent of the average net

profit as per subsection (5) of section 135 RS
\ A '
dhansh™ i
o
/uanaging Director Chfirmar| CSR Committee
Surendra Kumar Bachhawat Kamal Singh Jain
DIN: 00129471 DIN: 00130693

Dated:12.08.2025

Place: Kolkata




ASIT KUM AR L ABH Merlin Laurel Garden, Ruby-4E, 4th Floor

Practising Company Secretary 71, Narsingha Dutta Road, Kolkata - 700 008

B.Com.(H), ACS (M) : 97487-36545
. e-mail : asit.labh1@gmail.com

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule No. 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and
Regulation 244 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015]

To

The Members,

Deeplok Financial Services Limited
Ideal Plaza, South Block

2nd Floor, S. 207 & 209

11/1, Sarat Bose Road

Kolkata — 700 020

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Deeplok Financial Services Limited having
its Registered Office at Ideal Plaza, South Block, 2nd Floor. S. 207 & 209. 11/1. Sarat Bose
Road, Kolkata — 700020, West Bengal (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit
was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the books. papers. minute books. forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers. agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, 1 hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has. during the audit period covering
the financial year ended 31.03.2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place
to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Maintenance of Secretarial Records is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
My responsibility is to express an opinion on existence of adequate Board process and
compliance management system, commensurate to the size of the Company. based on these
secretarial records as shown to me during the said audit and also based on the information
furnished to me by the officers’ and the agents of the Company during the said audit.

Liaison Office : A. K. LABH & Co., Company Secretaries, 40, Weston Street, 3rd Floor, Kolkata - 700 013



ASIT KUM AR L ABH Merlin Laurel Garden, Ruby-4E, 4th Floor

Practising Company Secretary 71, Narsingha Dutta Road, Kolkata - 700 008

B.Com.(H), ACS (M) : 97487-36545
e-mail : asit.labh1 @gmail.com

I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to the best of my
understanding to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices. | followed. provide
a reasonable basis for my opinion.

I have not verified the correctness, appropriateness and bases of financial records. books of
accounts and decisions taken by the Board and by various committees of the Company during
the period under scrutiny. I have checked the Board process and compliance management
system to understand and to form an opinion as to whether there is an adequate system of
seeking approval of respective committees of the Board. of the Board. of the members of the
Company and of other authorities as per the provisions of various statutes as mentioned
hereinafter.

Wherever required I have obtained the management representation about the compliance of
the laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws. rules. regulations
and standards is the responsibility of the management. My examination was limited to the
verification of compliance procedures on test basis.

My report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efticacy
or effectiveness or accuracy with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
Company.

I report that, 1 have examined the books. papers. minute books. forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company for the financial vear ended 31.03.2025 according
to the provisions of (as amended) :

1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under:

(i1) Secretarial Standards as issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of
India;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act. 1956 and the rules made there
under;

(iv) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there
under;

(v) Foreign Exchange Management Act. 1999 and the rules and regulation made

there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direcl
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings:

(vi) The following Regulations and Guideli wcribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act. 19927/4

Liaison Office : A. K. LABH & Co., Company Secretaries, 40, Weston Street, 3rd Floor, Kolkata - 700 013



ASIT KUM AR L ABH Merlin Laurel Garden, Ruby-4E, 4th Floor
Practising Company Secretary 71, Narsingha Dutta Road, Kolkata - 700 008
B.Com.(H), ACS (M) : 97487-36545

e-mail : asit.labh1@gmail.com

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations. 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;

(¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations. 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. 2015.

I further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company
and on examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check
basis, the Company has specifically complied with the provisions of the following Act:

1. Reserve Bank of India Act. 1934 (pertaining to NBFC matters)

to the extent of its applicability to the Company during the financial year ended 31.03.2025
and my examination and reporting is based on the documents. records and files as produced
and shown to and the information and explanations as provided to me by the Company and its
management and to the best of my judgment and understanding of the applicability of the
different enactments upon the Company. Further. to the best of my knowledge and
understanding there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with
its size and operation to monitor and ensure compliances with applicable laws.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act.
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines. Standards. etc. as mentioned above

During the period under review. provisions of the following regulations/guidelines/standards
were not applicable to the Company:

(1) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations.
2018;

(i)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021:

(iii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations. 2021:

(iv)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; and

(v) The Securities and Exchange Board
Regulations. 2021.

f India (Delisting of Equity Shares)

Liaison Office : A. K. LABH & Co., Company Secretaries, 40, Weston Street, 3rd Floor, Kolkata - 700 013



ASIT KUMAR LABH Meriin Laurel Garden, Ruby-4E, 4th Floor

Practising Company Secretary 71, Narsingha Dutta Road, Kolkata - 700 008

B.Com.(H), ACS (M) : 97487-36545
e-mail : asit.labh1 @gmail.com

I further report that:

(a) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period
under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

(b) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings. agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance. and a system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the mecting.

(¢) Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, if any. are
captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

(d) There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the
size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that :

(a) The Company has conducted a postal ballot concluded on 24.06.2025 [or
confirmation of appointment of an independent director appointed on 30.03.2025.

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure — A.
which forms an integral part of this report.

Dt A Lt

(Asit Kumar Labh)

Practicing Company Secretary
ACS — 32891/ C.P. No. — 14664
UDIN: A032891G000972161

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 12.08.2025

Liaison Office : A. K. LABH & Co., Company Secretaries, 40, Weston Street, 3rd Floor, Kolkata - 700 013



ASIT KUMAR LABH Merlin Laurel Garden, Ruby-4E, 4th Floor

s,éc,,-s,-(,,g) Company Secretary 71, Narsingha Dutta Road, Kolkata - 700 008
.Com.(H), ACS (M) : 97487-36545
e-mail : asit.labh1@gmail.com

To,
The Members,
Deeplok Financial Services Limited

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management ol the
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based
on our audit.

2. 1 have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriale o obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. I believe that the processes and practices. 1 followed provide a reasonable hasis
for my opinion.

I

I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required. I have obtained the Management representation  about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening ot events. cele.

S. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws. rules.
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My cxamination was limited
to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

(Asit Kumar Labh)

Practicing Company Secretary
ACS - 32891/ C.P. No. — 14664
UDIN: A032891G000972161

Place : Kolkata
Dated : 12.08.2025

Liaison Office : A. K. LABH & Co., Company Secretaries, 40, Weston Street, 3rd Floor, Kolkata - 700 013



J. B. So& Company Phone : (033) 2282 6809

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

60, BENTINCK STREET, 4TH FLOOR
KOLKATA - 700 069
E-mail : jbs_company@rediffmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO
THE MEMBERS OF
DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of DEEPLOK FINANCIAL
SERVICES LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st
March 2025, the Standalone statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone statement of Cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone financial statements, including a
summary of Material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred
to as “the Standalone Financial Statements®).

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a frue and fair view in conformity with
& Indian Accounting Standard (“Ind-AS") prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting standard) Rules, 2015 as amended and other the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025,
its profit (including Other Comprehensive Income), its cash flows and the Changes in Equity for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the




Continuation Sheet

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, 4nd we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s Annual Report but
does not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our Auditor’s report thereor.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.
Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the and other accounting principles
generally accepted in Indja. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
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maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high Jevel of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone financial
.statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of the material misstatement of the financial statement,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.




e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
Auditor’s report. However, future events. or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “ Annexure - A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

to the extent applicable.
2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.




<)

d)

g)

il

iv.
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The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss indluding Other
Comprehensive Income, Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone
Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books
of accounts.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015 as amended.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st
March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act,

With respect to the adequacy of the intermal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on the financial position in
its standalone financial statements [Refer Note No. 24(1) to its Standalone Financial
Statements]

The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses:

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

(A) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premiwm or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries;
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(B)The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by
the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(C)Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (A} and (B)
above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has neither dedlared nor paid any dividend during the year.

vi. The Company has used such accounting software for maintaining its books of account
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been
operated throughout the year for all transactions recorded in the software and the audit
trail feature has not been tampered with. The audit trail has been preserved by the
company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of owr information and according to the explanations given
to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

For ].B.S. & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 323734E

X tLu(\ Qatcs
CA Dillip Shaha

Partner
Membership No.: 312458

Place: Kolkata
Date: 27.05.2025
UDIN: 25312458 BMIZFF8068
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ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Annexure A referred to in paragraph I under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal &
Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date to the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2025, we report that:

(i} a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment;

(B)The Company does not have any intangible assets. Hence, clause (a)(B) of Paragraph 3(i)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) The Property, plant and equipment have been physically verified by the management at
reasonable intervals. In our opinion, the periodicity of the physical verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. i

¢) Based on our examination of records of the company and the information and
explanations given to us by the management, the title deeds of all immovable properties
disclosed in financial statements are held in the name of the company as at the Balance
Sheet date.

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.
Hence, clause (d) of Paragraph 3(i) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
company examined by us, no proceeding have been initiated during the year or are pending
against the Company as at March 31,2025 for holding any benami property under the
Benamni Transactions (Prohibition} Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder. .

(i} (a)According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company
examined by us, the inventories held by the company include stock of shares and securities
in dematerialized form; accordingly, the reporting under Paragraph 3 (ii){a) of the said Order
is not applicable to the company.
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(b)According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, the company has not been sanctioned any working capital limit
from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Hence, sub-
clause (b) of Paragraph 3 (ii}(b) of the said Order is not applicable to the Company.

() According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has made Investments in, and
granted loans or advances in nature of unsecured loans during the year to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or any other parties. The Company has not provided any
guarantee or security to companies, firms, limited lability partnerships or any other parties
during the year.

a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the principal business of the company is to give loans, hence
reporting under paragraph 3 (iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and
advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the
company's interest.

c) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, in respect of loans granted, schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest has been regular during the year.

d) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, in respect of the loans granted, there is no overdue amount
for more than ninety days, so reporting under this relevant clause of the order is not
applicable.

e) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the principal business of the company is to give loans, hence
reporting under paragraph 3 (iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

f) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has not granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period
of repayment.

{(iv) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not granted any loan and providing guarantees and securities under section 185 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The company is a Non-Banking Financial Institution, hence the
provisions under section 186 of Companies Act, 2013 with regard to Loan and Investment
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are not applicable to the Company.

(v} Inour opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections
73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) Asinformed to us, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records
under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities carried on by the
Company. Thus, paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Income-tax, Goods and Services
Tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable have been regularly deposited during
the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities and there are no arrear of
undisputed statutory dues as at March 31,2025 for a period of more than six months from
the date on when they become payable.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income-
tax, Goods and Services Tax and other material statutory dues which have not been
deposited as on 31st March, 2025 with appropriate authorities on account of any dispute
except the following:

Name |- Nature of Principal Period to which Forum where
of Dues Amountunder | amountrelates | Dispute is Pending
Statut dispute (Rs. in '
e Lakhs)
income Income 1.62 AY.2017-18 Commissioner of
Tax Act, Tax Income Tax
1961 (Appeals) -
Kolkata Il

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the books of accounts and other records, the company does not have any transactions
unrecorded in the books of account and which were surrendered or disclosed as income in the
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Hence reporting of other information under
clause 3 (viii) of the said Order is not required.
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(ix) &) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the company has not taken any loans or other borrowingé from lenders.
Hence, reporting of information w.r.t. default on account of repayment of loan or interest
under clause 3 (ix) (a) of the said Order is not applicable.

b) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, the company has not been declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institutions or other lender. Hence reporting of information under clause 3 (ix) (b)
of the said Order is not applicable.

c)Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, as mentioned in (ix){a) above, the company not taken any loans or other
borrowings from lenders. Hence, reporting of information w.r.t. utilization & diversion of
fund under clause 3 (ix) (c) of the said Order is not applicable.

d)As mentioned in (ix)(a) above, the company not taken any loans or other borrowings from
lenders. Hence, reporting of information whether funds raised on short term basis have been
utilized for long term purposes under clause 3 (ix) (d) of the said Order is not applicable.

e) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the other records, the company has not taken any fund from any entity or person onaccount
of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint venture. Hence reporting of
information under clause 3 (ix) () of the said Order is not applicable.

f) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, we report that the company has not raised loans during the year on the
pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Hence,
reporting of other information under clause 3 (ix} (f) of the said Order is not applicable.

(x) a)Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the Company has not raised any monies by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Hence, paragraph 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

b) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review.
Accordingly, the reporting under Paragraph 3 (x)(b} of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xi) a)Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers
or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.
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b) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given
by the management, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has
been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government during the year and upto the date of
this report.

c) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, there have been no whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year.

(xii} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the reporting under Paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xiii) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by,
the management, all transactons with the related parties are in compliance with section 177
and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial
Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the Company has an internal audit system comumensurate with the nature
and size of the business.

b) We have considered the internal audit report for the year under audit, issued to the
company till date. In determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

(xv) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactians with directors or
persons connected with him as per the provisions of Sec 192 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(xvi) a) According to the information and explanations provided to us and based on our
examination of records of the Company, the company is required to be registered under section
45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and such registration has been obtained.

b) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the Company has a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) for conducting Non
Banking Financial activities and no business has been conducted by the company without a
valid COR.

¢)Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the Company is a not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Hence, reporting under Paragraph 3 (xvi)(c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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d) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and hence reporting under
Paragraph 3 (xvi)(d) is not applicable.

(xvii) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company has not incurred any cash losses during the current period and
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, there has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Hence,
reporting under Paragraph 3 (xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) Based According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realizations of financial assets and payment of the financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to belief that
any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date.

We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date will get discharged by the company as and when they fall
due.

(xx) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the Company does not have any unspent amount under sub-section (5) of section
135 of the said Act. Hence, reporting under Paragraph 3 (xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.
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{(>x)This is the audit report of standalone financial statements, hence, reporting under clause 3
(xxi) of the said Order in respect of qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors is
not applicable.

For ].B.S. & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 323734E

CA Dillip Shaha
Partner
Membership No.: 312458
Place: Kolkata
Date: 27.05.2025

UDIN: 25312458BMIZFF8068
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“ANNEXURE B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i} of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DEEPLOK
FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2025 in conjunction with
our audit of the Standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal contro stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Compandes Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Intternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
Standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For J.B.S. & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 323734E

d&u&f, Qeclrcr.

CA Dillip Shaha
Partnier

Membership No.: 312458

Place: Kolkata
Date: 27.05.2025
UDIN: 25312458BMIZFES068



UbePLUK HINAMCIAL SERVIVES Lilvi e
Clid: L17115WB1281PLC033489
Registered Office :
11/1, SARAT BOSE RQAD, SCUTH ELCCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 3Tst March 2025

" As at As at
| R Note No-|  34et March 2025 315t March 2024
Rs. in Lakhs
! ASSETS
R¥] Financial Assets
{a} Cash and cash equivalents 4 36.C6 £3.80
(&) Bank Balance other than inctuded n {a} above 4 454124 10&.58
[c} Loans 5 501.10 1.000.72
(d) Investments 2] 9,631.87 8.855.31
el Other Financial assets 7 84.66 86.68
10,707.81 10.111.49
(2} Non-financial Assets
(a) |nventories 8 - 0.28
{b} Current tax assets (Net} 2] 0.57 4.38
(€) Property, Plant and Equiprment 10 3.12 3.64
2.69 8.30
Total Assets 10,711.50 10.319.7¢
1 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
A LIABILITIES
(1) Non Financial Liabilities
{a) Provisions 11 1.25 2.50
{b} Ceferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 12 86.15 47,92
("] Other non-financial liabllities 13 1.28 1.29
B8.68 51.51
B EQUITY
(a) Equity Share capital 14 95.26 95.26
{b) Other Equity 15 10,527.56 9,973.02
10.,622.82 10,068.28
Tatal Liabilitics and Equity 10,711.50 10,119,729
Material Acecounting Polivies and notes to financial statements 1-24
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per qur Report of even date attached.

For J.8.5 & Company
Chartared Accountants
Firm Registration No: 323734E

%flht bt

CA Dillip

dra Kumar Bachhawat

{Partner)
Membership No, 312458

Place : Kolkata
pate: 29+ 05- 2095

Managing Director
DIN: 00129471

Qo.égfa MiRhxa |
Rajni Mishra
Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board

dhawial B o o

Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat

Director
DIN: 00129820

Pra o teencar Pona

Pradip Kumar Bera
Chief Financial Officer




DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Cil: L17115WB1981PLCO3346%
Registered Office :
1171, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH ELOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 iN

Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss for the Year Ended 31st March 2025

5 Year ended Year ended
sy Note No.| 315t March 2025 31st March 2024
Rs.in Lakhs
INCOME
Revenue from opecations
Interest Income 16 446.79 506.68
Dividend Income 17 182.96 123.49
Net gain on fair vaiue changes 18 280.77 80.51
Sale of Stock-in-trade 0.44 -
Total Revenue from Operation 910.96 710.67
Other income 19 71.03 171.78
Total Income 981.99 882.46
EXPENSES
Net {Increase)/Decrease in Stock 20 0.28 {0.09)
Employee benefits expense 21 58.04 £5.48
Depreciation and amortisstion expense 10 0.52 0.72
Other expenses 22 443.10 22.62
Totsl Expenses 501.94 78,73
Profit/{loss) Before Exceptional items and Tax 480.04 803.72
Exceptional ltems 23 = (400.57)
Profit/(loss) before Tax 880.62 £03.72
Tax Expenses
Current Tex 129.46 148,36
Deferred Tax 48.64 13.58
Eariier Years - 0.01
178.09 161.95
Profit for the Year 702.53 641.78
Other Comprehensive Income
ftemns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Change in fair value FOVCI equity instruments {168.20) 296.36
Income tax relating to these items 10.21 {32.25)
Other Comprahensive Income for the Year (147.93) 264.11
Total Comprehensive lncome for the Year 554.53 905.89
Eaming Per Shares
Basic #nd Diluted 7375 57.37
Nominal Value Per Share 10.00 10.00
Material Accounting Policies and notes to financial statements 1-24
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our Report of even date attached.

For J.B.S & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 323734E

Killy -y
CA Diltip Shaha

{Partner}
Membership No. 312458

& ra Kumar Bachhawat
anaging Director
DIN: 00725471

RQ’Z[“" Mighsa,
Rajni Mishra
Company Secretary

Place : Kolkata
Date: 9§.05-2025

For and on behaz!f of the Board

NITOP: U CLNF S VIE S

Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat
Director
DIN: 00129820
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STAMDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025

31-Mur-25 31-Mar-24
HEESLARS Rs, in fakhs Rs. i lakhs ]

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit before Tax ; 880.62 803.72

Adiystment for

Depreciation 0.52 {H

Provisions for standard and sub standard assets (t.25) (0.25]

Nat Changes in Fair Market Value (280.77) (80.51]

{Prufit)Loss on Sale af lnvestment [69.53) [139.40)

Dividend Income {182,896} (533.98) (123.48) {342.93}

Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 346.63 450.80

Adjustment for Changes in Working Capital :

{Increase)Decrease in Other Financial Agset and other assets 2.02 3437

(Increase)Decreass in Other Bank Balance {348.54) 97.37)

(Increaselecrease in Inventory a2.28 (0.09)

Increasef{Decrease) in Other Liabitity {0.01}) {346.25) 0.01 (63.09)

Cash ysed for Operations 0.38 39771

Direct Taxes Paid:

tncome Taxes Paid 125.65 152.68

Net Cash inflow/(outflow) from Operating Activities (A} {12527} | e :ZE.@
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Loan Disbursed, Recd,& Repayment recd.(net) 499.02 99.94

(Purchase) / Sale of Investments [584.48} {436.54)

Dividend Reteived 182.86 123.49

Net Cash lnfiowAQutflow) from lnvesting Activities (B} 97.52 1213.12)
€. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net Cash InflowROutRow) frem Finsncing Activities (C) - 3

Net Increaseffecreasn) in Cash & Cash Fruivalanrs {27 74) 3193

Add: Opening Cash & Cash Equivalents 83.80 31.89

Clgsing Cash & Cash Equivalents 35.06 63.80

Notes:

-2

b

T g

Cash and cash equivalent under financial 3ssel at note no.d ara cash and cash equivalent far the purpose

of drawing cash flow statement. Therefare reconciliation statement required under para 45 of ind AS 7 Is not required.

Figures in the brackets are cash outflowfincome gs the case may be.

The accompanying notes form an inlegral part of these financial siatements.

As per our Report of even date attached.

For J.B.S & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 323734E

For and on behatf of the Board
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Standslone Statement of Change In Tquity for the Year Ended 31st Masch 2025

A, Equity Share Cagital

{1] Current raporting year

{Hs. in Lakhs)

Changes in I
l;unw_ at the beginning of the equity share ::"“""“ ’:_‘.“d. &
currEnt roportng yoar capital during S kel
the current year
9526 9526
(2] Previgus reporting year
Changes in I R W™
Eatince at the Beginnlng oI the' Jaquity shae | o2 attue gad ol
> 3 $ X tho 'previous
e '3 reporting year
9576

B. Other Equity
1) Current reporting Period

Other
Reserve and Surplus Compreheasive
Description Encome Total
. . Secunities Arnalyamation . Gencral Equity
Retgined Earnings Premium v Speacial Reserve Reserve P L
Batance at 01 April 2024 $,999.56 356.00¢ 129.2% 189299 288.71 30447 9,973.02
Prafit for the year 702.53 . - . - - 70253
Other Comprehensive income - - - . - (147.991 147,99}
Gross Balance 7.702.05 356.00 12929 1,894.99 288.71 156.47 1052756
Legs: Appropriations

- Transfer 1o Genera) Reserve (70.23) . - - 70,25 - -

- Transfer 1o Spreial Reserve (45-IC of HBI A&) 1140.51) - - 140.51 - - -
Balanee at 31 March 2025 749133 356.00 129.29 2.035.50 358.96 156.47 10.527.56
2) Previous reporting period

Other
Reserve and Surplos Comprehensive
Descrption Incoma Total
5 v Securi Amalg. i - General Equity
Retained Earntngs Premism Spesial Rosorve R . it
Balance at 01 April 2023 6.550,32 356.00 123.28 1.766.64 22453 40.36 8,067.13
Profit for the year 641.78 - - - - - 621,78
Other Compreheasive Income - - - - - 264.11 264.11
Gross Balance 718210 356.00 129,29 1,766.64 224.53 304.47 9.973.02
Less: Appropnations

- Teansfer so Generst Heserve {64.18) 64.18

- Transfer to Special Reserve (45-IC of RBI Act] {128.36) - - 128.26 - - =
Balance at 31 March 2024 $£.939.56 356.00 12329 1.894.93 288.71 304.47 9.973.02

For JB.S & Company o behalf of the Boacd
Chartered Accountaris

Firm Registration No: 323734E
- \]
“Rill
CA Dillip Shiha

(Psrtnet}
#dembership No. 3124

Place ; Kofkata

Date ; EQ«OS- 9035

Managing Dircetor
DIN: 00129471

Rajni Mishra
Company Secretary

v

dra Kumar Bachhawat

Pradip Kurmmar Bera

Maheadea Kumar Baghhawat
Director
DIN: 00129820

Prador tenan Prose

Chiet Finandal Officer
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Wixterial A 3 Policies

1 Geness! Infarmation
Deeplok Finnrial Services Limited (the ‘Cormpany’l i 8 publie imited Company, incorporated and demiciled in ndia. The cquity shares of the
Campany are hated . The regisiered office of the Tompany iy locaiad at Y441, Sarat Soss Rosd, Sautly Biogk, 20d Floer, Kolkate 700020, West
Bongal, Indis,
The Company is Non Bzhkitng Financiyl Company having certificate of registaction from RBI vide no-05.81925 and mainly ungeged in
imvestnent in shares and sacwrities,
The functionsl and presontation curroney of the Comipary 16 Indian Rupee {*H{A"1 whiek is 1he currency of the primsry cconomic ervirorment
inwhich the Company opecstoes,

Tha financial s1atements for the year snded 31 Mardh 2028 were aporoved by the Board of Direciors and authorised lor issue na 27th bay
2025.

2  Materia! Accourrting Policies

The material il ticd igd by the Compary in the preparation of its inancisl statements ara fisted below. Such sccaunting
policies have been npplr«i cnnsmently 10 all the periods prezented in thesa financial slalgments uniess otherwise indicated.

2.t Presenustion of financind statements

The Bsfznce Sheat, Statamant of Prafit and Loss and Staternent of chariges in Equity #76 prapaced and presentad in the tarinat prescribed in the
Divigion 1l of Scheduls lll 1o the Companies Act, 2013 (Tthe AcT'). The Statement of Cash Flows has baen prepared and presented as per the
requirements of nd AS. Amoents in the finzncial statements are presanted in Indian Rupoes in Lakds,

22 Bagiz of preparation

Thage financisl statements have been prepared to comply in st materis! aapects with Indisn Accounting Standards {Ind AS) notified undar
Saetion 135 of the Compenies Act , 2013 { the Actl. Companies { Indian Acceurting Standards | Rules, 2015 and Companies I Indisn Accounting
Standards ) Amendment Rules, 2015] and other rolevaat peovisions of the Act.

The Company had been peeparing its financial statements wpto tha ysar 31 March 2019, as per Companies tAccounting Standard) Aules, 2008
3ng other relevant provisions of the Act {hereinafter refsired 1o 28 Previous GALP/Indian GAAP),

23  Measuvement of fair values

Fair value is the price that would be reosived to selt 2n assar or paid 10 wansfer a liability in an ordecly jon bet Rarkot partic
althe dats, regardiess of whathar tha: price is dicectly obsenvabls or estimated using anothéar valuason rechnifue.

Fair vatue measurements under Ind AS are categorised inia Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
messurements Bna obssrvabls and the significance of the inputs (o the falr valus rieasurement in it entirety, which are deseribed a« folicws:

8) Level 1. inputs are guoted peices Junadjustad] in active markete tor identics| astets o¢ ligbilities that tho Company can 2coess 81 MOAGTRMANT

date
bj Level 2: fnpuis are inputs, ather than quoted prices included within lave] 1, Mot are ob$ervabic foc the asset oc Hablilly, alkhir directly or
[V TE

<) Loved 3; inpute am unobsanvable inputs far the valuation of atsats er habifisios that the Compeny ran aeonss a% mossurgmant dove.

24  Usc of estimates and judgements

The pe san of fi 381 statecents requires the 29 1t af the C 1y to make judgements, assumplions and estimates thas atfect
the csportad balantes of as30ts and liabiliies and disch e relating ta the contingent liabilities as at the date af the financial stazements and
reperted amounts of i and for the ing pediod. The apphlication of accounting politien that require aritical ing
estimates involing plex @nd subjective judgments and the use of sssumptions in the financial sta have been disclosed ov
applicablo in the respective notes to accounts. Accounting estimates coukd changs from period to pericd. Future results could differ from these
estimates. Appropri hanges in osti 2re made a5 the Manag k awsare of changes in circur suvounding the

esimates. Chanpes in extimates ere refleciad in the financial stateaents in the perlad in which chenges are made and, H material, their etfocts
ara disclosad in the nodes to tha financial statements.

25 ncome Taxes:-
The Compeny’s tax jurisdiction fs india Significant judgements are invelved in Cetermining the provisions for income taxes including amount

expocted to ba paid or recovered for uncertzin tax positions,

3  Summary of significant ascounting policies
‘This note provides a List of the significant scaounting policios ad d in the preparation of these finarcial staterments, Thase policies bave been

<onsistently applied to all the yoars d, unlegs otherwise steted.

31 Fnandial lnstruments
Financial assets and fil ial [iabilities ame recognised whon the Compeny bacomes 3 party 1o the contractual peovisions of the mstrument.
Financial assats and lishilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction cosis that am divoctly attributatle 1o the acquizilion oc tsue of
financial aseets 3nd financial labiltiew {othar than finsnciat azsets and financial habilites at {air valun through profit or foas) sre sdded 1o o
deductzd from she fair value measured on initial recognition of finencial 242¢t or financisl Kability, The transaction corts dirnatly stabuiable to
tha sequisition of finarciak assets and financial Kabilities of fair valoe through prafic and loss are immediately rocognased in. the skatement af

prafit and toss.

it  Fiasncial Assets

Subsequent Recognltion

The classification of financial aszetz depands an tha Compaoy’s busi model for ging financial 95388 2nd the contraciusl
tirms of cash flow.

The financral aszets am classified in the following categarins:

a} Finanoial asaets massused ot smormised cosy,

b} financial 283015 mressyred at falr value through profit and loss | FVTPLY, end

¢ financiat assets eeasured at Talr vslue through othir comprehensive iname { FVOCH,

)/ Fa
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Matesiaf Azcounting Policics

Financial as30ts measured At arortised cost

Assers that arg finld for collection o coniracival cash flows whare thage (lows rapsezant sclety paymenis of poncipal snd inttzest are
measured ot amerised cost, After inisa) measurement , sueh finzncial azsets are subsequently measured at ameniked ot esing Hhe
affective interest rate meihod . The kisses arising from impsirmant sre recogarsad in The Statement of Prefit & Loss.

Tixde receivables sre tecognased wufislly 22 far vilus and subsequently mesured at amostisad cost using the eMective interost
method less provision for mepairment, it any.

Fingndisl instrumients measured st FYTPL

Firanaal ingtruments incuded within FYTPL category ase measured initially as well o5 3t cach reporuing period at fair valtue plus
transactian coats 21 2pplicable. Fair valug mevements are rocorded in Statement of Profit & Loss.

Rnancial sszets a2 FVOQO
Finanial asgats are meatursd ac FVOCH if these financial s2sete sra hald within 3 buzineas modal whpze sbjective iz achieved by both

ceflecting contraciual cash Bows and selling finaacial asaets and the contracius! terms of the financial asset give rse on specified dstes
20 cath flows that sre solaly payments of principal and interest on the principal amouns eutsianding

lavestinent in Bonds{other than Tax frec) and Mutuwaz| fund
levestment in Equity Oriented Motwal Fonds, Dabt Orianted Mutuaf fund and Bondstother than Tax fren) are classified as FVTPL ans

mieasured at Tair value wath all chs gnised in the of profit and loss.

Invesument in Tax Free Bonds and Non- Convertible Pertesence Shares
Investment it Tax Free Bonds snd Non- Convertiblo Prefertnce Shares 3ro messurod ot Cost.

investment in EQuity
Investrmeny in Equity are clussificd az FYTOC! and moasured at fair valve with alf chaonges recognised in Other Camprehensive tnoome,

Investments in Assaciates

The Campany has electod te Invettmiont in opiociates at cost,

Other Unguoted Equity Inv

The Company has alected to I? ¢ in Unquited Equity Shares 3t cogt.
De- revognition of fmandial aszets

The company de- recoprises @ financial asset when the contractual rights 1o the cash flows for the financial azsets axpires or it transfer
the inaocisl assets snd such transfer quelifies for de- recognition undars Ind AS 108- Financial instrutnesits.

ANl inveztmants othor than thoso disclosed otherwise are carried o1 cost less sccumulatad Impairment losces, if anvy. Whare an

indication of impairtert exists, B cantying o the | S d snd i written down immediately ta 118 meeoverable
amount. On dispasal of such invesiments, the difference b nat disposal proceeds and the carrying amaunts are resogaised i
the Statemeat of Profit and Loss.

kmpairment of financial ascets

The Company assasses on a forward jaoking haxis the expected credit fosses 2ssociamd with its assets carried 9t amartized cost. The
impairment mathodology applied ¢ ds on whethor there has been a significant increase in credic risk.

Cridy for Loans the imptisd approach of life time axpeciad credlt loszes it recognised frorm mitial recopnition of the rocoivables an
required by Ind &S 109- financial instruments.

Impaicmans logs aliowa onized / d during the year is charged / weittan back 1o Statement of Profit & Loss,
Pro o of ECL alla for financial asaet:

T of Financial asset Disel

Finansial auset measured ol amortised |stown sapsravely under the head

Cost “provislons” nd not 852 Beduction from the

gross CATTying amount of the aasets

Financial sssats mosaured at FVTOQ

Loan commitrernts and financral shown 38paraiely under the head
guarontee contracis "provisions”

Where a finencal Instrument includes bath 3 drawn 3nd an undrawn component and the Campany cannot identify the ECL an the loan
cemmitmont soparatety from those on the dravmn component, the Company presents a combined loss afiowance for bath components
undar “peovisions”.

Anancial tabilities

Subzequent Meazyromeant

Finarciol lisbilitiex are tubsaquently catviad st amortized cost uxing the effcctive interest mothod.

Borrowings are initially recegnisad at fir value , net of Yransaction costs moumed . Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised coat. Any difference benween the proceeds [ het of iransaction costs) end the redemption smoons & rocognised i profic or
toss quar the gariod of the borrowings using eflective interest methad.

Botrowings are classified as coment liabilities untess the comparny has sn unsanddiona! night 1o defer settlament of e iabilty tor 2t
terst 12 monthe after the reperting period, Whern thees is a breech of & materisl provisson #f 3 long term toan arrangament on er
before the and of the reporting pericd with the effect that the liabiflty becomes payment on demend on the raparting dote , the entiy’
dogs nat classify the liability a3 current | if the lendar agroed, attor the roporting pariod and before the aporoval of the financiat
statemens for issue ; nol to dernand payment 26 a consequerce of the breach.

For Trade snd ather payables matusing within one yasr ltoen the balance sheot date | the esrrying amount approximates fair valye to
shorl- Serm maturity of thess instrumants.
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Matorizl Accournting Policies

32

a2

a4

35

Derecognition of inancial liabilitiex

The Company derecognises financiai lsabilives when, and snly when, the Company's obligatens are disehirgad, eancalied of thay
sxpire or ¢t trangler the financial szsets and such transfer qustities for de- racognition under Ing AS 108- Finarkial instrumaonis,

All investmenis oihor than those disclosed otherwise are carried a1 oost loss accumelated impairment Iosies © any, Where an
indicz2ton af impainment exists, the casrying zmount of the invesimen) 35 assassed and is written down immediaiely ie ity recoverable
amount, On disposal of such investments, the difforence betwoen net dizposs? procaeds sod e Carrying sMounts are Fecognised in
the Statemunt of Profit and Lass

Otfretting Fipandial instruments:

Fitineial assets and fabilitias are offset and 1he net amount is reported in the Balance sheet whaere here is a legsily entorceable right
0 offset the recognised ameunts and the there is an intention 16 seftla on a net basis or realize the assa and seltla the liabiiity
subsoquently. The legalty enforcnsbie right must not bo contingent on future events and must be enforceatde in the narmal course of
business and in everm of defaull , insalvency or Bankruptey of ihe compuany ar the counter party.

Ineome recognition

al  Interestincome
Tha Company recognises intereat income using Efective Inteeast Rate IEIR} o0 all financial assots
The Company recagnises interest inceme by applying the EIR to the gross canying amount of finaricial asuets other
than cnaditimprised sesets. In caze of credit-impaired tinancis] sssats rsgarded as “trage I, tha CompIny recoghites interest incomie
on the amartised cost ret of impainment less of the finsncial aszet 81 EIR. If the finarcisl ¥sset is no longer credi-impaired, the
Company revarts to cleutating interest income an $ gross basiz.
Belzyod paymant i {penzl | gvied on s for delsy in repsymentsinon payment of comtrectuzl cashflows &
recegnised on reglisation, "

bl  Recognition of revenue from sale of goods or sorvices

Revenwe fother than for Financial tnstruments within the scope of tnd AS 109 is msasured at an amourd thai retlects the
considerations, to which en entity expects 1o be enttled in axchange for tranaferring gocds or services 10 Customer, sxduding smeunts
eollected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue from ooniyact with custemer for endering seevices is recognisad at @ point In time when parf [} is

e} Qbhvidend incame
Pividend ingorme fram investments is recognised when the sharchalder's rights 1o receive paymen? have boen sxtablished.

Employce benefits

{al  Short-term obfigations
Liabilities for wages, salaries and other banelits that sre exp d to be settlad wholly within 12 monshs sfter the end of the peried in

whikh the emplovess rarder the relsted secvice are racognised in tespect of employees’ services up o the end of the mpoating peried
PR RS S AP e R AR S ne] W B e ko ohoae BRIV Iche o re S, Tk Tt 40g Hrdsaiied N SUrpn Emeiivaee
benefis obligstions in the balanes sheet.

{t}  Postemployment obdigetions

Compensated absenicos
A lated o d st which sro expected to be svailed or enchased or contributed within the $2 months from the end
of the year are reated a3 short term emptoyme benefitt and the bal cied to be avaded or enchased or contributed beyond

12 moriths from the yesr end are traated 33 long term lixbility and are scopunted on undiscountsd basis.

Othet short term employes benefits

Short erm employee benafits sre grisad 83 BN exp a3 per the Company's sch s basod on the gxpected obfigation on an
undiscounted basis.
Property, Plant & Equipment:
Property, Plent & BEquipment ara atsted 31 their original cott jess accumufated deprogistion. Cost prizqs cowt of sition, cost of
improvements, borrowing costs snd any sRcibutable cost of bringing the assets ta the condition for its intended use. Costs also include direct
oxpanses incurred upto the dyte of capialication’ comemizsioning,

On tranzision to Ind AS , the Campany hzs elected 10 continye with the carrying value of all of ks property, plant and equipmant recogrised as

at 01 April, 2013 moasured as por the provious GAAP 2nd usa that carrying value as the deemod cast of ail the progerty . plant snd equip t.
Depredciston

Dopreciation has been provided on writtea down vafue methed in accordance with the useful life of assmts prescribad undar Schedule- i of tho
Companies Act, 2013,

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash squivalents compeise of cath at bankz and on hand and shortterm deposits with an ariging! meturity of three months or loss,
which are subjets to 20 insiqnificent rigk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the siriement of cash flews, cash and cash equivaients consist of cash and short- teray deposits, a3 defined above, net of
outatanding bank overdrafis if any, 2% they are coasiderad an integral part of the C v's €ash
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Material Accounting Palices
3.7 Provisions
Provasiens are recogrised in the balance chee! when iho Compaty has 3 present obligation flegel e consiructive) as a resel! of 2 past event,
whish is expectod 1o resull in an outliow ¢f resouices embadyrmy adonamsic bensfits which can be ralisbly estimated, Eenh provision is bases
an the best estimate of the oxpantinea required to seitle the present obligatian at the balecce shesl dsse.

38 (ncomc Laxes
The inesime Lax experise o7 tradit for the périod i5 the tax payable on the current period’s taxsble income based on the sppleable Incams tex

rate for soch jurisdiction 2djusted by chaages in deforced tox asaets and fiabilities atributatio 1o t 1y diff snd 10 unsed 12K
losses.

The currant income tax charge is cateulsted on the basis af the tax faws eneciod or sabszantively enasted at the end of e reparting petiod.
Defarred intoee 13X (s provided in tull, using the liabilty method, en temperary differtrees asising between the iex bases of sssets and
fiabilities and Wwic carrying i the & isl s,

Daferted income tax is determined using tax ates (and laves) that have beon enscted or subslantsily enacies by the end of the reporiing period
and are gxpocnd te apply whon the mtated doferred incomae tex 2358 is realised or the Geferred income tax lishility iz setied.

Deferred tax assets are r ised for all d 3 temporary difierences and unusad tax losses only if it rs peobable that fUture Taxsble
amourts will ba svailabls to utilize those temperary difforences and bossot,

Defgreed tax asses and liabilities ore offset whinn there is & legally enforcsabis right to offset current tax pzsais and fiabilities and when she
deferred tax balances relato 10 the came taxation jutharity, Current 13X a3sets and tax labilities ara offsat where the entity has 5 fegally
enforcsable right to alfzee and infends cither 1o settle on a net basis, or o realite the asset and settle the liabitity simulneously.

Current and defarred tax is recognised in profit of 043, oxcepi to the extent that it redatet o items recognizad in other comprahencive incoma

o directly in equity. In this case. the tax is olso recsgnised In other comprehensive income ar ditecily in equity, respectively.

28 Earmings per sharc
Farnirgs per share Iy caloulated in accordance with IND AS 33 on earmings per share. [t is calcufated by dividing the ne: profit ar loss for the

yoar attributs ble 10 squity share holders, by the weighted averaga fwmibers of etuity shares sutstangding duting the yoar,

For the purpese of calculsting diluted sarnings per share, the ret profit or kiss for the period attnbiutabie lo equity sharahalders and weighted
average number of shares outstanding ducing the period are adiusied for the effects af all difutive potential equity shaces.

310 inventery
The inventary consisis of shares held for xeding purpose and are mezsuted @ per "ind AS-2 Inventarios” at Cost cr Net Realisable Value

whichever is lowar at the balance sheet dats.

311  Proviziens, contingent Habilities and contingent asects
Provisions are recognised only when:
{i}  anentity has » present obligation (legal or ivel 03 & resull 0f 2 pOST vent: and
i} wie probabl that an outflow of resourcas embodying economic benetits will be required to serde the obligation; end
{iill) @ rptiuble estimate con be made of dre smount of the obligation
Provision is messured using the cash flows estimated 16 seltle the prosent obligotion and when the effect of e value of money is material,
the carrying amount of the provision is the present value of those cash flows, Reimbursement expected in rezpeact of expenditure requicsd 1o
settie & provisien is récognitad enly when it {s vinually certain that the reimbursemont will ba received,

Contingent liahility ks disclosed in cago of
(1) s presen: obligation ariging from past events, when it is nat probebdle that an outfloyr of will be required to settla the
obligation; and
{ii} a pmmob&mm ens-nqimm past ouenss, whon po reliable esti 5 possible, Cantiogent assets are disclosed where an
inflow of ic b & probable. P liabilitias and oontingent ssasts are reviewed at each Balance Sheet Jate.

)

Whare the unavoldable costs of ing the obligations undar tha contract exceed the economic benalits expected to be neceived wmder such
oomiract, the present obligation under tive contract is cecognisad and meazured 2% a provision,

Cantingent Assets

Contingant Assats ara naither gnisad nar disclosed, H . when medfisation of the income by \irually certain, relited siset is
recognizest

312 Statement of Cash Rows
Statement of Cash Flows ie prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and financing activitias. Cash flow feom oparating
Sctivities is faported uslng indicoct method sdjusting the nat peofiz for the effects of:
i.changas during the period in opevating receivables pnid poyables ransactions of 3 ner<zsh natene;
it. non<cash Mems such 35 depreciation, provisions, deferred xes, unreslised foreign turnency gains and lossas, snd undistrbuted profits of
2s20¢i312¢ and joint vantuses; snd
iil. 3l other ilems Jor which the cash affidcte ara investing or financing cash flows.
Cash and cash equivatants {including bank bslances} shown in the Statement of Cash Flows sxclude items which are noz availabte for generat
use as on the dete of Balanca Shost.

3.13 Eventaiter reporﬂng M

impact of cuch events adiustcd within the financisl stasterments. Othaavise, events aftar the Balance Sheet dote of matorial size or mture e - KOL':.ATA
only disclozed. *



LEEPLOX FINANCIAL SERVICES LMITED
CEN: LY 7115V 92TPLCOITLES
Reglsterad Office :
131, SARAT BOSE ROAT, SOUTH ELOCK, 2ND FLODR, KOLNATA WR 70002¢ IN

TOTEE 10 STANDALONE FINANGIAL STATEMENTE
MNate 4
Cash and Sank Balance
Partisulars 21 03.2025 F1.03.2008
a) Cash and Co3d Equivalenia R i Lakks
Cast in hand { Ao cestified by the NManagément] G2 03z
Balpnge with banks
- in quzrem Accgynts 35.%) (2]
2606 [Z3T]
b) Bank halance othee than Cash and cosh equiesients
- in Fixed & Taren DagaBiss Accoims L 105.58
{Maturity Penod is maze than 3 moning bus fess than 17 regnins]
TOTAL 45412 10558
— ]
MNote S
Loant
Particutars 31,60 2025 31637028
A1 Amertised Cest Fis. i Lakhs Ain. an Lakhs
|Secuees - -
|Unsecured, considered good { undezs othenvise siated )
Loans 1o Bodies Cacporm ©
Cansidered Good 500X 1.203.00
Othen
Asvance to Staf L0 aiR
[Recoverabia in cach of (n kand ar vaiue 1o b rocesind therenty
TOTAL 501,10 1,000,312
Note &
[torvasirmant
[Fanticutars 31,03.2025 143 20204
Rs. in Lakhs Rz in Laichs
(A} bvwestments carried a1 Fair Yolue Other Comprohensive income
Fully paid Egqusy Shaces (Cuotasi B61.94 =,
(B Investments caerled at Fair Valuo thraugh pealit or boas
{Invesumien: in Bonds 3073.20 Far i)
Invesimant in NCD 1,393.37 1,350.00
Rlutusl Sonds 3323 3.063.74
{ € ) b nts carrind 8t Amertised Cost
Equity Shame in Associates (Unqueted 1375 13%.78
Equity Sheres in Othars {Uagusted) 6825 €825
Kan= Convertble Praference Skares (Quoted) 400,57 a00.57
Lwta: Provisian for taie valce foss of invastment { fefor Neta now 241 101] - 420.57 -
Les=- Lose on invedtment Refor Bote s 241181 : &00.57 .
Tax Fren Bynds 35303 355,04
TOTAL 2 ETET BAS53
Fate 7
Citnar b Avunti
; TR B S|
R in Lakhs
interest Receivable an Bonds 45,62 5297
Interest Receivable aty NCD 2421 2021
Intwresd Recavable on Vax Fres Bonits 778 7.7%
[ Acerued Interest on Term Deposit 667 M
Dividend Rocelvable Q.09 -
Security Deposit 0es =
| Total B GE BO.E2
Note &
: — S——
Particulars 31033005 J1.00. 2024
= R i Lakis
Clasing Stock of Shares (Kefer note 84) = .28 |
TOTAL - 03 |
tote-84 - Closing Stack of Securitles
Particulars o 31 0E RS 31032024
Ra, R o Lakhs B Rt im Lkt
[T Insian Voad Produss Co La z - - om0 028
Toial - 028
‘Nﬂt&!
Crirrent Tax Ascets
| Particutars J1.03.2035 | 37032024
B i Lakhs
Aevance Taxes (Net of brovisions; 6e1] 235
Total 057 438
S S




DEEPLOK AINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
Cipd: L17T1SWR1983PLC033469
Registered Office :
11/%, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK; 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WRB 700020 IN

NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 10
Property, Plant & Equipment

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Building Office Equipment Maotor Cars Totzl
Tangible Assets
Gross Block B i
At 1st April 2023 10.38 340 15.51 29.29
Additions - . - )
Disposals - - . =
Ax 31 March 2024 10.38 240 15.51 29.29
Additions = - . o
Disposais = - - -
As at 31 March 2025 1038 340 1551 29.29
Accumulated Depreciation
At 1st April 2023 8.12 3.25 13.56 24,92
Depreciation Expanse .11 - 0.61 0.72
Deduction - - - -
As at 31 March 2024 8.23 3.25 1497 25.64
Depreciation Expense Q.10 - 0.42 0.52
Deduction - - -
As at 31 March 2025 833 325 1458 2617
Carrying Value
As at 1st April 2023 2.28 0.15 1.95 438
As at 31 March 2024 2.15 0.15 1.34 3.64
As at 31 March 2025 2.04 | 015 092 312




DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469

Registered Office :

11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2D FLOOR, KOLKATA WEB 700020 IN

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& Investment 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
A. |Quoted Securities
lnvestment in Fully paid up Equity Instruments -
Valued at FVOCI
Si. |Name of the Securities LATA No. of Units {Bs..in Lakhs! No. of Units (Bs. in Lakhs}
No.
1 hBank of Maharashtra 1G/- 50,000 23.17 50,000 31.18
2 |Brookfield India Real Estats Trust 2754- - 33,741 85.94
3 |Coal india Ltd 10/~ 8,500 33.85 8,500 36,90
4 |Elpro Internationsl Limited A 4,20,000 295.47 4,26,000 342 64
5 |GAIL ¢india) Limited 10¢- 10,000 18.30 10,000 N
6 |GAIL {Ing:a) Limited- Bonus Shares 104- 5,000 9.15 5,000 9,05
7 |GFL L 1 2,000 1.02 5,000 6.10
8 |Hathway Cable and Datacom Limited 2/- 2,21,750 28.83] 2,25,000 44.10
9  [lindizn Oil Carporation 10/ 15,000 19.16 15,000 25.16
30 |Indian Oil Corporation - Bonus Shares 16/- 39,000 43.80 33,000 65.42
11 JITC Ltd 14~ 7,500 30.73 -
12 |Jupiter Wagons Ltd 10/- 37,000 136.62 - -
13 |Nationat Aluminum Co. Ltd 5/- 11,500 20.19 30,000 45.77
14 |NHPC Limited 10/- 74,000 60.83 74,000 66.38
15 |NMOC Limited n- 13,500 9.30 15,000 30.26
16 |NMDC Limited- Bonus Shares 1/- 27,000 18.60 B -
17 |NMODC Steel Limited 10/~ - - 15,000 8.21
18 |Reliance Capital Ltd 10¢- - - 400 0.05
19 |Reliance Home Finance Ltd 10/~ 400 0.01 400 0.01
20 |Samvardhane Mothersan Interaational td - 20,000 26.19 - -
21 |Tata Steef Ltd 10/ 4,330 6.68 4,320 6.75
22 |[Tata Steel Ltd 104 22,900 35.32 22,900 35.69
23 |The TATA Power Company Ltd 1/ 4,000 15.02 - -
24 |uco Bank Lid 104 65,000 23.21 85,000 33.93|
861.44 £91.63
Investment in Bond - Valued at E-!IEL
1 0% GO CSTRIP GS 17Dec2025 1,00,000 300 286.68 300 266.73
2 6.10% GOl Bond 12JULY2031 1,00,000 1,500 1,465.65 1,500 1,413.90
3 |7.05% NHA! SR Il 28SEP2041 10,060,000 20 200.00 20 200.00
4 |7.35% EXIM Bank Bond 27July28 1,060,000 199 190.00 . -
5 |7.44% PFC Ltd 10May2028 1.00.000 250 250.00 250.00 250.00
6 |7.68% SIDBl 10Aug2027 1.00,000 85 85.00 85.00 85.00
7 |7.77% National housing bank 02Apr2¢26 1,00.000 S00 500.00 500 500.00
& [8.10% REC Ltd Bond 25June2024 10,00,000 - - 18 180.00
9 |11.45% MeECL Bands-13FEB2030 10,00,000 5 55.19 5 50.00
10 19.78% UPPL Bond - 20 Oct.2027 10,90,000 4 40,68 4 41,67
3,073.20 2,987.30
Investment in NCD - Valued ot FVTPL
1 |2% Un-sec Optionally Cov Deb - J B Leasing Pvt.Ltd. 1,00,000 500 500.00 500 500.00
2 |6.83% HDFC Ltd 08JANZ031 10,00,000 10 100.00 10 100.60
3 }7.05% HDFC Ltd 01DEC2031 10,00,000 50 481.37 50 500.00
7 |7.30% NMDC Steet Ltd 28AUG2025 10,00,00C 10 100.00 10 100.00
8  |7.99% LIC Housing Finance Ltd 12JUL2029 10,00,000 15 150.00 15 150.00
1.331.37 1.350.00
Tnvestments in Non-Convertible PICIerenge Shales -
Valued at Amortised Cost
1 16.46% Infrastruciure Leasing & Financial-245EP22 15000:- 1,335 200.47 1,335 200.47
2 |16.46% Infrastructure Leasing & Financial-150CT22 15000/~ 1,334 200,10 1.334 200,10
Less:-
Pfoiision for fair value loss of invest . {400.57)
Loss on investment frefer note 24 {10)] {400.87) -

8



nvestment in [ax Free Bonds- Valued at Amortised
Cost
Nzme of the Compary EV. | NoofUnits | (Rsinlakhs) | No ofunite | _(Rs.inLakhs]
1 8.10% IRFC Tax Free Band-23FEB27 1000/ e 5.88 800 5.88
2 |B.20% Hudco Tax Free Bond-SMAR27 1000/- 132 1.36 132 1.36
3 |8.30% NHAI Tax Free Bond-258JANZ7 1000/- 1,931 19.35 1,931 19.35
4 |8.50% JIFCL Yax Free Bond- 12 NOV 33 1000/- 10,000 100.0G 10,00 100.00
5 8.50% NHAI Tax Free Bond-05FEB29 1000/~ 19,000 100.00 10,000 100.0¢
6 |8.51% Hudce Tax Free Bond-250CT28 1000/- 2,000 20.00 2,000 20,00
2 48.66% MFCL Tex Free Bond-22JAN34 1000+~ 10,000 100,00 10,000 160,00
g |8.67% NHPC Tax Free Bond-2NOV33 1000/- 805 8.05 805 8.05
g |8.50% NHAI Tax Free Bond-5FEB29 1000/~ 500 4.98 500 4.98
359.64 358.64
Total of Quated Securities 5.625.65 5,588.57
Unquoted Equity Shares - Valued at Amortised
= Cost EV. No,of Units | [Rs.inlLakhs) | Ne. of Unit (Rs. in Lakhs)
{a) In Associates
Woodside Fashion Limited 104~ 5,33,000 134.75 5,39,000 134,75
[B]In Others
Bengal NBI Complex Limited 10/~ 7,22,500 68.25 7.22,500 68.25
Total of Unquoted Securities 203.00 203.00
C  |lnvestments in Mutoal Funds - Valued at FVTPL NAV No. of Units | {Rs. in Lakhs) No. of Units | [Rs. in Lakhs)
1 |Edelweiss Arbitcage Fund-Reg-Gr 19.0830 1.68,672.091 32.18 - E
2 Kotak Liquid Fund-Reg-Gr 53191.6291 4,326.010 224.59 4,326.010 209.37
3 [Kotak Money Market Fund-Reg-Gr 4405.9601 6,299.797 271.57 6,289.797 252,74
4 |Kotak Equity Arbitrage Fund-Reg-Gr 36.8834| 26,35,551.5%0 97208 | 17,69,685.018 607,08
5 |Kotak Low Duration Fund-Reg-Gr 3276.9449 7.649.611 250.67 - -
6 |Nippon India Arbitrage Fund-Reg-Gr 26.1405 40,892.064 10.69 - -
7 |Nippon India LHtra Short Duration Fund-Reg-Gr 3956.4556 20,425.759 808.14 20,425.759 ?83.78
8 |HDFC Arbitrage Fund-Whotesale Plan-Gr 30,1610 7.92,272.312 238.96 7.92,272.312 22253
9 |SBI Arbitrage Opportunities Fund-Reg-Gr 33.2561] 22,18,177.852 737.68 | 22,18,177.852 687.38
10 |SBi Low Duration fund-Reg-Gr 34246538 7,319,450 250.67 - -
11 |SBI Equity Savings Fund-Reg-Gr . - 15,38,598.966 325.87
3,803.23 3,063.74
Total Investment {44B+C) 9,631.87 8,855.31
o IR




CEEPLOK EWAGCIAL SERVICES LIMITEDR
TR L1271 6SWRIATIPLE 023400
Regisrored Office ;
1121, SARAT BQSE ROAD, SOUTH RBLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WE 700020 IN

NRTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL 5TATEMENTS
Note 11
Pravisionz
Particulatu 31033028 31032023
fls intakhs
Carsingen! Frovisian agsasl S1aads i Asretas 15 FLT]
ToTAL T2 250 |
Note 2
Dalesrod Tax Ascats and Lishilities
Fartzculars 3!.0‘1203_& _[ JLOIZ02A
Rs_in Lakhe
[Deforred Tax Liability
Changed « Fair Vitlue of Jinistrent 8185 872
Deferred Tax Aszety
(a6l Cifferancs beteroen WDV and Tax Base of PPE 050 11.00)
et Deferred Tax Azsetsfiliabiiities) 86,15 4772
Thie majes af d tax aesets and Uabilities for the year ended Blarch 31, 2025 are st Tollows:
Recogniced! a
Particutars Opening | reveread Mrough """"90"(:_:"6 | Cosing Balaace
Profit anal fosx
Fa. in lakhs
Tax atlect 0 ftemz constituting deforred tax astets
LaliHarance between VWDV ana Tax Basa of PPE 1.0¢ 0.1 - e
Tux wffect of items constituting Seforred tax Nabllity
la} Fait valua changs In Inventrmant a2 w853 w02 {a7.08)
Net Deferred Tax Asset/{Liabilities) m.ml (43 6] 1021 (BE.15)
Tho major companerts of deferred tax assete and Rabllities for the year ended March 31 2024 are as follows
Recognisrd/ N
Particulars Opreing rovertad theough w’ i Closing Balunte
Profit and loss
Re_in lakhe
Tax effect of ems comntituting deferred tax ausets
{3iDiterance benvoen WV and Tax Base ol PPE 1,09 10.09) - 1.00
Tax effact of Rems constituting daterrod tax fiabsfity
{8} Fair Valug charge in trvestrmem e 112450 {S2.25) 48.32)
tiet Doforred Tax AsseUTLL ] % 113582 =235 ll?.?Z:l]
il af tax. and 1he profit multiplied by tax rate:
Particuters 31.01.2025 21.03.7074
R by Lakha
{2} Peofit Bxfere Tax R 80372
1B} Tax Raze for Comarate Enisty a3 per income Tase At 1861 25478 5N
(i1 Exppected Tax Expense as per income Tax Act, 1967 [ 22163 M2
{e} Tax Effect of;
1) oo oh noin decuctible expentes k24 s
19) T o Incamd owempt form tax 48.07] 7an)
[k Effect of differsntial tax rates (239 @7
[} Defaered Tax Adiustmsedts 148.62) (18.88)
{¥] Adjusirmant of Butiness Lost &= per Income tax (14.32] 7540
(eiTetal effect of tax adjuscments {01} 10 (vt 15218}, 3
i Tax sxponse {oee) 12946 18834
(3] Tao expones cocognised during the year 12946 1838
Note 13
Criher Non Financial Liabities
Fart S103.2025 | 310sa0ae
Fx_in Lakhs
Liabilities for Expensen [T 0.5
Sttwiory Usbidite an 071
TOTAL 128 129

|




DEEFLOK PIMANCIAL SERVICES L NITED
€l LI7INSWB 188 1PLCII34ES
Registersd CHlice ©
T1/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKAYA WB 700020 1%

l FOTES TO STANDALONE FINAKGIAL STATEMENTS _I
Fote 14
Equity Share Capital
Partlculses 31,63 2025 31032025
Rz inilakhs
Authorizad share capits
B2 60,000 ¢ DY, 50,00,000; Equity ehares af Ra 30/ eack SPC60 304,00
e e
Issund, Subscribed and Fally Poud up
453 555 P Y. 23255 Eouity shares of Al (D aach fully paid up b =47
Total bsued. Subscribed and Fully Paid up FI% 524
B Hiation of the sharos sutstanding o1 the Begnning and at the snd of the reparting pericd
|Equity shares S1e3 2008 31.03.202¢
Na. flv o Lakhs o Ra. i Lokhy
AL the Lanaing of the penoed 852,596 95,26 $.52 555 ¥S53G
lzsued Suting the sanea - - - -
Dutatanding a1 tho end of the pesind RSLE9 il 5.52.595 5526

Terma/rights attached 10 equity shares

The company haz only ane lasa of ety shares having 4 0ar value of Rs. 10V- ger share Gn a xhow af hands, every member, precent in person of by peoxy, s
ertitied to anc vole aad in case of poll, the veting rights 5f cvery mémber shal? be in proportion to his sharas of the paidwp equity share capiial of the compaty.

The company doclares and pays dividend in fadian rupeos, The dwvidend progosed by the Boaed of Directors is subject ta the spproval of the sharcheiders in the
etmuing Annusl Genaral Meetung
In the event of Iiquidasion of 1ho compavy. the holders of equty shomes will bo entitied to reveiva tomaining osselx of the company, sRoe drirrbiuToa of a2l

or Tho b will b in proportan 1o the number of eouy shares bald by the sharehslders.
Details of shurehedders holfing mors than 5% shares in the cempany
’MM 31.63.2025 23.62.2024
% No. % No.
E5 2121 SEE 91933
03|  eiEm 408 81532
] 2R84 158 71I82
385 | 74,750 55 | TS0
£| siswo 53 5600
17 EE.300 A7 G800
.58 55,250 .93 55,450
21 48575 53 44575
31033025 S1L03IUE
Promater name Wo. of Shares %l:::::.l dn:nqc:.\:z:u Nooof Shares | % of total hiares
| Rajencra Kumss Dachhesat $i803] aeth 0.00% 1073 ae5%
Sarendfa Kumar Bachbawat ESE37 | oo9% 0.00%] S6612 o
Mahendra Kumar Bachbhawat 2084 I50% £.00%) 72084 5%
Surendra Kymar Bachhawst { FER Invastmants| S£ 300 £EE5% [ £5.300 4
Ramnera Kumar Bahhawat HUT —aecay Eswk m! 23850
Dewpak Sachhawst B550h | £Eow 6.00% E5.500 5T
FPracanh Bachhawat T4750 1B £.00% JATED B
Alok Bachnawst e300 | 30% oo 78 500 305%
Saroi Bschhpwat 50 0.01% £.00% su 0.01%
f 68300 7T o.00%] €8.300 FiT%
—Soss0] Ssuw 0,00 Ssass]  sen
43500 | ALY $.00%] 43500 46T%
35100 2.68% 0.00% 35.100 6%
IOz | e 0,00% =] 7562
Nete 15
Other Equ —
Partioulmrs 032025 31022004
e in Lakhs
1% Earnings 74913 £95255
Secyrites Promium 560 -
Amalgamation Reserse 12328 12520
Spezisl Beserve 2.035.50 189498
General Reserve 39,56 28371
[Onher Compruhensive Income 15847 30447
TOTAL 10.527.56 S573.02
flature and gempoze of resorvet

al Retained Earmirge: Retained surnings aie the profits that the Comparry has earmed til dwie, less ary transfers 1 gentrat reverve, dividends or ather
5 pava 1a % 5

biSecurities Preminm: Securities premiurm i used bo record the pramicm on (azue ef shares, 2 can be utillaed ooty Yor iimited purgoses in accordancs wah the
provisioas of the Companiss Act, 2013

)Geneedl Roseeve. Gonaral Reserve are amaurits 6¢ Biidd from rewdinod prafits 22 3 Maerve 1D bt ylilsed (o7 parmlsslble enerdd purpose 28 pir Law.

di Rezvrve Nind in torems of sestizn &54C(1) of the Fesanee Bank of tndis Act, 1334 - Rgserve fund i5 cramied 25 pes the tarms f saction 2550113 af tha Aeserve
Bank of Incfiz Acz, 1334 a5 3 YOy (eS6IvVA,

nIOHer COMATANATRIVE INCOME Fepreaants 13if value FICOGRIAN AR MASUFEMENT OE CQUItY HIZITUMENTS thiouQh DINEr COmBTEhentive ntome,

1) Amalgasaszion Reserva : This Aaserve was created on the kaziz of the eheme of Amalgamation of Meadow Propestics Pvi. L, Vasam Lok Properties Pt Ltd,
DAP Develapsss Prvate Livnited sag DEF Construetiens Pyt L with the Compaay in 180 year anded 3131 Manth 1529,



DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L17915WE 1881PLL033468
Registered Office -
11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WE 760020 IN

NOTES 70 STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 16
Interest Income on financiaf assets
Particulars 31.032025 |  31.03.2024
Rs. in Lakhs
Interest Income :
On Tax Free Bond 30.68 3D.68
QOn Others - Exernpted 0.05 0.1
On Qthers 416.06 475.82
Totzl 446,79 506.68
Note 17
Dividend Income
|Particulars 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
Rs. in Lakhs
Dividend Income
Shares 182.68 123.49
Broakfield R.E.|.T- Exernped 0.28 -
Tatal 182.96 123.49
Note 18
Net Gain on Fair Value Changes
Particulass 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
Rs. in Lakhs
Met Gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
- Investments 280.77 80.51
Total 280.77 8051
Note 19
QOther Income
Particulars 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
Rs. in Lakhs
Profit / (Loss) on disposal of Long term investments
Sheres
With STT 60.89 89.24
|Bond/NCD
Without STT - 1.87
Profit / (Loss) on disposal of Short term Investments
Shares
With STT 0.12 -
Mutual Fund
Profit on Mutual Fund- Short Term - Without STT 2.06 32.96
Profit on Mutual Fund- Shact Term - With STT 6.44 5.39
Bond/NCO
Without STT - 29.39
|Profit{Loss) on Share Speculation 0.03 o
[nterest on Incame tax refund 0.01 -
Interest on R, E. I. Trust 1.49 282
71.03 171,78
S




DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L17115WB1981FLC033469
Registered Office ¢
11/1. SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH ELOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN

1 NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 20
Net {Increase)/Decrezse ta Claging Stock
Particulars 31.03.2025 |  31.03.2024
Rs. in Lakhs
Inventory at the Beginning of the year 0.28 0.9
Inveniory &1 the End of the year - n.2g8
Met {increaszej/Decrease in Closing Stock 0.28 {0.08)
Note 21
Employee Eenefit exp
Particulars 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
Rs. in Lakhs
Director Rernuneration 20.00 30.00
Salaries and Allowances 27.87 25.35
Stafi's Mediclaim Insurance Premium 0.17 0.i3
Total $8.04 55.48
|Note 22
Other expenses
Particulars 31.03.2025 |  31.03.2024
Rs. in Lakhs
Advertisement 0.37 0.3%
AGM Expensss 0.23 0.23
Car Expenses 1.37 2.63
CSR Expenses 8.00 -
Demat Charges 0.12 0.33
Filing Fees 0.07 0.06
Insurance Charges a.10 0.11
Lass on disposal of Long term Investments
Mutust Fund With STT - 017
Loss on sale on Band 1.08 -
Loss on Investment 400.57 -
Loss on disposal of Short term Investments
Shares With STT 2.88 -
Interest on Tax Psid 0.03 0.19
Internal Audit Fees 0.10 0.10
Secretarial & Professional Charges 621 6.29
Listing Fees 0.98 G.85
Accrued Interest paid on purchase of Bonds 0.15 531
Accrued Interest on Bond written off for TDS reconciliation 13.78 -
Accrued Interest on NCD written off for TDS reconciliation 268 -
Repair & Maintenance Charges 0.74 0.69
Miscellaneous Expenses 1.95 2.01
Rates & Taxes 0.25 0.25
Stamp Duty on Mutual Fund/Bond 0.00 0.00
STT - Investment ¢34 0,77
Travelling & Conveyance 119 131
Cantingent provision against Standard Assets created freversad} {1.25) (0.25)
Payment 10 Auditors (Refer Note 22 A) 0.97 1.10
Total 453.10 22.62
Notz 22 A
Payments to the auditor
Particulars 31.03.2025 |  31.03,2024
Rs, in Lakhs
For Statutory Audit 0.50 0.50
For Tax Audit - -
For other certification work 0.47 0.60
Total .97 .10
Note 23
|Exceptionzl ltemns
Particulars 31.03.2025 |  31.03.2024
Rs. in Lakhs
Provision made eatlier nowe written back {40057
[refer rote no 24{10}]
Total 1400.57} -

A ——



DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIM: L177715WB1981PLCN3346S
Regiztersd Qffice ©
11/, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 70002¢ i

NOTES TO STANDALOME FINANCEAL STATEMENTS

Note Ne.24 Additional Disclozures
1 Coatingent fiabilitias (to the extent net provided for)

th z€gpest of income 18x defmand amouning 19 83.9.62 -{Rs, in L3khsi for the Assessment yeaar 2077-2016 | Tihe cempany has atready fied appealiretfication with the respictve

awihority.

2 Dperting Segmaent:
Operaling segfments afe reported 6 2 mannds consistent with the intemal reparting provided to the chiel eperating decsion maker (CODM] of the Campany. The COCM iz
responsibie for allocating resources 90d a55655ing the performance of the operating segments of 1he Campany.

As per reguiroment of IndAS 108 * Segment Reparting” no disclosures are required to be made sinca the Company's activities cons 3 of a single busingss ssgmeal.

3 There sre no Micro, Small and Mediem Enterpiise, to wham the company owes duss, which arg gutstandiag for mere than 45 days during the yesr ang alzo 21 3152 diacch 2625, This
information a5 sequired to be disclosod under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Davelopment Act 2006 has been detenmined 10 Ihe extent such panties have been identified
on the basis of information available with the company.

4 Eaming Per Share;

— A in uk!_g_s
[ Computation of Eamings per Equity Share (Easic and Dilited] 202425
i [Basic
el (it Number of Equity Shares at the beginning of the yeer 8,652,585 952,595
{ii) Number of Equity Shares at the end of the year 862555 952,595
{ui) Weighted average number of EqQuity Shares ottstanding during the year 9,562,585 9,582,585
{i¥) Face Value of each Equity Share {in "} {4} 10
ol Amount of Profit afier tax antributeble to Equity Shareholders 70253 621,78
(e} Basic Earnings per Equity Share {{biNakliil 73.75 67,37
1] Dilurad
(8} Dilutive Potenual Equity Shazes 9,52,535 952,595
ib) Diluted Evrnings per Equity Shire [Same as (lic) above] T35 67.37
§ Helated Party Disclosures:
A} List of related partias where contrgf exists
SN Name of the Related Party Relationzhip
1 Wondside Fashions Limited Associste
2 Surencra Kumer Bachhaveat Managing Director
3 Mahendgea Kumir Bschhawat
] |Prakesh Eschbawat Diractor
5 Ssrla Baid
1] Hemra] Fagnoria ~
2 Ramai Singh Jain hidupsndard Dicwute
B rﬂajni Mishra Company Secretary
a Pradrp Kurnar Bera Chief Finasiat Officer
o Rajendre Kumar Bachh Relative of Key Mansgement
Personnel
B) List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken place 3nd relationships:
SN Name of the Related Party Relationship
1 [Woodside Fashions Limized Associate
2 Surendra Kumar Bechhawat Key Mansgement Personnel
7 . Relstive of Key Mansgement
A Ki Bachh,
3 sjengra Kumar Bachhawat i
Cl Transactions during the year with related parties
Rz i lakha
a Rey Relative of Key -
Natyre of Transactons with " . Outstanding zson
SN Parties where Control exists| Manag Manag
Related Party PovsanTel Parccane 315t March'2025
(73
f ts - - -
1 Sete of Investments (Shares) (485,801
2 Director's Remuneration - (;&gg; ’ a

“* Previous Years figares are given in bracket
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NOTES TO STAMDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

€ As per notification ro.REIDNBR2{18-17/44 issuec by the Reserve Bank of Ingix, Contingert Provision against Standarg Assets have been wversed by Rs 1.Z5(Re i [9kbs) Quring]
the year. trevarsad in P.Y. B5.0.255 iRs. in Lakhs)

7 #2900 Shares ot Tate Sieel Limited shown under Noa-current {ovestment in the financial statermants is yet to be fransforred ins the name of the company due Ie litigation with rspbet
10 ownership of shares.

8 Schedule to the Balnce Sheet af @ Non - Benking Fingncial Compsny s required in 1erms of Peragrapt 16 of Non-Banking Finsrcial Company —Non-Systemically impenant Non-
Depoat taiung Company {feserve Bank) Directians. 2016 issued vide Notification No. DNBB PO.OC7/08.10.1 19201637 cated September 03, 2018 is a5 par Annexuze 1,

S Disclosures requirement in the Snancial statements 1a astordanes with ‘Scale Based Rogalstion (SBR) vide circutar ne. DDRCRE REC.No £0/G3.10,001/2021-22 dated Otobec 22, 2021
is as per Aanexure-2.

10 The Company holds pancinal investments amounting 1o Rs.400.574(Rs. in lakks) in the preference shares of Infrastructure Leasing & Financial Services Limited (ILAFS Lig, ), which
eng accounted 101 81 amoctized Cost tn secordance with Ing AS 108 - Financia! Instruments.,
As per the tlgseitication by the Resolution Censulrant of (L&ES L1d., the cempany has been categoriced a3 5 "Aed Ensity”, indicating significant financial stiess antd uncertsinty
regording the recoverability of investments, Accordingly, during the financist yess ended 3151 March 2020, the Company had prudently recagnized a pravigion for fair vaiue foss of]
R$.400.57/4Rs, in lakhs), swhich was disclosed as an exceptional item i the finsncial stetements.
In the cureant financial year, coasidening the contsnued ungertzinty and the unkkely rocovery of the invesiment, the Company has decidsd 10 book loss on invesument of the entire
investment by transferring the praviously mcognized provision to the “Loss on Iavestment’ account. Cantsequently, the provision his been reversed, and e loss has been duly]

eeflacted in the Statement of Profit ang Loss.

11 Datails of transsetion with struck off Companies
Balance Relstionship with the
”:;:::{ 5:’::“ Nature of transaction with Struck-off Company Outstan | Struck oft company, if pary,
e ding 10 be disclosed
NA Iavestment in Securities Nil NA
HA Receivables 211} NA
NA Payables Nil NA
NA Share hetd by stuck off compsny Nil NA
NA Gther Outstanding Balance (10 be specified) Mil NA

12 The Company has incurred towards Corpersie Socizl Responsibility expenditure during the year as per the provisions of Companies Act 2013,

g 3ist
Partienfars 3732 March 2025 March.2024
{Fis.in Lakhs]
Excess amount brought forward 0.17 744
Amount requined to be spent
during the yeac 7220 7-26
Amount of expenditure incumrad flefer nota
800
bolow
Extess amount carry farwand 047 0.17
Total of pervious vears shorrfall Nil Nil
Resson for shortfall NA NA
Natuse of CSR activities Educadon Educstion
[Retated pasty transactions NA NA
It Il2biRty is incureed by entering NA NA
ing a concacrual obligstion, the
movement ia the provision.

1} Excess smount spant of CSR in FY 2022-23 Rs. 7.44/-(Rs.in Lakhs) utilisedd in previous FY 2023-24 against the CSR liability of Rs.7.26-Rs.in Lakhs}. Out of balance amount of
R3.0.17/-[Rs.in Lakhs), the company utilised against the CSR lishility of Rs. 7.70/{Rs.in Lakhs} and the balance carry fonward.

2} The CSR donation i in support of i ton involved in promotion of Education.
Yot to be paid in
Particulars In Cash Carshy Total

{Ti] Construclionscquisihon of ony ssset Na Nit Wil

{ Previous Yoart Nil Nl ]
|iii) On purposes other than (i) ebave 8.00 Nil 8.00

( Previous Yesr ) Eileroaty Nil Reder note ahove

abowe

13 Deferred tax :
As perind AS 12, the Compaey has deforred tax Nabilities due to difference In depreciation as par Companies Act and a5 per lacome tax Ay, MAT credit entiflgment & Fair Value

Change in investreny, (Redor Note. 12 to the finpncial statements)

14 Useful Life of , Plant & Equij it ag Companies Act 2013 are given balow:
Assots Usetul e Remaining Life
Building &) yoars 349
tio1or Car 8 years 0.4
Office Equipment’s Syears Nl
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

0]

Note No. ; 24 Additional Bisctosures {contd.)

15 Financial Instrument, related disclosures

i)

Financial instruments- Accounting, Classification and Fair Value Mcasurement

A. Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial hiabilities, including their tevels in the fair value hierarchy. It
does not include fair value infarmation for financial assets and financiat liabifities not meezsured at fair value if the canrying amount is a reasonable
approximetion of fair value,

RAs. in Lakhs
[ Particulars 31st March 2025 _ 315t March 2024 .
FVPL FVoCi Amortised cost FVPL FVQCl Arnortized cost
A |Financial Assets
1] Investments 8,207.79 861.44 562.64 7.401.04 831.63 562.64
2| Cash and cash equivalents - - 49018 - - 168.38
3|Trede Receivables - = . = = =
4 |Loans . - 501,10 - - 1,000.12
5| Other financial assets - - 84.66 = = 86.68
Total financial assets B,207.79 £61.44 1,638.58 7,401.04 891.62 1,818.81
B |Financial liabilities
1 Borrowings - - - 4 =
2| Trade payables - - -
3| Other financial fiabilities{Cucrent} . - 2 . =
Yotai Financal Liabilities - - * P < L

B. Measurement of fair values

Fair Value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fsir values of the financial instruments that are (2} recognised and measured at
fair value and {b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair vajues are disclosed in the financial ststements. To provide an indication about the reliability,
of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels preseribed wader the accounting
standard.

Levei 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instrurnents that are not traded in éa ective market is detsrmined using valuation techniques which masimlse the use of
observable market data and rely as litle as possible on entity-specilic estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in levet 2.

Level 3: If sne or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in {evel 3. Fair values are determined in
whole or in pan, using a valuation made( besed on assumptions thal are neither supported by prices from observable current market trsnsactions in the
same instrimaent nor are they based on svailable market data.

(i1} Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Management uses its best judgement in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
active market is determined using valuation lechaiques. The Company uses its judgments 1o select a vatiety of methods and makes assumptions that arel
mainly bzsed on marke! conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. However, there are inherent limitations in any estimation technique.
Therefo re, for substantially all financial Instruments, the fair value estimates presented above are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Company
could have realised or paid in sale transactions as of respective dates. As such, fair value of financial instruments subsequent to the reporting dates may be
different from the amounts reported 3t 2ach reporting date.

Specific valuation technigues used 1o value financial instruments include:

. the fair value of the finsncial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis/ other method

b. the use of quoted market price
As, in Lakhs

31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Leval 2 tevel 3

Particulars

Financial assets:

Investments measurad at FVTPL 8,207.79 - - 7.401.04 - =
Investments measured at FVOCH 861.44 - - §31.63 - -
Total 9,069.24 - - 8,292.68 - -

The carrying amounts of remaining finagncial assets and fiabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values due to short term nsture.

Notes:
1 There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 far the years ended March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024,
Costs of cenain unquoted equity instruments has been considered as an sppropriate estimate of fair value because of a wide range of possible f3ir value

messurements and cost represents the best estimste of fair value witkin that range.
if\_ ‘
,__Lﬂ__

-
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(A}

(B)

{c)

Note No. : 24 Additional Disclosures {cantd.}

Financial risk management

The Company's business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, market
risks and credit risk. The Company’s senior management has the overall responsibility for establishing and
governing the Company's financial risk management framework.

Cradit risk

Credit risk refers to risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resuiting in financial
lass ta the Company. Credit risk arises primarily from financial assets such as trade receivables, bank
balances and loans.

At each reporting date, the Company measures loss allowance for certain class of financital assets based on
historical trend, industry practices and the business environment in which the Company operates.

Credit risk arising from balances with banks is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit
worthiness.

Credit risk arising from loans given/inter-corporate deposits {ICD} are limited due to the Borrower's profiles)
and historical experience of collection. All such ICDs are reviewed and assessed on 3 quarterly basis.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associsted with its financial
liabilities. The Company’s approach in managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to
meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable josses. In doing this, management considers
both normal and stressed conditions.

The Company maintsined a cautious liquidity strategy, with a positive cash balance throughout the year|
ended 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024. Cash flow from operating activities provides the funds to
service the financial liabilities on a day-to-day basis. The Company regularly monitors the rolling forecasts
to ensure it has sufficient cash on an on-going basis to meet operational needs. Any short-term surplus
cash generated, over and above the amount required for working capital management and other|
aperational requirements, is retained as cash and cash equivalents (to the extent required) and any excess
ts invested in interest bearing NCDs, bonds and other highly marketable debt investments with appropriate
maturities 1o optimise the cash returns on investments while ensuring sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities.

Market Risk

Market Risk is the risk of loss of future earningsfuture cash flows that may result from a change in the price
of a financial instrument. The price of a financial instrument may fluctuate because of changes in market
prices, equity prices and other market changes that effect market risk sensitive instruments. The goal of
market risk management is optimization of profit and controlling the exposure ta market risk within
acceptable limits.

(i} Currency Risk is not material, as the Company's primary business activities are within India and does not
have any exposure in foreign currency.,

{ii} Interest Rate Risk i5 the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of @ financial instruments wil
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates, The Company is not exposed to the interest rate risk
due to its investment in fixed rate instruments which are being carried a8t cost and not subject to interest

rate risk.

/f%’;—_—
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DECPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L17115WB1S81PLC033469
Registered Office :
1141, SARAT EOSE RCOAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR. KOLKATA WE 700020 I
NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Capital management
Regulatary capal

The Reserve Bank of India {RBI} sets and monitors capilal agequacy requirements for the Company from time 1o tree.
The Companies regulatory capital cansists of the sum of the following eleméanis:

Tier ¥ Capitsl Includes:
Tier 1 Capital includes:

1) Ordinary share capaal,

2} Secuniies premium reserve,

3] Retained earnings,

4} Cumulalive compulsarity convertible preference Shares (CCCPS),
5] Dubenture redemption reservu

6] Perpotual debt

kil Special restrie

g Retaingd earnings

9 Special reseeve.

10} General reserve

Tier 1 Capital does not include unrealised fair value gain/loss bocked for financial instruments measured at fair valug through profit and loss statement and
shares gption outstanding account FaHowing items are deducted feam Tier 1

a} Intangibles
bl Daferred revenue axpenditure Jor raising barrawings
5] Deferred tsx assets

Tier Il capital indudes

1) subordingted debt
impairmem allowance pravisioning for stage 1 and stage 2 financial 455013 10 the extent the sams does nat exceed 1.25% of Risk weightad

2 Bssets,
3 perpetual debt to the extent not eilgibie for Tier §,

= ek TR e | Asa = AL

k. I I 4 = | = .
s B Hn?;{ll ? it TS | 31032025 |Aser31.032024

Ther 1 capital
Oidludry shigre caphal = =
Securities premium reserve 366.00 356.00
Amsglgamation Reserve 128.28 129.29
Retained earrings 7.481.33 6.923.56
Special teserve 2,035.50 1,894,892
General reserve 358.98 28871
Orhaer Compeehensive Income 156.47 364.47
Less:

- Dstorred Tax Asset {B6.15} (47.72)
Tier L Capital 10.613.70 10.020.74
Tier H Capital - =
Tior | + Tier | Capital 10,613.70 10,020.74
Additional Beatlatory Information

The Company does not own &ny immovable property whose title deed are not registered in the name af the Ccmpany.,
The company does not have sy proceedings initistad or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Frohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988] and rules made thercunder.
The company has neither been declared 25 a willful defauiter nor has received any show cause notice frem any bank or financial institutior or government gr|
any povernment authority,

The Company has nat traded or invested in Crypio currency or Virtua! Currency during the financial year.
The Company has not any such transaction which is Aot recorded in the boaks of sttounts that has been surrendared or disclosed as income during the year
in the 18x assessments undee the Income Tax Act, 1961,

The Compsny has not sdvanced or losnad or invested funds to any other persorls) or entity(s) including foreign entities (intermadiacies) with the

understanding that the intermediaries shail;
i. Directly or indirectly fand or invest in ather persens or entities in any manner what so ever by or on behalf of the Company (ultimate beneficiaties); or

fi. Provide any gusrantes, security or the like fo or on behalf of the ultimate beneficisries.

The Company has not received any fund from any persanis) or entityls), including foreign entities {funding party) with the understanding [whether recorded
in writing or otherwise) that the Company waill:
I Directly or indirectly tznd or invest in other persons ar entities identified in any marner what s¢ ever by or oo behalf of the funding party  [ultimate
beneficiacies]; or
i Provide any guarantee, security Wehal! of the ultimate beneficiaries.

-3 W&?g
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Registered Office :
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NOTES TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note No. : 24 Additional Disclosures {contd.}
h] The Compeny does not have any charges or sstisfaction which is yot to be registered with ROC bevond the statutery pericd

ij The Compdany has not received any whistle blower complaints during tha yesr.

) The company has nol made 2any wrensactions during the year with comipanies struck o1 under section 245 of the Companies Act, 2013 ¢r section 360 of the
} Companies Act, 1956,
The Company has net filed any Scheme of Arrangement in terms of section 230 <0 #37 of Companies Act, 2013, with 2ny Competent

W suthonty.
n The company has comglied with the number of tavers prescribed under clause (87} of saction 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on nusober of
Layers) Rules, 2017,
19 Ratios
. Current Previous P Reason for
Rati 1 4
ie Numerator Dehominator Period Perind % Variance Varance
Capital 10 Risk Weightsd Asser Ratic Tigr 1+ Tee f| Rigk Weighted
(CRARI Capits! Assts 1.22 1.22 003%INA
. Risk Weighteo
Tier | CRAR 1 1. o) .
i Tier | Capital W 22 22 -0.03%|N.A
Tier !l CRAR Tiorll Copital | o Weighted NA NA NA[NA
stockoftigh |o0 S CEEH
Liquidity Coverage Ratio Quality Liquid iha it 30 NA| N.A NAINA
AIss [calendar days

20 The previous geriod's figures hawe been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary te correspond to those of the current year.
Amounts and other disclosures for the preceding year are includad as an Integeal part of the current year financial stitemens and are 1o be read i relation 1o
the amounts and other disclosures relating to the current year.

A< per sur Report of even date attached.

For JBS & Company For and on bahalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants B
Firm Registration No: 323734€ - Qc 1\3 !A-—‘\ul
& ——nd
%u p Sty | == Mahendr Kumar Bachhawat
CA Dillip Shaha Director
{Partner} DIN: 00125471 DIN: 20123820
Membership No, 312458 . F . y M
R)Oan. Mi ghso a0 Keva) §
ini Mishra Pradip Kumar Bera
#lace : Koliata Campany Secretary Chict Financial Officer

pue: 97.05-9035




Annexure 1

SCHEDULE TO THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.25 OF
DEEPLOK FINAWNCIAL SERVICES LIMITED a Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company

(As required in terms of Paragraph 18 of Nen-Banking Financial Company -Non-Systemically
Important Non-Depaosit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 issued vide Notification No.
| DNEBR.PD.007/03.10.119/2016-17 as updated on 31.05.2018)

PARTICULARS {Rs. In Lakhs)
Amount Amount
Outstanding, Overdue

LIABILIZIES SIDE :
Y Loans and Advances availed by-the non-banking financial company inclusive of
interest accrued thereon but not paid :

(a) Debentures: Secured — -

Unsecured - -

(Other than falling within the meaning of public deposits) - -
(b) Deferred Credits = .
{&) Term Loans = =
{d) Inter-Corporate Loans & Borrowings - -
(e) Commercial Paper =, -
() Public Deposits = %
(g} Other Loans (Specify nature) ~ ol

@) Break-up of 1(f) above (Qutstanding public deposits inclusive of
interest accrued thereon but not paid):

{2) Interms of Unsecured debentures - -
() In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where there is a shortfall

in the value of security = -
(c) Other Public Deposits - =2

ASSETS SIDE ¢ AMOUNT OUTSTANDING

@G Break-up of Loans and Advances including Bills Receivables
[Other than those included in (4) below ]
(a) Secured -
(b) Unsecured 501.10

Break-up of Leased Assets and Stock on Hire and other assets
& counting towards AFC activities :

{1} Lease Assets including Lease Rentals under Sundry Debtars :

(2) Financial Lease -

{b) Operating Lease -

{if) Stock on Hire including Hire Charges under Sundry Debtors :

(@) Assetson Hire e

(b) Repossessed Assets ’ -

(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities

(a) Leans where assets have been repossessed -

(b) Loans other than (a) above =

(5) Break-up of Investments :

Current [nvestments :
1. Quoted:
(i) Shares: (a)Equity =
{b) Preference -

{ii) Debentures and Bonds -
(iti) Units of Mutual Funds -
{(iv) Government Securities -
(v) Others (please spedify) =S
2. Unquoted :
() Shares: (a)Equity -

(b) Preference o
ity Debentures and Bonds -
(iti) Units of Mutual Funds =
{iv) Government Securities -

(v} Others -

Contd...... P



SCHEDULE TO THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.25 OF
DEEPLOK FINANCIAL S5ERVICES LEMITED a Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company

(As required in terms of Paragraph 18 of Non-Banking Finandal Company -Non-Systemiczlly
Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 issued vide Netification No.
DNBR.PD.007/03.10.119/2016-17 as updated on 31.03.2015}

Long Tenn Investisents ©
1. Quoted:

(i) Shares: (a) Equity

(b} Preference
(ify Debentures and Bonds
(ii} Units of Muhual Funds
(iv} Government Securities
{v) Others

2. Ungquoted :
(i) Shares: (a)Equity
(b} Preference
(if) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds
{iv) Government Securities
(v} Others {Gold Ceins)

861.44
3011.87
3803.23
175233

(6) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as i (3) and (4) above :

Category

Amount net of provision
Secured Unsecured Total

1. Related Parties
{a) Subsidiaries
(b) Companies in the same group
{c) Other related parties

2. Other than related parties

- 501.10 501.10

TOTAL:

- 501.10 50110

{7} Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and fong term) in shares and securities {both quoted and

unquated) :

Category

Market Value/ Book Value
Break-up or fair (Netof
Value or NAV Frovisions)

1. Related Parties
{a) Subsidiaries
(b) Companies in the same group
(¢) Other related parties

2. Other than related parties

134.75 134.75

9,497.12 9,497.12

TOTAL:

9,631.87 9,631.87

(8) Other Information

Particulars

Amouant

(1) Gross Non-Ferforming Assets
(a) Related Parties
(b) Other than related Parties
(ii) Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related Parties
(b) Other than related Parties
(iif) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debts

For J.B.S & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 323734E

m: ll-&p M
CA Dillip Shaha
(Partner)

Membership No. 312458

Place : Kolka
D:::: 2%1‘0?-90 95

For and on Behalf of the Board

oclhowrt ER qofhoirsh

dra Kumar Bachhawat Mazhendra Kumar Bachhawat
fanaging Director Director

DIN: 00129471 DIN: 04125520
jri Mishra Pradip Kumar Bera

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer



Deeplok Financial Senvices Limited
CING L17115WB1981 PLCO33462
Registered Office :
11/1 Sarat Bose Road, South Block, 2ad Fleor, Kalkata, B 700020 -IN

Nates forming part of financial statement for the vear ended 31st March 2025

Additional disclogures in terms ol e Base ation (S AMNEWOT! troular no~circufar = REC.N0.60,/03.10.002 /2021 atey ober 22,
dditional discl i f Scale Based ulation (SBRY £ k {Circul ircular DOR.CRE REC.N0.60/03.10.001 /2021.22 dated Octobe

2021) are also stated below:.)

(A) Exposure
1) Exposure to real estate sector {Amount in Rs. Crores)
Category 20242025 20123-2024
a)  iDirect Exposure
i) Residential Mortgages - Nil Nit
i)  [Commarcial Real Estate Nil Nil
Investments in Mortgage-Backed Securities (MBS} and other securitized
i) |exposures Nil Nil
b} |Indirect Exposure
) Fund based and non-fund-based exposures on National Housing Bank and Nil il
Housing Finance Companies
Tatal Exposure to Real Estate Sector Nil Nil
2 ) Exposure to capital Markel
Particulars 2024-2025 2023-2023
i}  |Directinvestment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and
units of equity oriented mutual funds the corpus of which i not exclusively 30.56 2938
invested in corporate debt
Total Exposure to capital market 3056 29.3§
AT E g Tl 2024-2025 2023-2024
Sectors
1 |Agriculture and Allied Activities Nil Nil
2 |Industry Nil Nid
3 |Services Nil Nil|
4 |Personal Loans Nil Nil]
5 |Others { Loan to Bodies Corparate) 5.00 10.00 |
4) Intra-group exposures 2024-2025 2023-2024
1 [(Total amount of intra-group exposures 135 1.35
2 |Total amount of top 20 intra-group exposures 1.35 135
Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure of the NBFC on 26.95% 13.45%
3 |borrowers/customars

5) Unhedged foreign ¢ ¥ exp

| i) l:l'he compnay does not have any unhedged foreion currency exposure as at 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024.

{B) Related Party Disclosure

| i) [Forrelated party disclosure refer to Note No- 24(3) of the additional notes to financial statements,

{C) Disclosure of complainis

) ta0m.

There are no complaints received by NBFCs from customer and from the office of Ombudsman during the year ended 31st March, 2025 and 31st March,

For J.B.S & Company Forand o half of the Board of Diceclors
Chartered Aarountants
Firm Registration No: 3237ME W @—Q ! ! Q ‘]——\'G*g
' ¥ -
(-%1 u-‘n'- L(J.R-IA.D dra Kumar Bachhawal Mahendrea Kumar Bachhawat
CA Dillip 8 Managing Directar Director
{Partnex) DIN: 00129471 DIN: 00129520
Membership No. 512458 5 .. p . p)c/m )
Place : Kalkata Rajni Mishra Pradip Kumar Berz

Company Secretary

Date: 29052025

Chief Financial Officer
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

60, BENTINCK STREET, 4TH FLOOR
KOLKATA - 700 069
E-mail : ibs_company@rediffmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

i)
THE MEMBERS OF
i1 1PLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

“eport on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Uprinion

oo have audited the accompanying Consolidated  financial statements of DEEPLOK
PINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED (‘the Parent Company’) and its associates (the parent & its
Aswociate together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet
d~ al 31 March 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
¢ omprehensive Income), the Cousolidated Cash Flow Statement and Lhe Consolidated Statement
o Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
incinding a summary of the material accounting policies and other explanatory information

fiour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us
Ui aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies
AL 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind-AS") specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the company as at 31
March 2025, and their consolidated profit (including other comprehensive income),consolidated
cash tlows and the consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

asis for Opinion

e conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
tiditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of LEthics issued by the
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fostitute of Chartered Accountants of India logethier with the ethiical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Kcy audit matters

~eyv audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
m our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on lhese matters.

[nformation other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

" he Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information.
he other information comprises the information included in the Company’s Annual Report but
toes not include the Consolidated Financial Statements and our Auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

i1 connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
mconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the

course of our audil or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

It, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ihe Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
avcounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities.; selection and
application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making
judigments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
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tidintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effeclively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Consolidated financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
[rom material misstatement, whether due to frand or error.

In preparing the Consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s abilily to continue as a gomg concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern hasis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to ccasc operations, or has no realislic allernative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting

process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated financial
slatements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinuon. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
delect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of Uese Consolidated financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skeplicism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of the material misstatement of the financial statement,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operaling effectiveness of such controls.
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e LEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounling and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are madequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
Auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease

to continue as a gOiDg concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

¢ communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deliviencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Ve also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
refationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

e did not audit the financial statement and other financial information of an associates
incorporated in India. The consolidated financial statements also include the share of profit of
Ra.(in Lakhs) 287.82/-for the year ended 31 March, 2025, as considered in the Consolidated
tinancial statements, in respect of an associates whose financial statements /financial information
1ave not been audited by us and whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management
and our opinion on the Consolidated financial statements , In so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of the associate and our report in terms of sub section (3) and
(11) of section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid associate , is based solely on
the reports of the other auditor.

Our Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to
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our reliance on the work done and reports of the other auditor and the Financial
“ialements/ Financial Information certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

f. With respect to the other matters specified in clause (xxi) of Paragraph 3 and Paragraph 4 of
the Companies (Auditor’s Report ) Order,2020 (the “Order” /”CARO”) Issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Acl, to be included in the Auditor’s Report.
According 1o the information and explanation given to us, and based on the CARO reports
issued by the respective auditor of its Associale included in the Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that
there are no qualification or adverse remarks in the CARO report of the component.

-~ As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

21 We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

[n our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company

.

so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

the consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreément with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
linancial statements;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015 as amended.

¢} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025
laken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st
March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

1) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

“Annexure A”.

&) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of

our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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Ihe Company has disclosed the impact of pending liligations on the financial position in
its Consolidated financial statements [Refer Note No. 24(1) to its Consolidated Financial
Statements)

The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses:

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

(A) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(B)The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by
the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
I any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”)
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(C)Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (A) and (B)
above, contain any material misstatement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

The company has used such accounting software for maintaining its books of account
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been
operated throughout the year for all transactions recorded in the software and the audit
trail feature has not been tampered with. The audit trail has been preserved by the
company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

With respect lo the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

g CO4; Py

et
,

” B
A
VS

’[_h o

Jreg acc



Continuation Sheet

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us based on the audit report of the associate company by e other auditor, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

For ].B.S. & Company
Chartered Accountants

s COmx. FRN: 323734E

dle s Bille Ta

\t&f‘-;— K Dillip Shaha

97 Acc
- Partner
Membership No.: 312458

'ace: Kolkala
Date: 27.05.2025
UIDIN: 25312458 BMIZFE1314
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“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
svetion 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

‘vo have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DEEPLOK
FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2025 in conjunction with
cur audit of the Consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that

dale.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Fhe Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by, the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
¢n Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
« hartered  Accountants  of India (ICAY). These responsibilitics include the design,
inplementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
vhicetively tor ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the salcguarding of ils assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
crrors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
~vote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
< internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
tued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effec tively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
~iicrnal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur
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audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
ol internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
un the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
awsessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error.

Ve believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriale to providc a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial

reporting.
Mcaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
Consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
Jetail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(=) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of - Consolidated tinancial statements in accordance with generally accepted
awcounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
teasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Consolidated

Inancial statements.
Inhcrent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
cvaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
lo the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures

iy deteriorale.
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Opinion

Ivour opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For ].B.S. & Company

/E_C O Chartered Accountants

\._." “':'[‘ .
? TG\ FRN: 323734E
[ KOLKATA |73 . :
s O Ty Ut
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Nrog acoss™ CA Dillip Shaha
o Partner

Membership No.: 312458
P’lace: Kolkata
Dale: 27.05.2025
UDIN: 25312458 BMIZFE1314



DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469
Hegistered Oftice :
11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025

. As at As at
1 Note No.| 315t March 2025 31st March 2024
Rs inl akhs
| ASSETS
(1) Tinancial Asscts
(a} Cash and cash eguivalents q 36.06 63.80
(b) Bank Balance other than included in (a) above 4 454,12 105.58
(c) Loans 5 501.10 1,000.12
{d) Investments 6 13,578.31 12,513.96
{e) Other Financial assets 7 84.66 86.68
14,654.28 13,770.14
(2) Non-financial Assets
(a) Inventories 8 - 0.28
(b) Current tax assets {Net) 9 0.57 4.38
{c) Property, Plant and Equipment 10 3.12 3.64
3.69 8.30
Total Assets 14,657.97 13,778.44
1l LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
A LIABILITIES
(1} Non Financial Liabilities
(a) Provisions 11 1.25 2.50
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 12 86.15 47.72
(c) Other non-financial liabilities 13 1.28 1.29
88.68 51.51
B EQUITY
(a) Equity Share capital 14 95,26 95.26
{b) Other Equity 15 14,474.02 13,631.67
14,569.28 13,72C.93
Totul Liabilitics and Equity 14,657.97 13,778.44
Material Accounting Policies and notes to financial statements 1-24
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our Report of even date attached.
For J.B.S & Company for and on behalit ot the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 323734E i(

B “Af\ Y ao(/\aw ALYV L‘*‘_’f’
CA Dillip Shaha rendra Kumar Bachhawat Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat
(Partner) Managing Director Director
Membership No. 312458 DIN: 00129471 DIN: 00129820

» . ~
Place : Kolkata Rc‘a"’“ M\'/&\r\j—@\_ 2 aly0 Henwan. MT
Date: 274-05-2025 Rajni Mishra Pradip Kumar Bera

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer



DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469
Registered Office :
11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN

Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss for the Year Ended 31st March 2025

. Note Year ended Year ended
Particulars
No. 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Rs. in Lakhs
INCOME
Revenue from operations
Interest Income 16 446.79 506.68
Dividend Income 17 182.96 123.49
Net gain on fair value changes 18 280.77 80.51
Sale of Stock-in-trade 0.44 -
Total Revenue from Operation 910.96 710.67
Other income 19 71.03 171.78
Total Income 981.99 882.46
EXPENSES
Net {Increase)/Decrease in Stock 20 0.28 (0.09)
Employee benefits expense 21 58.04 55.48
Depreciation and amortisation expense 10 0.52 0.72
Other expenses 22 443.10 22.62
Total Expenses 501.94 78.73
Profit/(loss) Before Share of Profit of Associate and Exceptional
items and Tax 480.04 803.72
Share of Profit of Associate {net of tax) 280.48 504.27
Profit/{loss} Before Exceptional items and Tax 760.52 1,307.99
Exceptional ltems 23 (400.57) -
Profit/{loss) before Tax 1,161.10 1,307.99
Tax Expenses
Current Tax 129.46 148.36
Deferred Tax 48.64 13.58
Earlier Years - 0.01
178.09 161.95
Profit for the Year 983.01 1,146.05
Other Comprehensive Income
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Change in fair value FOVCI equity instruments (158.20) 296.36
Income tax relating to these items 10.21 (32.25)
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Share of OCl of Associate (net of tax) 7.34 3.68
Other Comprehensive Income for the Year (140.65) 267.79
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 842.35 1,413.84
Earning Per Shares
Basic and Diluted 103.19 120.31
Nominal Value Per Share 10.00 10.00
Material Accounting Policies and notes to financial statements 1-24
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our Report of even date attached.

For J.B.S & Company For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants
Flrm Registration No: 323734E

O Cheu jf FR o e fha b o

\ “-LE
CA Dillip Shaha rendra Kumar Bachhawat Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat
{Partner) Managing Director Director
Membership No. 31245 DIN: 00129471 DIN: 00129820
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Place : Kolkata ajni Mishra Pradip Kumar Bera
Date : Qq 05. 2025 Company Secretary Chief Firnancial Officer



DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469
Registered Office :
11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025

[ 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
PARTICULARS Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before Tax : 1,161.10 1,307.99
Adiustment for:
Depreciation 0.52 Q.72
Share of Profit of Associates (280.48) (504.27)
Provisions for standard and sub standard assets (1.25) {0.25)
Net Changes in Fair Market Value (280.77) (80.51)
(Profit)/Loss on Sale of Investment (69.53) (139.40)
Dividend Income (182.96) (814.47) (123.49) (847.20)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 346.63 460.79
Adjustment for Changes in Working Capital :
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Financial Asset and other assets 2.02 34.37
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Bank Balance (348.54) (97.37)
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventory 0.28 (0.09)
Increase/{Decrease) in Other Liability (0.01) {346.25) 0.01 {63.08)
Cash used for Operations 0.38 397.71
Direct Taxes Paid:
Income Taxes Paid 125.65 152.68
Net Cash inflow/(outflow) from Operating Activities (A} (125.27) 245.03
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Loan Disbursed, Recd, & Repayment recd.(net) 499.02 99.94
{Purchase) / Sale of Investments (584.46) (436.54}
Dividend Received 182.96 123.49
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow} from Investing Activities (B) 97.52 (213.12)
C. CAEH FLOW FRCM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow} from Financing Activities {C) - -
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents {27.74) 31.91
Add: Opening Cash & Cash Equivalents 63.80 31.89
Closing Cash & Cash Equivalents 36.06 63.80
Notes:
a) Cash and cash equivalent under financial asset at note no.4 are cash and cash equivalent for the purpose
of drawing cash flow statement. Therefore reconciliation statement required under para 45 of Ind AS 7 is not required.
b) Figures in the brackets are cash outflow/income as the case may be.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our Report of even date attached.

For J.B.S & Company For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 323734E f“-\ 3 p\
e G 9 F R oo fhorse
r‘% | 4 U oo o fhouwo S0 C L
CA Dillip Shaha rendra Kumar Bachhawat Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat
(Partner) Managing Director Director
Membership No. 312458 DIN: 00129471 DIN: 00129820
Y ; kﬂq f Y0 Hevan Pene
Place : Kolkata 95 Roafy\, M' A . 'rch/ﬂ' S
Date : 2 ':(-05 Q0 Rajni Mishra Pradip Kumar Bera

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer



DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED

CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469
Registered Office :
11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN

Consolidated Statement of Change In Equity for the Year Ended 31st March 2025

A. Equity Share Capital

(1) Current reporting year

(Rs. in Lakhs}

Changes in
equity share
capital during
the current year

Balance at the beginning of the
current reporting year

Balance at the end of|
the current reporting
year

95.26 &

95.26

{2] Previous reparting year

Changes in
equity share
capital during
the previous
year

Balance at the beginning of the
previous reporting year

Balance at the end of
the previous
reporting year

95.26 -

96.26

B. Other Equity
1) Current reporting Period

Other
Reserve and Surplus Comprehensive
Dcscription 2 Income Total
Retained Earnings Secun:ities Amalgamation Special Reserve General ) Equity
Premium Reserve Reserve instruments
Balance at 01 April 2024 10,513.48 356.00 129.29 1,995.85 339.14 297.91 13,631,67
Profit for the year 983.01 - - - - - 983.01
Other Comprehensive Income - - - = - (140.65) {140.65)
Gross Balance 11,496.49 356.00 129.29 1,995.85 339.14 157.26 14,474.02
Less: Appropriations

- Transfer to General Reserve (98.30) - - - 98.30 - -

- Transfer to Special Reserve (45-IC of RBI Act) (196.60) - - 196.60 - - -
Balance at 31 March 2025 11,201.59 356.00 129.29 2,192.45 437.45 157.26 14,474.02
2) Previous reparting period

Other
Reserve and Surplus Comprehensive
Description Income Total
Retainad Earstngs Secm:ities Amalgamation SisdiiRasine General ) Equity
Premium Rasarva Rescrve instruments
Balance at 01 April 2023 9,711.25 356.00 129.29 1,766.64 224.53 30.12 12,217.83
Profit for the year 1,146.05 - . - - - 1,146.05
Other Comprehensive Income - - - - - 267.79 267.79
Gross Balance 10,857.30 356.00 128.29 1,766.64 22453 297.91 13,631.67
Less: Approprialions

- Transfer to General Reserve (114.60) 114.60

- Transfer to Special Reserve (45-IC of RBI Act) (229.21) - - 229.21 . = -
Balance at 31 March 2024 10,513.48 356.00 129.29 1,995.85 339.14 297.91 13,631.67

For J.B.S & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 323734E

iy &

{Partner) v
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*

_!* COMO
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For ai
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DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L17115WB1381PLC033469
Registered Office :
11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN

Material Accounting Policies

1 General Information
Deeplok Financial Services Limited (the 'Company’) is a public limited Company, incorporated and domiciled in India, The equity shares of the Company are
listed . The registered office of the Company is located at 11/1, Sarat Bose Road, South Block, 2nd Fioor, Kaolkata 700020, West Bengal, India
The Company is Non Banking financial Company having certificate of registartion from R8I vide n0-05.01925 and mainly engaged in investment in shares and
securities
The functional and preeentation curfency of the Cutnpuny i Indian Rupee (“INR”) which is the currency of the plittary ecunuinie envionment i which the
Company operates

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 27th May 2025

2 Material Accounting Policies

The material accounting policies applied by the Company in the preparation of its financial statements are listed below. Such accounling policies have been
applied consistently lo all the periods presented in these financial slatements unless otherwise indicated.

2.1 Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Statement of changes in Equity are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Division Il of
Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act"), The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS. Amounts

in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in Lakh

2.2 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the
Ccempanies Act , 2013 ( the Act), Companies { Indian Accounting Standards ) Rules, 2015 and Companies ( Indian Accounting Standards ) Amendment Rules,
2016] and other relevant provisions of the Act

The Company had been preparing its financial statements upto the year 31 March 2019, as per Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 and other relevant
provisions of the Act (hereinafter referred to as Previous GAAP/Indian GAAP),

23 Principles of consolidation
@] The consolidated financial statements of Deeplok Financial Services Limited and ils associate have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Srsehid e o e S e o S Woonbe o Bibe 30T s 0 mmnon gu s e g gy 00| e ] i
contormuly with the accounting principles generally accepted in India and vthes relevant provisions of the Act
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its associate,
Associates are the entities over which the Group has significant influence. Investmenl in assaciates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after
initially being recognised at cost

The Consolidated financial statements include results of the Associale of Deeplok Financial Services Limited (Parent Company),
consolidated in accordance with Ind AS 110 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’

(ii)
. ) . Proportion of ownership as - .
g . g | 5
Name ol he Company Country of incorporadon at Reporting Date Consolidaled as
Woodside Fashions Limiled India 2396% Associate
Figures (or preparation of cansolidaled financial statements have been derived from the audited financial statements of the respective company in the Group.
{in) Disclosure in lerms of Schedule I1i of the Companies Act, 2013
N hare i s i 1
Net Asgets (i.c. total azscla . ) Share in olh.cr iy lul:a
. Sppp— Share in Profit or (Loss) comprehensive comprehensive
minus tatal liabilities) - ¢
incame income
Name of the entities
in the Group As a®hof Amount As a%of Amount Asa%of  Amounl Asa Yol Amount
consolidated consolidated consolidated consolidated
nel assels profit or loss other total
comprehensiv comprehensiv
o r
Parent
Deeplok Financial Services Limiled 7243% 10,622.81 71.47% 702.53 10522% (147.99) 65.83% 554.54
Assaciate
Woodstde Fashions Limited 27.57% 4,043,54 28.53% 280.48 -522% 7.34 3417% 287.82
Total 100,00% 14,666.35 100,00% 983.01 100.00% (140.65) 100.00% 84236

2.4  Measurement of fair values

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique,

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

a) Level 1: inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company can access at measurement date
b) Level 2: inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
c} Level 3: inputs are uncbservable inputs for the valuation of assets or liabilities that the Company can access at measurement date

S



DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469
Registered Office :
11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN

Material Accounting Policias

25

2.6

31

Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements requires the management of the Company to make judgements, assumptions and eslimates that affect the reported

balances of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating to the contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial slatements and reported amounts cf income
and expenses for the reporting period. The application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective
judgments and the use of assumptions in the financial statements have been disciosed as applicable in the respective notes tc accounts. Accounting estimates
could change from period 1o period. Future results could differ from these estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as the Management becomes
awarc af changes in circumstances sulrounding the eslitmnates, Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial slalerents in the period in which changes are

made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements

Income Taxes:-
Ihe Company’s tax Jurisdiction 1s Indta Signiticant judgements are involved in determining the provisions for income taxes including amount expected (o be

paid or recovered for uncertain tax positions.

Summary of significant accounting policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting palicies adapted in the preparation of these financial statements. These policies have been consistently

applied to all the years presented, unless atherwise stated.

Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and

liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction casts that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
{other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial
recognition of financial asset or financial liability, The transaction costs directly atiributahle to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at (air

value through profit and loss are immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

i) Financial Assets

Subsequent Recognition
The classification of financial assets depends on the Company's business model for managing financial assets and the cantractual terms of cash flow.

The linancial assets are classified in the following calegories:

a) Financial assets measured at amorlised cost,

b) finoncial 09scta meaaured ol (uir vulue through profit and foss ( TVTPL), and

¢} financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income { FVOCI)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Assels that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those flows represent salely payments of principal and interest are measured at
amartised cost, After initial measurement , such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method .
The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the Statement of Prolit & Loss,

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less provision

for impairment, if any.

Fii ial instr t: ed at FVTPL
Hinancial instruments included within FVTPL category are measured initially as well as at each reparting period at fair value plus transaction costs as

applicable Fair value movements are recorded in Statement of Profit & Loss.

Financial assets at FVOCI

Financial assets are measurcd at FVOCI if these financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by bolh collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Investment in Bonds(other than Tax free} and Mutual fund
Investment in Equity Oriented Mutual Funds, Debt Oriented Mutual fund and Bonds(other than Tax free) are classified as FVTPL and measured at fair

value with all changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

Investment in Tax Free Bonds and Non- Convertible Preference Shares

Investment in Tax Free Bonds and Non- Convertible Preference Shares are measured at Cost,

Investment in Equity
investment in Equity are classified as FVTOCI and measured at fair value with all changes recognised in Other Camprehensive Incame.

Investments in Associates
The Company has elected to measure Investment in associates at cost,

Other Unquoted Equity Investments
The Company has elected to measure Investment in Unquoted Equity Shares at cost,

De- recognition of financial assets
The company de- recognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows for the financial assets expires or it transfer the financial
assets and such transfer qualifies for de- recognition under Ind AS 109- Financial instruments,

All investments other than those disclosed otherwise are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment
exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and is written down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of such investments,
the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried al amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Only for Loans the implied approach of life time expected credit losses is recognised from initial recognition of the receivables as required by Ind AS
109- financial instruments.

Impairment foss allowance recognised / reversed during the year is charged / written back to Statement of Profit & Loss.




DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469
Registered Office :
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Material Accounting Policies

ii)

Presentation of ECL allowance for financial asset:

Type of Fi ial asset Disclosure
Financial asset measured at amortised shown separately under the head
Cost “provisions” and not as a deduction from the gross carrying amount

of the assets

Financial assets measured at FVTOC!

Loan commitments and financial shown separately under the head
guarantee conlracts "provisions”

Where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component and the Company cannot identify the ECL on the loan commitment

separately from those on the drawn companent, the Company presents a combined ioss allowance for both components under “provisions”

Financial liabilities

Subsequent Measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value , net of transaction costs incurred . Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cosl. Any
difference between the proceeds ( net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using effective interest method.

Burtuwiigs aie ulassified as cunient liabililies unless e cumpany s an unconditivnal right to defer settlement of the llabllity for at least 12 months
after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period
with the effect that the liability becomes payment on demand on the reporting date , the entity does not classify the liability as current , if the lender
agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statement for issue , not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

For Trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheel dale , the carrying amount approximates fair value ta short- term
maturity of these instruments

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Lompany derecognises hinancial habilities when, and only when, the Company's obligalions are discharged, cancelled or they expire or it transfer
the financial assets and such transfer qualifies for de- recognition under Ind AS 109- Financial instruments,
All investments other than those disclosed otherwise are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where an indication of impairment

exists, the carrying amount ot the investment 1s assessed and 1s written down immedrately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of such investments,
the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are ofiset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the

recognised amounts and the there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability subsequently. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in event of default, insolvency or

bankruptcy of the company or the counter party.

3.2  Income recognition

a)

b)

c)

Interest income

The Company recognises interest income using Effective Interest Rate (EIR) on all linancial assets

The Company recognises interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other

than credit-impaired assets. In case of credit-impaired financial assets regarded as ‘stage 3', the Company recognises interest income on the amortised
cost net of impairment loss of the financial asset at EIR. If the financial asset is no longer credil-impaired, the Company reverts to calculating interest

ingome on 8 gross basis.
Delayed payment interest {penal interest} levied on customers for delay in repayments/non payment of contractual cashflows is recagnised on
realisation,

Recognition of ravanue from sale of gnads ar services
Revenue (other than for Financial Instruments within the scope of Ind AS 109) is measured at an amount that reflects the consideralions, to which an

entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties,
Revenue from contract with customer for rendering services is recognised at a point in time when performance obligation is satisfied.

Dividend Income
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's rights to receive payment have been established.

3.3 Employee benefits

(a}

(b)

Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages, salaries and other benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the

employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the

amounts expected 1o be paid when the liabilities are settled, The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

Post employment obligations
Compensated absences
Accumulated compensated absences which are expected to be availed or enchased or contributed within the 12 months from the end of the year are

treated as short term employee benefits and the balances expected ta be availed or enchased or contributed beyond 12 months from the year end are
treated as long term liability and are accounted on undiscounted basis

Other short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are recognised as an expenses as per the Company's schemes based on the expected obligation on an undiscounted

basis,

—
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Registered Office :
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Material Accounting Policies

3.4 Property, Plant & Equipment:
Praoperty, Plant & Equipment are staled at their origtnal cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost comprises cost of acquisition, cost of improvements, borrowing

costs and any attributable cost of bringing the assets to the condition for its intended use Costs also include direct expenses incurred upto the date of
copitolizotion/ commisaioning
On transition to Ind AS , the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of ali of its property, plant and equipment recognised as at 01 April, 2019

ncosurcd as per the previous GAADP and use that cairying value 8s tic decined vusl ul all Uie properly , plaul and equipiient

3,5 Depreciation
Depreciation has been provided on written down value method in accordance with the useful life of assets prescribed under Schedule- [l of the Companies Act,

2013
3.6 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject

w an ingignificant rsk of changee tn valug

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short- term deposits, as delined above, net of outstanding bank

overdrafts if any, as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management

3.7 Provisions
Provisions are recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive} as a result of a past event, which is expected

to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits which can be reliably estimated, Each pravision is based on the best estimate of the
expenditure required 1o settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date,

3.8 Income taxes
The income lax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’'s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each

jurisdiction adjusted by changes in delerred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses,
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability melhod, on temporary differences arising between Lhe tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts in the financial statements,

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacled or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are

expected to apply when the related deferred income tax assel is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred lax assets are recognised for all deductible temparary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and losses,

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offsel current lax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authorily. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offsel where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or 10 realise the asset and settle the fiability simultaneously.

Current and delerred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

3.9 Earnings per share
Earnings per share is calculated in accordance with IND AS 33 an earnings per share, It is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to

equity share holders, by the weighted average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net prolit or loss for the period atiributable to equity shareholders and weighted average number
of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

3.10 inventory
The inventory consists of shares held for trading purpose and are measured as per *ind AS-2 Inventories” at Cost or Net Realisable Value whichever is lower at

the balance sheet date.

3.11 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions are recognised only when:
{i)  an entity has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event; and
(i) itis probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; and

(iii}  a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation
Provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation and when the effect of time value of money is material, the carrying
amaunt of the provision is the present value of those cash flows, Reimbursement expected in respect of expenditure required (o settle a provision is recognised
only when it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received,

Contingent liability is disclosed in case of:
(i) a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and

(ii) a present abligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible. Contingent assets are disclosed where an inflow of economic

benefits is probable. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at each Balance Shcet date
Where the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expecled to be received under such contract, the

present abligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a provision.

Contingent Assets
Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed. However, when realisation of the income is virtually certain, related asset is recognised

3.12 Statement of Cash Flows
Staternent of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and financing activities. Cash flow from operating activities is reported
using indirect method adjusting the net profit for the effects of:
i, changes during the period in operating receivables and payables transactions of a non-cash nature;
ii, non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealised foreign currency gains and losses, and undistributed profits of associates and
joint ventures; and
iii, all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows,
Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Statement of Cash Flows exclude items which are not available for general use as on the date

of Balance Sheet.
3.13 Event after reporting date
Where the events occurring after the Balance Sheet date provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period, the impact of such events

adjusted within the financial statements. Otherwise, events after the Balance Sheet date of material zize or nature are only disclosed,

(&
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Registered Office :
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nate 4
Cash and Bank Balanee
Particulars 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
a) Cash and Cash Equivalents Rs. in Lakhs
Cash in hand { As certified by the Management) 0.12 012
Balance with banks
-in current Accoants 36.03 €3.E3
36.06 63.80
b) Bank Latance other than Cash and cash equivalents
-in Fixed & Term Deposits Account 454.12 105.58
{Maturity Period is more than 3 months but less than 12 months)
TOTAL 454.12 105,58
Note 5
Loans
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.202¢
At Amortised Cost Rs. in Lakhs Rs. in Lakhs
Secured . E
Unsecured, cansidersd good ( unless otherwise stated |
Loans to Bedies Carporate |
Considerod Good 500.00 1,000.00
Others
Advance to Stafl 710 0.12
{Recoverabile in cash ar in kind or value to be recewed thereol)
TOTAL 501.10 1.800.12
Note 6
Investment
Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Rs, in Lakhs Rs. in Lakhs
{A] Investments carried at Fair Value Other Comprehensive Income
Fully paid Equity Shares (Quoted) 861,44 891.63
{8) Investments carried at Fair Value through profit or loss
|lAvestment in Bonds 3,073.20 2,987.30
Invesiment in NCD 1.331.37 1.350.00
Mistual Funds 3,403.24 3,063.74
[ C ) Investments carried at Amortised Cost
Equity Shares in Associates {Unquoted) 4,081.22 3,793.40
Eguity Shares in Others (Unquoted} 68.25 68.25
Non- Convertible Preference Shares {Quoted) 400.57 400.57
Less: Provision for fair value loss of investment [ Refer Note no. 24{10)] - 400.57
Less: Loss on investment [Refer Note no. 24(10}] #00.57 .
Tax Free Bonds 359,64 359.64
TOTAL 1357834 12,513.96
Note 7
Other F jal Assete
Particulars 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
Rs, in Lakhs
Intarest Receivable on Bonds 45,82 52.97
Interest Receivable on NCD 24,21 2421
Interast Receivable on Tax Free Bonds 7.79 7,79
Aceruad Interest on Term Deposit 6.67 1.7
Dividend Receivable 0,09 -
|Security Deposit 0.08 "
Total 84.66 86.68
Note 8
Inventoriss
Particulars 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
Rs, in Lakhs
Closing Stock of Shares (Refer note 8A) = 0.28
TOTAL - | 0.28
Note-8A - Clasing Stock of Securities
Particulars Fv STos202 3022004
No. Rs. in Lakhs No, Rs. in Lakhs
The Indian Wood Products Co Ltd 2 - 1,000 0.28
Total = 028
Note 8
Current Tax Assets
Particulars 31.032025 | 31,03.2024
Rs. in Lakhs
Advance Taxes {Net of provisions) 0.57 I 4,38
Total 0.57 | 438
\
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 10
Property, Plant & Equipment

Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars Building Office Equipment Motor Cars Total
Tangyible Assels
Gross Block
At 1st April 2023 10.38 3.40 15.51 29.29
Additions - - -
Disposals - - - -
At 31 March 2024 10.38 3.40 15.51 29.29
Additions - - -
Disposals - - - -
As at 31 March 2025 10.38 3.40 15.51 29.29
Accumulated Depreciation
At 1st April 2023 8.12 3.25 13.56 24.92
Depreciation Expense 0.11 - 0.61 0.72
Deduction - - - -
As at 31 March 2024 8.23 3.25 14.17 25.64
Depreciation Expense 0.10 - 0.42 0.52
Deduction - - -
Asat 31 March 2025 8.33 3.25 14.58 26.17
Carrying Value
As at 1st April 2023 2.26 0.15 1.95 4.36
As at 31 March 2024 2.15 0.15 1.34 3.64
As at 31 March 2025 2.04 0.15 0.92 312
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6 Investment 31st March, 2025 31st March, 2024
A |Quoted Gecurities
Investment in Fully paid up Equity Ilnstruments -
Valued at FVOCI
Sl. |Name of the Securities EV. No. of Units (Rs. in Lakhs) No. of Units [Rs. in Lakhs)
No.
1 |Bank of Maharashtra 10/- 50,000 23.17 50,000 31.18
2 |Brookfield India Real Estate Trust 275/- - 33,741 85.94
3 |Coal India Ltd 10/- 8,500 33.85 8,500 36.90
4 |Elpro International Limited 1/ 4,20,000 295.47 4,20,000 342.64
5 |GAIL {India) Limited 10/- 10,000 18.30 10,000 18.11
6 |GAIL {india) Limited- Bonus Shares 10/- 5,000 9.15 5,000 9.05
7 |GFL Ltd /- 2,000 1.02 9,000 6.10
8 |Hathway Cable and Datacom Limited 2/- 2,21,750 28.83 2,25,000 44.10
9 |Indian Oil Corporation 10/- 15,000 19.16 15,000 25.16
10 |Indian Oil Corporation - Bonus Shares 10/- 39,000 49.80 35,000 65.42
11 |ITC Lid 1/- 7,500 30.73 - -
12 |Jupiter Wagons Ltd 10/- 37,000 136.62 - -
13 |National Aluminum Co. Ltd 5/- 11,500 20.18 30,000 45.77
14 |NHPC Limited 10/- 74,000 60.83 74,000 66.38
15 [NMDC Limited 1/- 13,500 9.30 15,000 30.2¢]
16 |NMDC Limited- Bonus Shares 1/- 27,000 18.60 - -
17 |NMDC Steel Limited 10/- - - 15,000 8.21
18 |Reliance Capital Ltd 10/- - 400 0.05
19 |Reliance Home Finance Ltd 10/- 400 0.01 400 0.01
20 |Samvardhana Motherson International Itd 1/- 20,000 26.19 -
21 |Tata Steel Ltd 10/- 4,330 6.68 4,330 6.75
22 |Tala Steel Lid 10/- 22.900 35.32 22,900 35.08
23 |The TATA Power Company Ltd 1/- 4,000 15.02 - -
24 |UCO Bank Lid 10/- 65,000 23.21 65,000 33.93
861.44 891.63
Investment in Bond - Valued at FVTPL
1 0% GOI CSTRIP GS 17Dec2025 1,00,000 300 286.68 300 266.73
2 6.10% GOl Bond 12JULY2031 1,00,000 1,500 1,465.65 1,500 1,413.90
3 |7.05% NHAI SR Il 28SEP2041 10,00,000 20 200.00 20 200.00
4  17.35% EXIM Bank Bond 27July28 1,00,000 190 190.00 - -
5 |7.44% PFC Ltd 10May2028 1,00,000 250 250.00 250.00 250.00
6 |7.68% SIDBI 10Aug2027 1,00,000 85 85.00 85.00 85.00
7 |7.77% National housing bank 02Apr2026 1,00,000 500 500.00 500 500.00
8 |8.10% REC Ltd Bond 25June2024 10,00,000 - - 18 180.00
9 |11.45% MeECL Bonds-13FEB2030 10,00,000 5 55.19 5 50.00
10 |9.75% UPPL Bond - 20 Oct.2027 10,00,000 4 40.68 4 41.67
3,073.20 2,987.30
Investment in NCD - Valued at FVTPL
1 |2% Un-sec Optionally Cov Deb - J B Leasing Pvt.Ltd. 1,00,000 500 500.00 500 500.00
2 16.83% HDFC Ltd 08JAN2031 10,00,000 10 100.00 10 100.00
3 |7.05% HDFC Ltd 01DEC2031 10,00,000 50 481.37 50 500.00
7 |7.30% NMDC Steel Ltd 28AUG2025 10,00,000 10 100.00 10 100.00
9 |7.99% LIC Housing Finance Ltd 12JUL2029 10,00,000 15 150.00 15 150.00
1,331.37 1,350.00
Tnvestments in Non-Convertible Preference Shares -
Valued at Amortised Cost
1 16.46% Infrastructure Leasing & Financial-24SEP22 15000/- 1,335 200.47 1,335 200.47
2 |16.46% Infrastructure Leasing & Financial-150CT22 15000/- 1,334 200.10 1,334 200.10
Less:- L
Provision for fair value loss of investment CD&’ (400.57)
Loss on investment [refer note 24 (10)] A (400.57) -
‘Y
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Tnvestment in Tax Free Bonds- Valued at Amortised
Cost
] T 2
Name of the Company EV. No. of Units | (Rs.inlakhs) | No.ofUnits | (Rs.in Lakhs)
1 18.10% IRFC Tax Free Bond-23FEB27 1000/- 600 5.89 600 5.89
2 |8.20% Hudco Tax Free Bond-5MAR27 1000/- 132 1.36 132 1.36
3 |8.30% NHAI Tax Free Bond-25JAN27 1000/- 1,931 19.35 1,931 19.35
4 18.50% IIFCL Tax Free Bond- 12 NOV 33 1000/- 10,000 100.00 10,000 100,00
5 |8.50% NHAI Tax Free Bond-05FEB29 1000/- 10,000 100.00 10,000 100.00
6 |8.51% Hudco Tax Free Bond-250CT28 1000/- 2,000 20.00 2,000 20.00
7 8.66% IIFCL Tax Free Bond-22JAN34 1000/- 10,000 100.00 10,000 100.00
8 |8.67% NHPC Tax Free Bond-2NOV33 1000/- 805 8.05 805 8.05
9 ]8.50% NHAI Tax Free Bond-5FEB29 1000/- 500 4.98 500 4.98
359.64 359.64
Total of Quoted Securities 5,625.65 5,588.57
Unquoted Equity Shares - Valued at Amortised Cost ) .
F.V. No. of Units (Rs. in Lakhs) No. of Units (Rs. in Lakhs)
{2l In Assaciates
\Woodside Fashion Limited 10/- 5,39,000 4,081.22 5,39,000 3,793.40
{b) In Others
Bengal NR! Complex Limited 10/- 7,22,500 68.25 7,22,500 68.25
Total of Unquoted Securities 4,149.47 3,861.65
C |Investments in Mutual Funds - Valued at FVTPL NAV No. of Units | (Bs. in Lakhs) No. of Units | [Rs. in Lakhs]
1 |Edelweiss Arbitrage Fund-Reg-Gr 19.0830 1,68,672.091 32.19 - -
2 |Kotak Liquid Fund-Reg-Gr 5191.6291 4,326.010 224.59 4,326.010 209.37
3 Kotak Money Market Fund-Reg-Gr 4405.9601 6,299.797 277.57 6,299.797 257.71
4 |Kotak Equity Arbitrage Fund-Reg-Gr 36.8834| 26,35,551.590 972.08 17,69,685.019 607.08
5 |Kotak Low Duration Fund-Reg-Gr 3276.9449 7,649.611 250.67 -
6 |Nippon India Arbitrage Fund-Reg-Gr 26.1405 40,892.064 10.69
7 |Nippon India Ultra Short Duration Fund-Reg-Gr 3956.4556 20,425.759 808.14 20,425.759 753.79
8 |HDFC Arbitrage Fund-Wholesale Plan-Gr 30.1610] 7,92,272.312 238.96 7.92,272.312 222.53
9 |SBI Arbitrage Opportunities Fund-Reg-Gr 33.2561| 22,18,177.952 737.68 22,18,177.952 687.38
10 |SBI Low Duration Fund-Reg-Gr 3424.6538 7,319.450 250.67 - -
11 |SBI Equity Savings Fund-Reg-Gr - - 15,38,598.966 325.87
3,803.23 3,063.74
Total Investment (A+B+C) 13,578.34 12,513.96
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DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469
Registered Office :

11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 11
Provisions
Particulars 3103.2025 |  31.03.2024
Rs. in Lakhs
Ceontingant Provision against Standard Assets 1.25 2,50
TOTAL 125 250
Note 12
Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities
Particulars 31.03.2025 | 31032024
A= in Lajths
Deferred Tax Liability
Changes in Fair Value of Investment 87.05 4872
Deferred Tax Assets
falDifference between WDV and Tax Base of PPE {0.90) (1.00]
Net Deferred Tax Assets/{L )] 86.15 47.72
The major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2025 are as follows:
Recugnised/ et |
0 u ud iy
Particulars Opening reversed through ey d Closing Balance
. ocl
Profit and loss
Rs. in lakhs
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
(a)Difference between WDV and Tax Base of PPE 1.00 {0.10) 0.90
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability
{a) Fair Value change in Investment [48.72) (#B.53) 10.21 (87.05)
Net Doferrad Tax Asset/{Liabilities) (47.72] iad.od) 1021 (86.15)

for the year ended March 31, 2024 are as follows:

Tha major camponents of deferred tax assets and |

Recognised/

Particulars Opening reversed through Closing Batance
Profit and loss
Rs. in lakhs
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
{ajDifference between WDV and Tax Base of PPE 1.09 (0.08} 1.00
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liability
{2l Fair Value change in [nvestment f2.38) (12.83) {32.25) (28.72)
Net Deferred Tax Asset/iLizshilities) {1.89] (13.58) {32.25) 47.72]
R illation of tax exp and the sec ting profit multiplied by tax rate:
Particutars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
Re. in Lakhs
{a) Profit Before Tax 1,161.10 1,307.99
(b} Tnx Rnte far Carporate Fntity na per Income Tax Act, 1961 25.17% 25.17%
(¢} Exp. d Tax E: as par | Tax Act,1961 (a®b) 292.22 329.20
(d) Tax Effect of:
(i} Tax on non deductible expenses 2.02 0.05
{ii} Tax on Income exempt from tax {8.87) (7.81)
(iii) Effect of differential tax rates (22,39} (7.17)
(iv) Deferred Tax Adjustments (48,64) {1358}
{v) Adjuatment of Busgincas Loas as per Income tax (14.30) {25.40)
{vi) Share of profil of associates {70.59) (126.91)
(e)Total effect of tax adjustments ({i} to (v}] 162,77} {180.84)
(A Tax expense {c+e), 148.36
(g) Tax expense recognised during the year 148.36
Note 13
Other Non Financial Liabilities
Particulars 31.03.2025 |  31.03.2024
Rs, in Lakhs
Liabilities for Expenses 0.58 0.59
Statutory Liabilities 0.71 0.71
TOTAL 1.28 1.29
P
e




DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033468
Registered Office :
11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN

| NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

Note 14
Equity Share Capital
Particulars 31.032025 | 31.03.2024
Rs. in Lakhs
Authorizad share capital
90,00,000. { P.Y. 90,00,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each S00.00 900.00
Issued, Subscribed and Fuily Paid up
9,52,595 ( P.Y. 9,52,595) Equity shares of As.10/- each fully paid up 95.26 95.26
Total Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up 95.26 95.26
iiation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Equity shares 31.03.2028 31.03.2024
No Fs. in Lakhs No. Fs_in Lakhs
At the beginning of the periad 9,52,595 95.26 9,52,595 95,26
Issued during the period B
o {ing at the end of the period 5,52,595 95,26 §,52,555 95.26

Tarms/rights attached to equity shares

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- per share. On a show of hands, every member, present in person or by proxy, is
entitled to one vote and in case of poll, the voting rights of every member shall be in proportion to his shares of the paid-up equity share capital of the company,

The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all
preferantial amounts. The distribution will be in propartian to the number of eguity shares held by the shareholders

[etali= ol sharehnliers hinkding more than &% sharas in the Fampeny

Equity shares 31.03.2025 31.03.2024
kil No. Yo No.

Rajendra Kumar Bachhawat 2,65 91,833 .55 91,833
Surendra Kumar 3.08 6,632 8.09 86,632
Mzhendra Kumar Bachhawat 7.59 72,284 7.59 72,284
Prakash 1.85 74,750 1.65 74,750
Despak B: 5.83 55,500 583 55,500
Daulat Financial Services {F] Lid 737 68,300 37 68,300
Desplok Securities Limited 5.93 56,450 5493 56,450
Suharsh Trade & Holding Pvi Ltd 5.21 43,675 571 45,675

Details of Shares held by P

31.03.2025 31.03.2024
P
Promoter name No, of Shares cfitotal % Change No. of Shares % of total shares
shares  (during the yoar|

Rajendra Kumar Bachhaivat 91.933 9.65% 0.00% 891,833 265%
Surendrs Kumar Bachhiawat 86,632 9.09% 0.00% 85,632 8.08%
Mahendra Kumar Ba 72,284 1.59% 0.00% 72,284 7.59%

Surendra Kumar Bachhawat [ RSM Investrmonts) 44,300 4.65% 0.00% 44,300 4.65%

Rajandra Kumar Sacht H.UF 43,600 4.58% 0.00% 43,600 4 56%

Deepak Bac 55,500 5.83% u_ml 55,500 5.83%
| Prakash Bacht 74,750 7.85% 0.00%: 74,750 7.85%
Alok Bachhawat 28,300 3.05% 0.00% 28800 035
Saroj Bachhawat 50 0.07% 0.00% 50 0.01%
Baulat Financial Services (P} Lid 68,300 7175 0,00% 68,300 7.17%
Daplak !',er,llri'if\.! 1td o A%H £ A% N [N nnang 5.0Y%
Vinayak Dealer (P) Lid 43,500 4.57% 0.00% 43,500 4.57%

ASM Buliders & Securitias [P Lrd 49, 1L S.od U, L 3h,100 3.68%
Total 7,01,289 73.62% 0,00% 7.01.293 73.62%

Note 15

Other Equity

Particulars 31.03.2025 I 31.03.2024
Rs. in Lakhs

|Retained Earnings 11,201.59 10,513.48

Securities Premium 356.00 356.00

Amalgamation Reserve 129,29 129.29

Special Reserve 2,192.45 1,995,85

General Reserve 437,45 339.14

Other Comprehensive Income 157.26 297.91

TOTAL 14.474.02 13,631.67

Nature and purpose of reserves

a) Retained Earnings: Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other
distributions paid to shareholders

b)Securities Premium: Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares, It can be utilised only for limited purposes in accordance with the
provisians of the Companies Act, 2013

c)General Reserve: General Reserve are amounts set aside from retained profits as a reserve to be utilised for permissible general purpose as per Law.

d) Reserve fund in terms of section 45-1C{1} of the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934 : Reserve fund is created as per the terms of section 45-1C(1) of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 as a statutory reserve.

e)Other comprehensive income represents fair value recognition and measurement of equity instruments through other comprehensive income.

f) Amalgamation Reserve : This Reserve was created on the basis of the scheme of Amalgamalion of Meadow Properties Pvt, Ltd, Vasant Lok Properties Pvt, Ltd,
DAP Developers Private Limited and DAP Constructions Pvt Ltd with the Company in the year ended 31st March 1999,
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CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469
Registered Office :
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 16
Interest Income on financial assets
Particulars 31.03.2025 |  31.03.2024
Rs. in Lakhs
Interest Income :
On Tax Free Bond 30.68 30.68
On Others - Exempted 0.05 0.11
On Others 416.06 475.88
Total 446.79 506.68
MNote 17
Dividend Income
Particulars 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024
Rs. in Lakhs
Dividend Income
Shares 182.68 123.48
Brookfield R.L.I.T- Cxempted 0.28 .
Total 182.96 123.49
Note 18
Net Gain on Fair Value Changes
Particulars 31.03.2025 I 31.03.2024
Rs. in Lakhs
Net Gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
- Investments 280.77 80.51
Total 280.77 80.51
Note 19
Other Income
Particulars 31.03.2025 —[ 31.03.2024
Rs. in Lakhs
Protit / (Loss) on disposal ot Long term Investments
Shares
With $11 60.09 09.24
Rond/NCD
Without STT - 1.87
Profit / {Loss) on disposal of Short term Investments
Shares
With STT 0.12 -
Mutual Fund
Profit on Mutual Fund- Short Term - Without STT 2.06 32.96
Profit on Mutual Fund- Short Term - With STT 6.44 5.39
Bond/NCD
Without STT - 29.39
Profit/(Loss) on Share Speculation 0.03 0.1
Interest on Income tax refund 0.01 .
Interest on R. E. |. Trust 1.49 2.82
71.03 171.78
N\




DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469
Registered Office :
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 20
Net {Increase)/Decrease in Closing Stock
Particulars 31.03.2025 |  31.03.2024
Rs. in Lakhs
Inventory at the Beginning of the year 0.28 0.19
Inventory at the End of the year - 0.28
Net (Increase)/Decrease in Closing Stock 0.28 (0.09)
Note 21
Employee Benefit expense
Particulars 31.03.2025 ] 31.03.2024
Rs. in Lakhs
Director Remuneration 30.00 30.00
Salaries and Allowances 27.87 25.35
Staff's Mediclaim Insurance Premium 0.17 0.13
Total 58.04 55.48
Note 22
Other expenses
Particulars 31.03.2025 |  31.03.2024
Rs. in Lakhs
Advertisement 0.37 0.39
AGM Expenses 0.23 0.23
Car Expenses 1.37 2.69
CSR Expenses 8.00 -
Demat Charges 0.12 0.33
Filing Fees 0.07 0.06
Insurance Charges 0.10 0.11
Loss on disposal of Long term Investments
Mutual Fund With STT - 0.17
Loss on sale on Bond 1.08 -
Loss on Investment 400.57 -
Loss on disposal of Short term Investments
Shares With STT 2.98 -
Interest on Tax Paid 0.03 0.18
Internal Audit Fees 0.10 0.10
Secretarial & Professional Charges 6.21 6.29
Listing Fees 0.98 0.85
Accrued Interest paid on purchase of Bonds 0.15 5.31
Accrued Interest on Bond written off for TDS reconciliation 13.78 -
Accrued Interest on NCD written off for TDS reconciliation 2.69 -
Repair & Maintenance Charges 0.74 0.69
Miscellaneous Expenses 1.85 2.01
Rates & Taxes 0.25 0.25
Stamp Duty on Mutual Fund/Bond 0.00 0.00
STT - Investment 0.44 0.77
Travelling & Conveyance 1.19 1.31
Contingent provision against Standard Assets created /(reversed) {1.25) (0.25)
Payment to Auditors (Refer Note 22 A) 0.97 1.10
Total 443.10 22.62
Note 22 A
Payments to the auditor
Particulars 31.03.2025 [ 31.03.2024
Rs. in Lakhs
For Statutory Audit 0.50 0.50
For Tax Audit - -
For other certification work 0.47 0.60
Total 0.97 1.10
/
Note 23 I
Exceptional Items \
Particulars 31.03.2025 |  31.03.2024
Rs. in Lakhs
Provision made earlier now written back (400.57) -
[refer note no 24(10)]
Tatal {400.57)
‘\.
l’j"




DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469
Registered Office :

11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note No.24 Additional Disclosures

1 Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for}
In respect of income tax demand amounting to Rs.1.62 -(Rs. in Lakhs} for the Assessment year 2017-2018 . The company has already filed appeal/rectification with the respeclive
authority.

2 Opemting Segment:
Operaling segments are reported in @ manner consistent with the internal reporting provided 1o the chief operating decision maker {CODM) of the Company. The CODM is
responsible for aliocating resources and assessing the performance of the operating segments of the Company.

As per requirement of Ind-AS 108 " Segment Reporting” no disclosures are required to be made since the Company's activilies consist of a single business segment.

3 There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise, to whom the company owes dues, which are outslanding for more than 45 days during the year and also at 31st March 2025, This
information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Developmenl Acl 2006 has been determined to the extent such parlies have been identified
on the basis of information available with the company

4 Earning Per Share:

Rs. in Lakhs
Computation of Earnings per Equity Share [Basic and Diluted) 2024-25 2023-24
{1 Basic
{a) (i} Number of Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 9,52,595 9,52,595
{ii) Number of Equity Shares at the end of the year 9,562,585 9,52,595
{iii} Weighted average number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year 9,52,535 9,652,585
{iv} Face Value of each Equity Share (in "’} 10 10
{b) Amount of Profit after tax attributable to Equity Shareholders 983.01 1,146.05
(c) Basic Earnings per Equity Share [{b}/{a)(iii}] 103.19 120.31
(an Diluted
{a) Dilutive Potential Equity Shares 9,562,595 9,52,595
(L) Dilutixd Earnings per Equity Share [Same as ([){c) above] 103.19 120.31
5 Related Party Disclosures:
A} List of related parties where control exists
S.N Name of the Ralated Party Relationship
1 Woodside Fashions Limited Associate
2 Surendra Kumar Bachhawat Managing Director
3 Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat
4 Prakash Bachhawat Director
5 Sarla Baid
6 Hemrgj Kathotia .
= Famal Singh Jain Indepaendent Director
8 Rajni Mishra Company Secretary
9 Pradip Kumar Bera Chief Financial Officer
10 Rajendra Kumar Bachhawat Relative of Key Management
Personnel

B} List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken place and relationships:

S.N Name of the Related Party Relationship
1 Woodside Fashlons Limited Associate
2 Surendra Kumar Bachhawat " Key Management Peraonnel
3 Rajendra Kumar Bachhawat Relative of Key Management
Personnel

C) Transactions during the year with related parties:

Rs. in fakhs
N . Key Relative of Key N
Nature of Transactions with ; . Outstanding as on
S.N Related Party Parties where Control exists| Management| Management 31st March'2025
Personnal Personnel
1 Sale of Investments (Shares) - 5 NI
(455.80/-)
. . 30.00/-
Director's Remuneration - . -
2 {(30.00/-)
** Previous Year's figures are given in bracket .




DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469
Registered Office :

11/1, SARAT BOSE ROAD, SOUTH BLOCK, 2ND FLOOR, KOLKATA WB 700020 IN
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10

1

-

12

13

14

Details of transaction with struck off Companies
(e 0L NS Struck afi Lompanies

As per notification no.RBI/DNBR/2016-17/44 issued by the Reserve Bank of India, Contingent Provision against Standard Assets have been reversed by Rs. 1.25/-{(Rs. in lakhs} during
the year, {reversed in P.Y. Rs.0.25/- {Rs. in Lakhs)

22,900 Shares of Tata Steel Limited shown under Non-current Investment in the financial statements is yet to be transferred in the name of the company due Lo litigation with respeat
to ownership of shares,

Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a Non - Banking Financial Company as required in terms of Paragraph 16 of Non-Banking Financial Company -Non-Systemically Important Naon-
Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank]} Directions, 2016 issued vide Notification No. DNBR,PD.007/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 01, 2016 is as per Annexure 1,

Disclosures requitement in the financial statements in accotdance with ‘Scale Based Regulation (SRR} vide circular an DOR CRF RFC No AN/NR 10 0N1/2021-22 dated October 22, 2021
is as per Annexure-2.

The Company holds principal investments amounling to Rs.400.57/-(Rs. in lakhs} in the prelerence shares of Infrastructure Leasing & Financial Services Limited (IL&FS Ltd.}, which
are accounted for at amortized cost in accordance with Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments.

As per the classification by the Resolution Consultant of IL&FS Ltd., the company has been categorized as a "Red Entity", indicating significant financial stress and uncertamnty
regarding the recoverability of investments. Accordingly, during the financial year ended 31st March 2020, the Company had prudently recognized a provision for fair value loss of|
Rs.400.57/-(Rs. in lakhs), which was disclosed as an exceptional item in the financial statements,

In the current financial year, considering the continued uncertainty and the unlikely recovery of the investment, the Company has decided to book loss on investment of the entire
investment by transferring the previously recognized provision to the “Loss on Investment” account. Consequently, the provision has been reversed, and the loss has been duly

reflected in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Name of Struck . . Balance Relationship with the
Nature of transaction with Struck-off Company QOutstan | Struck off company, if any,
off Company . N
dina to be disclosed
NA Investment in Securities NIl NA
NA Receivables Nil NA
NA Payables Nil NA
NA Share held by stuck off company Nil NA
NA Other Outstanding Balance (to be specified) Njl NA

The Company has incurred towards Corporate Social Responsibility expenditure during the year as per the provisions of Companies Act 2013.

. 31st
Particulars 31st March,2025 March,2024
(Rs.in Lakhs}
Excess amount brought forward 0.17 7.44
Am9unl required to be spent 7.70 7.26
during the year
Amount of expenditure incurred 8.00 Refer note
below
Excess amount carrv forward 0.47 0.17
Total of pervious years shartfall Nil
leason far shol N.A
Nature of CSR ti Education
Related party transactions _NA
If liability is incurred by entering N.A
into a contractual obligation, the
movement in the provision.

1) Excess amount spent of CSR in FY 2022-23 Rs. 7.44/-(Rs.in Lakhs) utilised in previous FY 2023-24 against the CSR liability of Rs.7.26/-(Rs.in Lakhs). Out of balance amount of
Rs.0.17/-(Rs.in Lakhs), the company utilised against the CSR liability of Rs. 7.70/-(Rs.in Lakhs) and the balance carry forward.

2) The CSR donation is in support of institution involved in promotion of Education.

Particulars In Cash Yet to be paid in Total
Cash
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset Nif Nil Ni|
{ Previous Year | Nii Ni| Nil
{ii) On purposes other than (i} above 8.00 Nil 8.00
{ Previous Year) BT Nil Refer note above
above

Deferred tax :
As per Ind AS 12, the Company has deferred tax liabilities due to difference in depreciation as per Companies Act and as per Income tax Act, MAT credit entitlement & Fair Value

Change in investment, {Refer Note. 12 to the financial statements)

Useful Life of Property, Plant & Equipment as per Companies Act 2013 are given below:

Assets Useful life Remaining Life
Building 60 years 34.9
Motor Car 8 years 0.41
Office EQuipment'’s 5 years Nil
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note No. : 24 Additional Disclosures (contd.)

15 Financial Instrument related disclosures

(i)

Financial instruments- Accounting, Classification and Fair Value Measurement

A. Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It
does not include fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable

approximation of fair value.

As. in Lakhs
. 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Particulars = =
FVPL FVOCI Amortised cost FVPL FVOCI Amortised cost
A |Financial Assets
1| Investments 8,207.79 861.44 4,509.11 7.401.04 891.63 4,221.29
2 | Cash and cash equivalents - - 490.18 - - 169.38
3 |Trade Receivables - - - - - -
4 |Loans + - 501.10 - - 1,000.12
5| Other financial assets - - 84.66 - - 86.68
Total financial assets 8,207.79 861.44 5,585.05 7,401.04 891.63 5.477.46
B |Financial liabilities
1| Borrowings - - - - -
2| Trade payables - -
3 | Other financial liabilities(Current) - - - - - -
Total Financial Liabilities - - - - - -

B. Measurement of fair values

(i)

Fair Value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are {(a) recognised and measured at
fair value and {b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability
of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instiurments into the thiree levels prescribed under the accounting
standard.

Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observabig,
the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. Fair values are determined in
whole or in part, using a valuation model based on assumptions thal ate neilher suppuiled by prices from observable current market transactions in the
same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

{ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Management uses its best judgement in estimating the fair value of its financial instruments. The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an
~ctive market is determined using valuation techniques. The Company uses its judgments to select a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. However, there are inherent limitations in any estimation technique.
Therefore, for substantially all financial instruments, the fair value estimates presented above are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that the Company
could have realised or paid in sale transactions as of respective dates. As such, fair value of financial instruments subsequent to the reporting dates may be
different from the amounts reported at each reporting date.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

a. the fair value of the financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis/ other method

b. the use of quoted market price

Rs. in Lakhs
. 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
Particulars
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets:

Investments measured at FVTPL 8,207.79 - - 7,401.04 - -
Investments measured at FVOCI 861.44 - - 891.63 - -
Total 9,069.24 - - 8,292.68 - -

The carrying amounts of remaining financial assets and liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values due to short term nature.

Notes:
1 There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 for the years ended March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024.
2 Costs of certain unguoted eguity instruments has been considered as an appropriate estimate of fair value because of a wide range of possible fair value

measurements and cost represents the best estimate of fair value within that range.
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(A)

(B}

()]

Financial risk management

Ihe Company's business activities are exposed 1o a variely of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, market
risks and credit risk. The Company’s senior management has the overall responsibility for establishing and
governing the Company's financial risk management framcwork.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Company. Credit risk arises primarily from financial assets such as trade receivables, bank

balances and loans.

At each reporling date, the Company measures loss allowance for certain class of financial assets based on
historical trend, industry practices and the business environment in which the Company operates.

Credit risk arising from balances with banks is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit
worthiness.

Credit risk arising from loans given/inter-corporate deposits (ICD) are limited due to the Borrower's profiles
and histarical experience of callectinn All such ICDs are reviewed and assessed on a quarterly basis.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial
liabilities. The Company’s approach in managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to
meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this, management considers
both normal and stressed conditions.

The Company maintained a cautious liquidily strategy, with a positive cash balance throughout the year
ended 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024. Cash flow from operating activities provides the funds to
service the financial liabilities on a day-to-day basis. The Company regularly monitors the rolling forecasts
to ensure it has sufficient cash on an on-going basis to meet operational needs. Any short-term surplus
cash generated, over and above the amount required for working capital management and other
operational requirements, is retained as cash and cash equivalents (to the extent required) and any excess
is invested in interest bearing NCDs, bonds and other highly marketable debt investments with appropriate
maturities to optimise the cash returns on investments while ensuring sufficient liquidity to meet its

liabilities.

Market Risk
Market Risk is the risk of loss of future earnings/future cash flows that may result from a change in the price

of a financial instrument. The price of a financial instrument may fluctuate because of changes in market
prices, equity prices and other market changes that effect market risk sensitive instruments. The goal of
market risk management is optimization of profit and controlling the exposure to market risk within

acceptable limits.

(i) Currency Risk is not material, as the Company’s primary business activities are within India and does not
have any exposure in foreign currency.

(ii) Interest Rate Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instruments will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is not exposed to the interest rate risk
due to its investment in fixed rate instruments which are being carried at cost and not subject to interest
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b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

g)
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Capital management
Regulatory capital

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) sets and monitors capital adequacy requirements for the Company from time to time
The Companies regulatary capital consists of the sum of the following slomonte:

Tier 1 Capital includes:
Tier 1 Capilal includes:

1) Ordinury shure cupital,

2) Securities premium reserve,

3) Retained earnings,

4) Cumulative compulsorily convertible preference Shares {CCCPS),
5) Debenture redemption reserve

6) Perpetual debt

7) Special reserve

8) Retained earnings

9) Special reserve.

10) (General raserve

Tier 1 Capital does not include unrealised fair value gain/lass hnoked far finanrial instruments measured at fair value through profit and lose etatement and
shares option outstanding account Following items are deducted from Tier |

a) Intangibles
b) Deferred revenua expanditura for raising horrowings
c) Deferred tax assets

Tier Il capital includes
1) subordinated debt
impairment allowance provisioning for stage 1 and stage 2 financial assets to the extent the same does not exceed 1.25% of Risk weighted

2) assets,

3) perpelual debl to the extent not eligible for Tler 1.
Rs. in Lakhs
= Particulars I Lot _

-31.03.2025 As 5t 31.03.2024
Tier 1 capital
Ordinary share capital - -
Securities premium reserve 356.00 356.00
Amalgamation Reserve 129.29 129.29
Retainod earninge 11,201.09 10,5613.40
Special reserve 2,192.45 1,995.85
General reserve 437.45 339.14
Other Comprehensive Income 157.26 297.91
Less:

- Deferred Tax Asset {86.15) (47.72)
Tier | Capital 14,560.18 13,679.40
Tier Il Capital = z
Tier | + Tier Il Capital 14,560.18 13,679.40

Additional Requiatory Information

The Company does not own any immovable property whose title deed are not registered in the name of the Company.

The company does not have any proceedings initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
{Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

The company has neither been declared as a willful defaulter nor has received any show cause notice from any bank or financial institution or government gr
any government authority.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Company has not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year
in the tax assessments under the IncomeTax Act, 1961.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person{s) or entity(s) including foreign entities {intermediaries) with tha

understanding that the intermediaries shall:
i. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities in any manner what so ever by or on behalf of the Company (ultimate beneficiaries); or

ii. Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries,

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(s}, including foreign entities (funding party) with the understanding (whether recorded

in writing or otherwise) that the Company will:
i. Directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner what so ever by or on behaif of the funding party (ultimate

beneficiaries); or
ii. Provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries,
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The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

The Company has not received any whistle blower complaints during the year.

The company has not made any transactions during the year with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of tha
Companies Act, 1956.

The Company has not filed any Scheme of Arrangement in terms of section 230 to 237 of Companies Act, 2013, with any Competent

authority.

The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause {87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies {Restriction on number of
Layers) Rules, 2017.

Ratios
Ratio Numerator Denominator Cur_rent Preylous % Variance Rea.s on for
Period Period Variance
Capital to Risk Weighted Asset Ratio Tier | + Tier Il Risk Weighted o
(CRAR] Capital Assets 118 1.67 -31.07% | N.A
Tier | CRAR Tier| Capital | 15K Weighted 1.15 1.67 -31.07%|N.A
Assets
Tier Il CRAR Tier i Capital |15k Weighted N.A N.A N.A|N.A
Assets
Sockotin 12111
Liquidity Coverage Ratio Quality Liquid N.A N.A N.A[N.A
the next 30
Assets
calendar days

The previous period’s figures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary to correspond to those of the current year.
Amounts and other disclosures for the preceding year are included as an integral part of the current year financial statements and are to be read in relation ta
the amounts and other disclosures relating to the current year.

As per our Report of even date attached.

For JBS & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 323734E
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dra Kumar Bachhawat dra Kumar Bachh
CA Dillip § anaging Director Director
{Partner) DIN: 00129471 DIN: 00129820
Membership No. 312458 -k M t\jlﬁ 4
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Rajni Mishra Pradip Kumar Bera
Place : Kolkata Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Date : 25{-05' 9025




Annexure 1

SCHEDULE TO THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.25 OT
DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED a Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company

(As required in terms of Paragraph 18 of Non-Banking Financial Company -Non-Systemically
Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 issued vide Notification No.
DNBR.PD.007/03.10.119/2016-17 as updated on 31.05.2018)

PARTICULARS (Rs. In Lakhs)
Amount Amount
Outstanding Overdue

LIABILITIES SIDE :
() Loans and Advances availed by the non-banking financial company inclusive of
interest accrued thereon but not paid :

(a) Debentures: Secured -

Unsecured --

(Other than falling within the meaning of public deposits) -- -
(b) Deferred Credits - —
(¢) Term Loans
(d) Inter-Corporate Loans & Borrowings --
(¢) Commercial Paper
() Public Deposits - -
(g) Other Loans (Specify nature) -

@) Break-up of 1(f) above (Outstanding public deposits inclusive of
interest accrued thereon but not paid):

(a) In terns of Unsecured debentures =
(b) In the form of partly secured debentures i.e. debentures where there 1s a shortfall

in the value of security - =
(c) Other Public Deposits = =

ASSETS SIDE : AMOUNT OUTSTANDING

G) Break-up of loans and Advances including Bills Receivables
[Other than those included in (4) below | :

(a) Sccured
(b) Unsecured 501.10

Break-up of Leased Assets and Stock on Hire and other assets
( )counting towards AFC activities :
(i) Lease Asscts including Lease Rentals under Sundry Debtors :
(a) Financial Lease
(b) Operating Lease -
(ii) Stock on Hire including Hire Charges under Sundry Debtors :
(a) Assets on Hire
(b) Repossessed Assets
(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC activities
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed
(b) Loans other than (a) above -

(5) Break-up of Investments :
Current Investments :
1. Quoted:

(i) Shares: (a) Equity =

(b) Preference —

(ii) Debentures and Bonds -

(iii) Units of Mutual Funds -

(iv) Governiment Securities

(v) Others (please specify)

2. Unquoted :
(i) Shares: (a) Equity -

(b) Preference

(ii) Debentures and Bonds -

(iii) Units of Mutual Funds .

(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others =




SCHEDULE TO THE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31.03.25 OF
DEEPLOK FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED a Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company

(As required in terms of Paragraph 18 of Non-Banking Financial Company -Non-Systemically
Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 issued vide Notification No.
DNBR.PD.007/03.10.119/2016-17 as updated on 31.05.2018)

Long Termi lnvestments :
1. Quoted:

(i) Shares: (a) Equity 861.44
(b) Preference --

(ii) Debentures and Bonds 3011.87

(11i) Units of Mutual Funds 3803.23

(iv) Government Securities 1752.33

(v) Others -

2. Unquoted :
(i) Shares: (a)Equity 203.00

(b) Preference
(i) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (Gold Coins)

(6) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above :

Catego Amount net of provision
gory Secured Unsecured Total
1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries = == >
(b) Companies in the same group - - -
(c) Other related parties - - -
2. Other than related parties - 501.10 501.10
TOTAL: - 501.10 501.10
(7) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and
unquoted) :
Market Value/ Book Value
Category Break-up or fair (Net of
Valuc or NAV F’rovisions)
1. Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries - -
(b) Companies in the same group 134.75 134.75
{c) Other related partics - s
2. Other than related parties 9,497.12 9,497.12
TOTAL: 9,631.87 9,631.87
(8) Other Information
Particulars Amount
(1) Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related Parties —
(b) Other than related Parties e
(ii) Net Non-Performing Asscts
(a) Related Parties s
(b) Other than related Partics s
(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debts -

For ].B.S & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 323734E

CA Dillip Shaha
(Partner)

dra Kumar Bachhawat
Managing Director

For and on Behalf of the Board
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Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat
Director

DIN: 00129820

L}
Pradip Kumar Bera
Chief Financial Officer

DIN: 00129471

o )
Rc\an M ghea
Rajni Mishra
Company Secretary

Membership No. 312458

Place : Kolkata
Date : 2'105 9-095



Deeplok Financial Services Limited
CIN: L17115WB1981PLC033469
Registered Office :
11/1 Sarat Bose Road, South Block, 2nd Floor, Kolkata, WB 700020 -IN

Notes forming part of financial statement for the year ended 31st March 2025

(Additional disclosures in terms of Scale Based Regulation (SBR) framework (Circular no-circular DOR.CRE.REC.No.60/03,10.001/2021-22 dated October 22,

2021) are also stated below-.)

(A) Exposure
1) Exposure to real estate sector

(Amount in Rs. Crores)

Category 2024-2025 2023-2024
a) |Direct Exposure
i) Residential Mortgages Nil Nil
ii) |Commercial Real Estate Nil Nil
Investments in Mortgage-Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitized
iif) |exposures Nil Nil
b) |Indirect Exposure
; Fund based and non-fund-based exposures on National Housing Bank and . .
) Housing Finance Companies il Nil
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector Nil Nil
2 ) Exposure lo capilal Market
Particulars 2024-2025 2023-2024
i) Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and
units of equity oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively 30.56 29.38
invested in corporate debt
Total Exposure to capital market 30.56 29.38
3) Sectoral Exposure 2024-2025 2023-2024
Sectors
1 |Agriculture and Allied Activities Nil Nil
2 |Tndustry Nil Nil
3 [Services Nil Nil
4 |Pursunal Loans Nil Nil
5 |Others ( Loan Lo Bodies Corporale) 5.00 10.00
4) Intra-group exposures 2024-2025 2023-2024
1 |Total amount of intra-group exposurcs 1.35 1.35
2 |Tolal amount of lop 20 inlia-proup exposuies 1.35 1.35
Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure of the NBFC on 26.95% 13.48%
3 |borrowers/customers

5 ) Unhedged foreign currency exposure

[ i) IThe compnay does not have any unhedged foreign currency exposure as at 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024. 1

{B) Related Party Disclosure

[ i) ]l’or related party disclosure refer to Note No- 24(5) of the additional notes to financial statements. [

(C) Disclosure of complaints

) |20

There are no complaints received by NBFCs from customer and from the office of Ombudsman during the year ended 31st March, 2025 and 31st March,

For ].B.S & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 323734E

"X lep
CA Dillip Shaha

(Partner)
Membership No. 312458

Place : Kolkata

Date : 2':(05 20 25

half of the Board of Directors
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Mahendra Kumar Bachhawat

For and

ndra Kumar Bachhawat

Managing Director Director
DIN: 00129471 DIN: 00129820
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Rajni Mishra Pradip Kumar Bera

Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer



